STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
8/16/2016 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY ~ VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit
the time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION
Approval of Agenda for August 16, 2016.
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Aprroval of Minutes for July 19, 2016.




CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible approval Payroll checks dated 07/29/2016 for $400,504.56 and dated
08/04/2016 for $187,774.05 and $112,220.19. Accounts Payable checks dated
07/25/2016 for $194,553.56 and dated 08/03/2016 for $1,016,365.05 and $18,830.59.

II Possible approval of General Business Licnese and Cabaret License First Reading for
Mellow Fellow, 171 South C St., Virginia, Nevada.

II For possible approval General Non-Profit License First Reading for Virginia City
601 Vigilance Commitee, 120 S B St., Virginia City, Nevada, a local non-profit.

IV For possible approval Treasurer Report for July 2016.

V For possible approval Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2016-17 Secured Tax
Roll for Exemptions.

VI For possible approval Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2016-17 Secured Tax
Roll for Clerical Error,

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Approval to authorize the County Manager to finalize submittal language regarding
Storey County’s singular Bill Draft Request (BDR) allocation for the 2017 Nevada
Legislative Session to the Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) regarding restructuring of
the current composition of the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V &
T Railway (Rail Commission) as provided for in the Chapter 566, 1993 Statutes of
Nevada as amended by Chapter 42, 2001 Statutes of Nevada. For further clarification,
while additional minor verbiage changes may occur subsequent to Commission
approval and prior to submittal of the BDR by or before the Legislative deadline of
September 1, 2016, the core fundamental language must address and cover the
following concepts:

A. Restructure the Rail Commission Board as constituted under Chapter 42, 2001
Statutes of Nevada, reducing the current structure from nine (9) Rail Commissioners
to five (5) consisting of:
i.  One elected Supervisor, or a designated staff appointee from Carson City
appointed by the Carson City Board of Supervisors.
ii.  One elected Commissioner, or a designated staff appointee from Storey
County appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.
iti.  The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Carson City Convention
and Visitors Bureau.




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

iv.  The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission.
v.  One member appointed by the Governor.

B. The effective date of this change, if approved, would be October 1, 2017,

C. Others elements as may be recommended by Storey County Legal Counsel, Storey
County’s acknowledged Legislative Lobbyists including, but not limited to Walker &
Associates and the LCB.

RECESS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO CONVENE AS
THE STOREY COUNTY BROTHEL LICENSE BOARD:

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION
Work card appeal/revocation hearing for Laura Aileen Williams.

ADJOURN THE STOREY COUNTY BROTHEL LICENSE BOARD TO CONVENE AS
THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

For possible approval Liqour License First Reading for Mellow Fellow, 171 South C
St., Virginia City, Nevada.

RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action)

Approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2016-230; Cape Seal Project on
approximately 10 miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Consideration of and possible action to approve contract for the purchase of three (3)
lots from Bucket of Blood Saloon which are adjacent or close to the courthouse. The
addresses of the lots are 55 and 75 South A Street and 50 South B Street. They bear
Assessor's Parcel Numbers 1-081-01, 1-081-02 and 1-081-05.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Approval of short-term extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between
Storey County, Nevada and Comstock Chapter AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June
30, 2016 CBA, to September 30, 2016, or until a succeeding CBA is approves by the
Board of County Commissioners, whichever comes first, in order to allow collective
bargaining between the parties to continue beyond the current CBA period.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION




Special Use Permit 2016-018, by Laurie Weatherston. The Applicants requests
merging three approximately 50' x 100' Virginia City lots into two approimately 75' x
100" lots located at 180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-10, 1905 O
St, Virginia City, Sorey County, APN: 001-251-11 and 200 S O St, Virginia City, Storey
County, APN: 001-251-12.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Special Use Permit 2016-013, by Nature Conservancy, Mickey Hazelwood. The
Applicants requests to obtain a special use permit to alter portions of the existing
Truckee River channel and abutting floodplan enviroment to facilitate flood
management, water quaity and improvement, biodiversity and habitat enchancement,
noxious weed eradication, and recreation opportunity.

18.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION

Discussion/Possible Action: Resolution No. 2016-444, A Resolution Adopting the
Amended 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The resolution includes comprehensive
text amendments to the existing Storey County Master Plan, including the following
elements: Land Use; Population; Housing; Economic Development; Transportation;
Public Services and Facilities; Water and Natural Resources; Cultural and Historical
Resources; and other provisions thereof. The resolution also includes comprehensive
map amendments to the existing Storey County Master Plan area and land use
designation maps. Public participation is encouraged. Copies of the master plan draft
may be obtained from the Planning Department website at

http:/ /www storeycounty.org/521/Updates, at 775.847.1144, or from
planning@storeycounty.org. A copy will also be made available at the meeting.

19.  CORRESPONDENCE

I Correspondence regarding denied agenda item request from Era Segerblom, Esq
attorney for MMR&D, LLC.

20. PUBLIC COMMENT {No Action)
21. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

» Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

¢ [tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the




agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

» Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

¢ Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www .ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call {866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 8/11/2016; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 5 C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,




NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginta City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16,2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for July 19, 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone; 775 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
_____ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@W Manager 'Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued :

— —
o e

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 19TH, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager
Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, District Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff Gerald
Antinoro, Director of Tourism Deny Dotson, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Community
Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Community Development Director Dean Haymore, Senior Planner
and Administrative Officer Austin Osborne and Director of Emergency Management Joe Curtis.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 19, 2016

Motion: Approve Agenda for July 19, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuifey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 21, 2016

Motion: Approve Minutes for June 21, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)
CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/24/16 for $74,084.69, check date 06/24/16
for $122,069.76, and check date 07/01/16 for $491,161.95. Accounts Payable Checks date 06/30/16
for $536,105.55 (not including check number 85985), check date 06/30/16 for $16,257.38, and check
date 07/08/16 for $158.00.

[




6. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report.
7. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for June 2016.

8. TFor possible action approval of the amended Summary Report for the Primary Election held in and
for Storey County, Nevada on June 14, 2016.

9. For possible action approval of Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Tax Roll for Exemptions.

10. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings (Sheriff's Office):
A. RELIABLE RELOADING - Home Based Business, Austin Swift, 2161 Diablo St., Virginia City
Highlands, Nevada 89521 (Firearm and ammunition Sales)

11. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.FULCRUM SIERRA BIOFUELS, LLC - General / 350 Saddle Court (feedstock facility)MCC

B. PYRO GUYS, INC. - General / 1440 Riata Cir ~ Reno (fireworks company)

C. THE TIBERTI COMPANY, LLC - Contractor / 4975 Rogers St ~ Las Vegas (fencing company)

D.J. T. THORPE & SON, INC. - Contractor / 1060 Hensley St ~ Richmond, CA (equip install)

E. YIM'S PRODUCE & SEAFOOD, LLC -~ General / 1210 N Rock Blvd ~ Sparks (Asian food
delivery)

F. EXPRESS SERVICES, INC. - General / 9701 Boardwalk Blvd ~ Oklahoma City, OK (staffing)

G.ACCULOGIC, LTD. - Contractor / 6475 Sycamore ~ Maple Grove, MN (equip install}

H.BRYANT SURVEYS, INC., A SANDIS CO - Contractor / 5117 Johnson ~ Pleasanton, CA
(contractor)

I. HP ENTERPRISES, LLC - General / PO Box 251209 ~ Plano, TX (IT)

J. THERMO ELECTRON NORTH AMERICA, LLC - Pro / 1400 Northpoint ~ W Palm Beach,
FL. (equip)

K.NEWTRON, LLC - Contractor / 815 Arnold Drive ~ Martinez, CA (contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Presentation from Mike Kazmierski of Economic
Development Authority of Western Nevada.

This item was heard after Item 14.
County Manager Whitten presented Mike Kazmierski, CEO and President of the Economic

Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN). Mr. Kazmierski will review the goal
objective of not only bringing quality businesses into the region but also bringing headquarters.




Mr. Kazmierski gave a slide-show presentation on how the organization promotes the area with
the focus being on job creation and workforce development. Highlights of the presentation
included:

Workforce development - a very important and is an intense focus of EDAWN. Without
workers to fill positions, businesses will stop coming.

Skills of workers need to be upgraded to meet the needs of these jobs.

Community Development attracts more people to the area which allows growth of the
economy.

“prospect businesses region”, which shows people what there is in the region so they get
a feel for what is here. The number of businesses that visit and stay is growing. Every
year the numbers go up.

EDAWN representatives visit Tahoe Reno Industrial Center aggressively in order to
support growth in Storey County.

Manufacturing is now a top priority for the region. The problem is the education system
to produce the talent to meet the needs of this workforce. EDAWN works closely with
schools to help them understand that manufacturing is a great opportunity going forward
and how it is different than years ago.

Reno ranked number one in the top mid-size cities for new and expanding business in a
recent magazine. A dramatic improvement compared to national numbers.

Great progress is being made in the business expansion program. 85% of the companies
in this region are growing.

Workforce Consortium: Assembled all the players that can help on the workforce side.
Growth in the region will stop if there isn't a developing and additional workforce - the
right kind of workforce.

Entreprencurial eco-system: To help create an environment where entrepreneurs can
connect and grow in this region.

The projection report is out and tracking reflects 52,000 new jobs. Tesla, Panasonic and
Switch really have not started hiring, but new jobs are averaging 1,000 new jobs for this
region every month.

A billboard welcoming Tesla has been set up showing that everyone wants Tesla to
succeed.

This region does not succeed without Storey County and Storey County doesn’t succeed
without this region.

Mr. Whitten: Copies of this presentation are available and can be requested by email or by
contacting Mr. Whitten.

Mr. Whitten acknowledged the work of Nancy McCormick from EDAWN,

Commissioner McGuffey: Inrelation to the numbers presented, are there other companies that
haven’t gone through EDAWN?

Mr. Whitten: Yes. Often times Mr. Haymore gets calls, does an assessment, determines the best
approach, it may or may not involve EDAWN. It depends on what the companies want. Often
times, it will be EDAWN calling or EDAWN referring companies to call. Referrals come that




13.

way. The County may determine that a company is eligible for tax incentives, abatements and
other programs and will refer the company to back to EDAWN.

Commissioner McGuffey: Actually, numbers are larger than what is being seen here?

Mr. Whitten: Absolutely. There is a company right now that may generate new revenues and
EDAWN hasn’t been brought into play yet. This will be done if the support is needed.

Chairman McBride: The County appreciates the working relationship with EDAWN.

Dean Haymore: Seeing companies that have invested and then re-invested in the County in
different times. With EDAWN'’s help and the economic development team, companies are
coming back, there are sub-companies, and expansions. The whole team makes it happen.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Action for possible approval of Melissa Reed Settlement
Agreement for $45,000.00 and consideration arising out of the employment of Ms. Reed with the
Storey County Sheriff’s Office and authorizing the County Manager to sign the agreement.
Discussion of the matter may include Board involvement in settlement of cases in general.

District Attorney Anne Langer presented this item. This is a proposed settlement agreement
with Melissa Reed. Ms. Langer read Ms. Reed’s requests as presented in the proposed
agreement.

County Manager Whitten: This settlement was negotiated with the understanding it would
release the County and all of its officials from any, and all, claims.

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne: There is one other provision in the agreement that there
would be no re-hire of this employee.

Commissioner McGuffey: This is the second action the County has had in the last twelve
months. Are there other pending actions? Adverse actions or complaints filed against the
County.

Mr. Osborne: Being aware of confidentiality, Mr. Osborne knows of five pending actions, three
possibly from one person.

Commissioner McGufffey: Is it possible to periodically report on employee pending actions to
keep the Board up to date?

Mr. Osborne: This can be done - perhaps at the time of fiscal reports by Comptroller Gallagher.
A report can be given on items that are not confidential.

Mr. Whitten: Compliments and thank you to Attorney Kathy Parks and District Attorney
Langer for the great job in drafting and reviewing this agreement.

Public Comment:




14.

Kris Thompson: This is the second apparent major settlement of an employment out of the
Sheriff’s Department. At $45,000, there must have been high risk of liability in this case. The
Commission should consider looking into what's going on in this department with some
transparency. Perhaps have a hearing in a public forum. These settlements are costing
taxpayer’s money ~ coming out of the general fund, as was a prior settlement. There’s a thought
that if it's an elected official, the County is powerless and can’t do anything. Mr. Thompson
does not believe this is accurate. The County has a lot of tools in order to investigate to
determine causes and remedy behavior. Tools in terms of the Fthics Commission, in terms of
making things public, publicizing, training, appropriation - there is a wide variety of tools to
correct behavior of this department and the Commission is encouraged to do so.

Vice-Chairman Gilman: The Board has been active in reviewing and analyzing with the desire to
lower the tax burdens for the community and County. It's possible to lower County property
taxes or some other forms of rebate. In order to accomplish this, a great deal of fiscal
responsibility needs to be seen from all departments. The County is working very hard at
running a lean and mean, fiscally responsible County government. Mr. Gilman suggests that the
County “drill down” on how to approach these types of issues. Writing these checks is a direct,
negative impact on the County’s goal to work with County folks and voters to see rebates,
Money spent on this kind of issue dilutes the opportunity. It is time to “soul search” on how the
County is run carefully and how money is managed.

Chairman McBride: The legal team has done a great job in negotiating this (settlement) and this
is the best time to put this item to rest.

Motion: Approve Melissa Reed Settlement Agreement for $45,000.00 and consideration arising
out of the employment of Ms. Reed with the Storey County Sheriff's Office and authorizing the
County Manager to sign the agreement. Discussion of the matter may include Board
involvement - which it has, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

Revised Motion:

Motion: Approve the motion to approve the $45,000.00 settlement consideration plus all of the
terms and conditions included in the settlement documents and hereby authorize the County
Manager to sign the settlement agreement. Discussion of the matter may include Board
involvement - which it has, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

Director of Emergency Management Joe Curtis:

* CERT volunteers were recently trained in the use of three trailers the County obtained
through grants to provide shelter and services as needed on an emergency basis. The
trailers are fully equipped with cots, generator, and comfort kits, among other items.

e Another CERT training will be held for volunteers in the Lockwood area.




e The Comstock Foundation for History and Culture will conduct guided tours of the Sutro
Tunnel site on September 24th and 25%. More information to come.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

e The local car club held a car show last weekend.

¢ There are over 250 cars registered for the Hot August Nights kick-off this year on July 29th
and 30t. Communication is going out to merchants with information regarding street
closures and the cruise, time of awards, in order to prepare for this event.

» The “Bull-nanza” event scheduled for August 13% has been postponed for a year.

¢ The marketing campaign for “The Way it Was Rodeo” has been kicked off and has been
extremely well received.

» Atarecent VCTC board meeting, the “Below the Surface” video campaign was discussed.
Three of the ten videos have been promoted - each video has received over 100,000 views.

Commissioner McGuffey: Has there been a conclusion regarding the July 4th fireworks?

Mr. Dotson: Fire Department investigation is still pending. Most likely there will be a credit and any
funds returned would go to next year’s 4t of July.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:
e The County has received notification of several grant awards:

1. State Emergency Response Commission - funds for this grant come from the
hazardous materials permit fees paid by Nevada business ~ in the amount of
$25,700 to purchase a communications tower in TRI and which will improve public
safety communications in that area;

2. United We Stand - funds for this grant come from the United We Stand license
plates. The County receives $25,000 from this grant to purchase a video
surveillance system for the County Courthouse and narcotic lock boxes for the Fire
Protection District;

3. The Fire Department received a grant in the amount of $150,000 from FEMA - a
Safer Grant - to purchase breathing air apparatus;

4. The District Attorney’s Office received a grant through the Nevada Attorney
General’s Office - Violence Against Women Act, in the amount of $20,200 -
supporting the victim’s services units.

» Ms. Nevin, along with Joe Curtis, will be going to Alabama for a Historic Preservation
Training Conference.

Commissioner McGuffey: Is there a possibility of obtaining a grant for cell service for emergency
situations in the Highlands where there is no cell service. There really needs to be cell service out
there,

Ms. Nevin: There is a tower in the Highlands - the challenge has been finding a provider for the
service. There may be grant opportunities for bringing in a portable cell site and this could be looked
at.

Mr. Whitten: There will be challenges as this is a private enterprise. The grant funds are usually
meant for local governments for emergency services. This can certainly be looked into. Austin

6




Osborne and Jason VanHavel work frequently with the tower people out there. It takes time to get in
the company’s queue.

Commissioner McGuffey: There really needs to be help out there (in the Highlands).

Mr. Whitten: There is a total of $279,000 in grants - not including USDA grants for the sewer project
and countless others received over the years. This is a lot of money and came in in less than a week.
It is hard to get these grants and harder to stay compliant. Non-compliance leads to no more grants
and possible return of funds. Thank you to Cherie Nevin and everyone who has worked with Cherie
on these projects.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

* Representatives from the United States Geological Survey (USGS) will speak at the August
2nd Commission meeting. Water quality and quantity surveys have been conducted since
the 1990’s of Mark Twain Estates and the Highlands. A summary of findings have been
provided. The details will be given at the August 2nd presentation. Notices have been sent
to Mark Twain and Virginia City Highlands representatives. A presentation will also be
given at a Planning Commission meeting.

» The United States Geological Survey representatives are surveyors - not regulators. The
purpose is not to regulate or fine, but to let people know what's going on.

¢ The USGS will share its findings and staff will come up with recommendations on
working with residents to determine what can be done to make things better.

» The Marlette Water System will be providing “no cost” tours of the Marlette-Hobart Water
System and will include Marlette Lake, the pumps, the flumes, and all that goes along
with it. This is scheduled for September 18t at 9AM until approximately 3:30 PM. Four-
wheel drive, high clearance vehicles are required. For additional information, contact Jay
Howard at 831-0494, or call Austin Osborne

» Work continues on the details of the Master Plan. The Master Plan will be heard by the
Planning Commission for adoption on August 4%, and presented to the County
Commission on August 16t for adoption or further review.

¢ Collective bargaining between the County and the union for general employees is
proceeding and moving forward.

Vice Chairman Gilman: Happy to hear that well studies are being done. The word needs to get out
to residents that if residents sign on to these studies, issues will be identified that can then be
addressed.

$t. Mary’s Art Center Executive Director A, Perry:
Commissioner McGuffey introduced Ms. Perry as the new director of St. Mary’s Art Center along
with Karl Gambrall, director of the building and grounds. Ms. Perry and Mr. Gambrall are doing a
fantastic job. '

Commissioner McGuffey explained the need for new mattresses at St. Mary’s. The rooms can be

rented and facilities are available for various types of functions - providing funds for the support of
the Art Center. Contributions are being accepted for the purchase of mattresses.

Ms. Perry:




Community support is greatly appreciated and the Art Center looks forward to
participating more in the community, focusing more on regional and local artisans.

A new artisan gallery has been opened. Workshops and classes are being offered.

St. Mary’s also has room rentals.

Looking forward to the future with St. Mary’s being more interactive. Thanks to everyone
for the support.

County Manager Whitten: It is important to recognize A. Perry, Vanessa Stephens, Molly Burnet,
Karl and the rest of the board for what is being done for one of the County’s treasurers. This building
is owned by the County with little to no funding provided by the County. Mr. Whitten is very
excited for the future and wishes the Director and the Board well.

Commission Board members are appointed to sit on various Boards. This is a lot of work for
Commissioners and they are to be applauded. Thank you to Commissioner McGuffey for his efforts
at St. Mary’s Art Center.

Economic Development Director Dean Haymore:

Many complaints have been filed since the new Nuisance Ordinance was passed. The
second phase - letters of condemnation - will be sent out shortly.
The new inspectors have been walking the boardwalk regarding repairs, and talking with
violators regarding use of trash bins for personal use and reminding of County rules.
Hard work continues at TRI and throughout the County. There are a few celebrations this
month:

1. The AquaMetals grand opening will be July 28t

2. July 29th - a private, invitation only, grand opening at Tesla;
Tesla has started construction of another 3 million square feet at its facility;
Power and mechanical systems are being installed on the Panasonic side of Tesla;
Fulcrum separation facility has been completed, with a grand opening anticipated in
August;
Chewy.com is now moving in with a temporary CFO being issued on its 560,000 square
foot building;
Thrive Markets will be going in where the Zulilly building is;
Work is being done on the having the first Marriott in TRL
A project is in the works to start a buffet luncheon/dinner, 24 hour, food venue.
Other projects continue in TRI with expansions and new development.
All companies at Tesla must have a Storey County business license, which also requires a
State of Nevada business license. Tesla has advised that one of its maintenance vendors
was notified that the State business license would be $35,000. This will be looked into.

Mr. Whitten: This information will be forwarded to Mike Kazmierski (EDAWN representative) to see
what can be done.

The current Painted Rock bridge cannot carry the weight of fire trucks. Fire Chief Hames
has asked if the bridge that was at Mustang could be put at Painted Rock. This will be
looked at - there will be costs associated with foundations and so forth. This would be a
good thing for Painted Rock and a good use for that bridge, which would be in addition to
the current bridge.

8




Commissioner McGuffey: The V & T has one or two sections of bridge they need to get rid of.
Mr. Haymore: Will look at this for another bridge crossing that is needed near Tesla.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
¢ Thinking about the companies at TRI and what they do is fascinating. A newsletter has
been developed with the thought to put a spotlight on some of those companies.
o Jim Miller, former Sheriff, is selling tickets to the Storey County Jeep Posse annual
barbeque. This will be held Saturday, July 30th. Tickets are $15.
e July 30% is the deadline for bill draft requests (BDR's) to go in for the 2017 Legislative
session.

1. The County continues to have communication and functional problems with the
Nevada Commission for the reconstruction of the V & T railroad. Mixed signals are
coming from members of the Commission - including amounts to come from
Storey County being misstated. These problems have continued for years.

2. Mr. Whitten intends to submit either as Storey County’s one and only bill draft, or
through Senator Settlemeyer or Assemblyman Wheeler, a BDR that would ask for
consideration to re-configure the V & T Commission.

3. Mr. Whitten receives reports weekly when the train runs with gross revenue and
ridership figures, along with cost figures for the train only. Most of the time,
money is lost - just on the train - not including marketing and other items.

» An email was received from Hugh Gallagher saying thanks to everyone who expressed
concern during his recent illness.

15. BOARD COMMENT (No Action ~ No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:
e Noticed that the Virginia City signs at the ends of time can now be read clearly,
especially at night.

Mr. Whitten: Local artist, Nick Fain, was commissioned about a year ago to make new signs.
Initially, there was no background beyond the signs making them difficult to see. Nick fixed this
with a darker background, which faded. Mr. Fain did not like the signs and wanted to fix them,
which has been done. Mr. Whitten is very proud of Nick for this work.

o The Comstock Car Show was held last Saturday. It was smaller than last year but with
a bigger variety of cars. The cars were able to park on the baseball field with
permission from school personnel. There were no problems and participants
appreciated that parking was on lawn versus pavement.

» Thanks to the County for providing a bounce house for the kids at the car show.

» Attended the Lockwood 100t birthday where there was a very good turn-out. It was a
great event.

Vice-Chairman Gilman:
¢ The Lockwood Centennial Celebration was held over the weekend. Congratulations to
the community - the event was well-attended. A DVD is being created tracking the 100

9




16.

years of development in Lockwood. Hopefully a copy can be showcased in the
Courthouse.

Mr. Whitten: This (DVD) could be included in the old jail with other items that are being
collected.

Chairman McBride:
¢ Read a Proclamation from the Lockwood Centennial Committee recognizing Lance
Gilman as Honorary Mayor.

Vice Chair Gilman: Thank you to the entire community, this was truly an honor. Most
importantly, the community is engaged in taking care of its own, taking care of the community,
the seniors, and the Rainbow Bend area.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a Department of Homeland
Security Grant award administered through the State of Nevada Division of Emergency
Management in the amount of $58,386.55 for upgrades to the Computer Aided Dispatch System
at the Storey County Communications Center and authorization for Cherie Nevin and or Joe
Curtis to sign all associated grant documentation.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin presented this item. The County has received a
State Homeland Security Grant which was applied for in May 2016. In June, the project was
presented to the State Homeland Security Finance Committee. Notification was received in July
that the County’s application was approved in the amount of $58,386.55, with a small match in
the amount of $13,834.45.

Communications Director Dave Ballard:

e This project is huge - providing technical support, advisors and trainers, and ties the
County’s CAD system into the EMD (Emergency Medical Dispatching and Emergency
Police Dispatching).

» Approximately 20 days of training will be done in October

e The current system is a “flip card” system.

¢ The automated system will allow every call to be evaluated and adjustments can be
made early on.

¢ Most larger dispatch centers in the country use this system and it will be most beneficial
for emergency police dispatching.

¢ The system will provide a national set of standardized questions which will be asked of
the caller, put into an incident report, and pushed out to the officers on the street.

o These funds must be spent by the end of August with the program up and running
within 90 days after.

¢ Hopefully the system will be up and running by October 26,

e This is a step in the direction of being nationally accredited.

¢ Douglas County, and possibly Washoe County, use this system.

e The “fire side” of this system may be looked at in the future.

10




17.

18.

» Liability issues are a big part. If the County does everything it is supposed to, and there
is a lawsuit for something that happens, the County is provided defense by legal teams
and protected by this priority dispatch.

County Manager Whitten: Thanks to the Sheriff and Chief Hames for being exceptionally
supportive of Dave and Cherie in this process. Thank you to Cherie and Dave for the work and
efforts in applying for this grant.

Mr. Ballard reviewed the training procedures provided by this system. Dispatchers will be
trained and certified. Pool Pact has picked up the bill for a lot of the training.

Motion: Approve to accept Department of Homeland Security Grant award administered
through the State of Nevada Division of Emergency Management in the amount of $58,386.55 for
upgrades to the Computer Aided Dispatch System at the Storey County Communications Center
and authorization for Cherie Nevin and or Joe Curtis to sign all associated grant documentation,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of accounts payable check number 85985, date
06/30/16 for $4,500.00 to the Bucket of Blood Saloon.

Chairman McBride having a pecuniary interest in this item recused himself from discussion and
vote on this item,

County Manager Whitten presented this item. This is the quarterly payment for use of the
Courthouse parking lot and the dirt lot. The County is proceeding with the final purchase of this
property and with the eventual paving of the lot.

Public Comment:

Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Reviewed Marshal McBride's financial
disclosure statement filed for re-election as a County Commissioner where Commissioner
McBride answered “none” to a question requiring a list of real property valued over $2,500
owned. Commissioner McBride has recused himself for having pecuniary interest, yet answered
“none” to the question regarding real property. Between the Bucket of Blood and family trust
there is a lot of it.

District Attorney Langer: Will look into the issue of how a property is held.

Motion: Approval of accounts payable check number 85985, date 06/30/16 for $4,500.00 to the
Bucket of Blood Saloon, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded
by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of ballot language for Storey County Ballot
Question 16-001, “Shall the Storey County Board of Commissioners enact an ordinance to
impose, for the period beginning on January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2026, annual
increases in the taxes on certain motor vehicle fuels based on construction inflation not to exceed
7.8 percent annually for the purpose of funding repairs and maintenance of roads (and projects

11




that will reduce traffic congestion and enhance public safety) in Storey County” to be placed on
the 2016 General Election ballot.

County Manager Whitten presented this item. NACO recommended language for all Counties
from a consistency standpoint with the freedom to adapt the language to specific circumstances
in each jurisdiction to better explain to the voters what it may mean. The decision on this item
needs to be done before the end of July.

AB191 of the 2015 Legislative Session provided for a statewide ballot question - “should
there be fuel tax indexing” to be applied to every County except Washoe, which already
has fuel tax indexing.

To be successful, this has to pass in a statewide majority. County’s where this issue passes
can then initiate fuel tax indexing,.

Historically, tax increase ballot questions do not fare well.

Mr. Whitten is hopeful as the County has no desire to mimic Washoe County in terms of
massive tax rates.

If this passes on a Statewide basis and in Storey County, it would be the County’s primary
focus more on diesel fuel then on gasoline fuel. There are already beneficial factors
received from gasoline fuel tax - there is zero from diesel. The County does not want to
dramatically increase the cost of gasoline sales.

(Diesel) fuel consumptions will generate a lot of monies with a one or two cent fuel tax
which will go specifically to roads.

Mr. Whitten is a proponent of this increase. As reflected in the General Fund, “roads” is
the bigger user of funds being transferred as there is never enough fuel tax to support the
roads.

An example, the County will be honoring its commitment to cape seal the private portion
of Cartwright Road. This is in addition to all of the roads in the other areas, including
TRI, which has large numbers of big rigs and employees.

The impact would not be major, yet the additional revenue source will go a long way for
road repairs and will become a factor in the developer payback, allowing the County to
get out of debt faster.

A few questions still need to be worked out with TRI regarding the developer agreement.
The County would never, and should never, abuse this to any level - it should stay low.
Whatever it is, it would be an annual adjustment like a cost of living increase.

Tom Gransberry discussed several points put out by NACO and the Department of Motor
Vehicles.

If the ballot question fails, nothing will change.
Currently the County receives 10.65 cents for every gallon (gasoline) sold in the County -
this will not change.
At this time, tax on diesel goes to the State and the State highway fund, and the Federal
Government. No diesel tax revenue comes to local governments.
If the ballot question passes, the points to consider are:
1. All indexing revenue will be under the County’s control working in conjunction
with DMV. The County will have a lot of input on what projects would be
completed;

12




2. Indexing from diesel will come to the County. Fuel indexing from the diesel in TRI
would be a good revenue source;
Indexing will include the federal tax on gas, propane, and methane fuel sales;
4. DMV projections (if the ballot question is passed, it will last for 10 years);
o 1% growth in gallons sold for 10 years - Storey County could see about
9.3 million dollars in revenue. Tracking of 2016 sales shows the gallons have
increased approximately 12%. A very real increase in revenue could be seen.

L

An important item in AB191: If the ballot is passed, the County could take debt out with the
indexing as a new source of revenue. In taking debt out, the established rate would have to be
kept for 5 years. If debt is not taken out, the indexing factor can be changed every year - it can be
lowered to something very minute and still generate revenue.

Lastly, the indexing factor could be increased to 7.8%. On a gallon of gasoline - with the County,
State, and Federal taxes, this is approximately 53.2 cents. An increase to 7.8%, would equal an
additional 4.1 cents. 7.8% increase sounds like a lot, been looking at 4.1 cents, the increase is not
terribly high.

Vice-Chairman Gilman, having a pecuniary interest in TRI, recused himself from discussion and
vote this item.

Chair McBride: Thought the tax in Storey County was 4 cents per gallon.

Mr. Gransberry: There are four different levies combined. The County option right now is levied
at 4 cents, which could increase to 9 cents - this is one levy. The NACO packet shows all four of
the levies. All four were combined when discussing the 10.65 (currently received by the
County).

Mr. Whitten: Propane was mentioned. The County is focused on diesel tax, What is the
flexibility in either not choosing or lowering indexing to a net sum “zero” practically on propane.
A lot of people are forced to have propane in this County. Staff would want to know all of the
options in these various areas. A judicious, conservative approach would be taken to minimize
impact in regards to propane,

Chair McBride: Currently residential customers do not pay a tax on propane.

Mr. Gransberry: Will ask questions - it may be propane for use in motor vehicles. This indexing
is for motor vehicle fuels,

Commissioner McGuffey: Asked this question of NACO - some of the smaller counties are
sticking to a 3 cent tax - will the County be able to pick and choose a fuel? Say the County would
just want to do diesel.

Mr. Gransberry: Contacted DMV and was told there would not be an indexing factor for diesel
and a different one for gas. Additional research will be done regarding this and something in
writing from DMV will be requested. Whatever factor is chosen, it will be across the board - gas,
diesel, and the other minor fuels.

13




Mr. Whitten: The County would have no intent to bond (utilize debt) against future revenues
where you would have to stay at the same rate.

It is anticipated that a large truck stop/ gas station will locate in TRI - this will be a game
changer.

Commissioner McGuffey: Most of the trucks stopping there will be interstate. It will not be local
folks paying the taxes.

Chair McBride: Everyone else collects a diesel tax except Storey County.

Mr. Whitten: When the County indexes, it is understood the monies will go to multiple places.
NDOT will have some revenues that can be applied to projects in Storey County. It can be
assumed that it would be NDOT’s intent to help the local governments that pass and enact fuel

tax indexing by devoting those funds back. It would be in the County’s best interests in the eyes
of NDOT that the indexing should be passed.

The 7.8% increase is a big number. The County cannot advocate one way or the other. Mr.
Whitten would suggest consideration of a lower number such as 3% as a method to better sell it
to the voters of the County.

Chair McBride: The Board is not bound to the 7.8%

Mr. Whitten: No, it's a “not to exceed” cap. The cap can be lowered - sending a message to the
voters that it will never go above 3%.

Mr. Gransberry: Was the Carson City ballot 3% or “not to exceed” 3 cents?

Mr. Whitten: Pretty sure 3%. The County’s competition is primarily Washoe County and
Reno/Sparks at TRI. It is staff's recommendation to modify the language of 7.8% down to 3.0%.

Commissioner McGuffey: This is up to the voters. The Commission has been empowered to put
it on the ballot and ask if the voters would like to do this.

Mr. Gransberry: Can check with other counties to see what is being proposed.
Commissioner McGuffey: It should be consistent.

Mr. Whitten: A decision really needs to be made today. Looking at 7.8% is an intimidating
number that will be difficult for many people. 3% is more palatable - it can even be 1 or 1.5.

Chair McBride: If there was a 3% cap but the street and highway construction inflation rate for a
given year was 1.5%, you would have to be at 1.5% - you couldn’t go to 3%?

14




Mr. Gransberry: The producer price index is what DMV will be looking at - this has gone down
because inflation has been lower. You can go with something lower than the PPI - butitis a
good question, can you go with something higher if the PPI is lower?

Chair McBride: There are a lot of inflationary indexes - here it is highway construction, which
has it's own line item for inflation. Right?

Mr. Gransberry: The bill was specific on what producer price index would be looked at. The
numbers are done for different geographical areas. The 3% would be telling the voters that some
new revenue is needed, but that the County is lowering to less than what the legislation allows.
Proponents need to discuss the potential of diesel and gas sales at TRI being very high.

Mr. Whitten: The language has been adjusted to provide that information. Other counties do not
have the potential for growth in gas stations.

Chair McBride: Would have liked spreadsheets that would show the potential tax collection
would be for how many gallons sold. The Commission is going to be setting an arbitrary rate.

Mr. Whitten: It's an arbitrary cap - not the rate at this stage.

M. Gransberry: If this could be postponed with a special meeting set, numbers could be run and
brought back to the Commission. Mr. Gransberry has been tracking this information for Storey
County.

Mr, Whitten: There is no definitive answer on this issue. Different people will give different
opinions.

Chair McBride: The County is at a good starting point. With the indexing, what the Commission
feels is a reasonable cap might be a good start.

Mr. Whitten: Staff recommendation is to alter the 7.8% as indicated in the Staff Summary to 3%,
and in the next line, change “most likely establish a substantially lower rate” by taking out
“substantially”. Basically, despite the inflationary rate, this will be a governor that the County
will not go up more than “X” amount.

Public Comment:
Storey County Resident, Nicole Barde: There was only one attachment in the public packet -
two had been mentioned.

Mr. Whitten: That can be provided.

Ms. Barde: There was a comment that Washoe indexes and that the County does not want to do
that. Language in this item says “indexing” - how is that different than Washoe?

Mr. Whitten: May have mis-spoken. The County does not want to do it to the degree of Washoe.

15




Looking at Washoe's fuel tax factors, Washoe County is substantially due to RTC support, roads,
indexing, etc. Washoe has the ability to index regardless of whether this passes - it was given in
a previous legislative session. Storey County does not want to rise to Washoe's rate standards.

Mr. Gransberry: Believes Washoe is tied to the PPL.

Ms. Barde: It was stated the focus would be on diesel versus gas. Mr. Gransberry indicated no, it
would be on all.

Mr. Gransberry: The conversation was there couldn’t be three different factors - an indexing
factor has to be chosen.

Mr. Whitten: The point is, while the County does a lot in gas, a huge amount is done in diesel -
that the County gets nothing from. The beneficial factors that would be shown in a spreadsheet
would be based on diesel fuel sales, not gas fuel sales.

Ms. Barde: In order to get the money from diesel, does it mean 3% increase on everything?

Mr. Whitten: Assuming this to be true, this becomes a factor as to what the tax will be is
modeled. The 3% is a cap - adjustments can be made with that cap.

Ms. Barde: Understood - but whatever is done will also increase gas.
Mr, Whitten: Yes.

Commissioner McGuffey: The County is already collecting some tax from gas. If this were to go
through - say 3% - is this on top of the rate already in place for gas?

Mr. Whitten: It would be 3% on top of it.
Chair McBride: If this legislation was to pass, 10.6% is the floor.
Discussion at the Commissioner’s table.

Ms. Barde: This sounds like it has to be passed to read it. It's understood this is up against the
clock, but it does not seem right.

Mr. Whitten: There is indication that at least two Counties have taken a 3 cent versus 3%
approach. Anyone who has questions or comments, please summarize and submit them as soon
as possible to be addressed at the special meeting.

Ms. Barde: If the money stays in Storey County, this needs to be clarified.

Mr. Whitten: There is no adaptation of NACO's language. NACO research has confirmed that
monies raised from the indexing would stay in Storey County. It is understood that it is not
totally in the County’s control - portions go to the State, to the Feds, but used for projects in the
County where the indexing happens.

16




Commissioner McGuffey: NDOT will have access to a percentage of the money to use in Storey
County.

Ms. Barde: The different agencies will get the money to do projects in Storey County.

Mr. Whitten: This is what is being told. Bill Hoffman from NDOT, indicated this is a very
important ballot question as it will provide specific monies for projects in the counties that pass
it.

Ms. Barde: By increasing this tax, will the State stop providing money from other sources. This

could be an unintended consequence.

Mr. Whitten: Who knows with the State? The approach of using a “cents” per gallon rather than
percentage will be looked at. Staff recommends to continue this item to July 27, 2016.

Motion: Continue approval of ballot language for Storey County Ballot Question 16-001, to July
27,2016 at a Special meeting, at 9 AM, to be held in the District Court, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A.

TOTMHON

_ =

R

RO Z2Z

H20 ENGINEERING, INC. - Contractor / 189 Granada Drive ~ San Luis Obispo, CA (equip
install.)

CMD, INC. - Contractor / 4495 Delancey Drive ~ Las Vegas (contractor)

ONQGLOBAL, INC. - Professional / 7190 West Red Hawk Drive ~ Peoria, AZ (consultant)
ITS LOGISTICS, LLC - Contractor / 555 Vista Blvd ~ Sparks (logistics and transportation)
GENDIST, INC. - General / 1200 Venice Drive {distribution center) TRI

THE STERLING GROUP NV - General / 294 East Moana ~ Reno (kiosk food)

KYOEI ELECTRONICS CO., LTD - Contractor / SHIGA JAPAN (equipment install)
SETPOINT SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 2385 Commerce Way ~ Ogden, UT (equipment
install.)

THE DUBE’ GROUP, INC. - Professional / 316 California ~ Reno (architect)

CONTROLS & ROBOTICS TECH, LLC -~ Professional / 2133 Jill Way ~ Upland, CA
(consultant)

BULB DADDY - General / 1100 Terminal Way ~ Reno (LED bulb sales)

STAGECOACH PERCHERONS - General / 5025 Abilene Drive ~ Stagecoach, NV (wagon
rides)

. MCCLAIN’S MOBILE MUSIC & DJ - General / 1306 Grassland Rd ~ Dayton (mobile D)

SYSCON AUTOMATION GROUP, LLC - Professional / 8750 South Sandy ~ Sandy, UT (equip
install.)

CO-9LTD dba TALENT FRAMEWORK - General / 5596 Longley Lane ~ Reno (staffing agency)
AQUA METALS RENO, INC. - General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling facility) TRI
THRIVE MARKET, INC. - General / 700 Milan (ECommerce Facility) TRI

Vice Chairman Gilman left the meeting,

17




Dean Haymore, Community Development Director, requested approval of items A. through O., and
continuance of items P. and Q.

Motion: Approve Items A. through O., Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Motion: Continue Items P. and Q., Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
None.

21. ADJOURNMENT
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 1:01

Respectfully Submitted,

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

18




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible approval Payroll checks dated 07/29/2016 for $400,504.56 and dated
08/04/2016 for $187,774.05 and $112,220.19. Accounts Payable checks dated
07/25/2016 for $194,553.56 and dated 08/03/2016 for $1,016,365.05 and $18,830.59.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials; Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

G“’l/aounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

1
[ -

Agenda Item No.




Rept: PRO510aA STOREY COUNTY PAYROLL SYSTEM
Run: 07/27/16 13:07:33 Check Register
Payroll Type: Regular Check Date: 07/29/16 Pericd-end Date:

Payroll Groups: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Check/ Emp %/

DD % Ded # Payee Amount
Total User Transfer for EFTES: 68,350.62
Total Deductor Checks; 9,335.68
Total Employee Checks: 2,013,459
Total Employee Direct Deposit: 303,511.61
Total Employes Deds Xferd on Dir Dep File: 3,978.85
Total User Transfer to Deductor: 13,314.31
Total Disbursed: 400,504.5%

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Page 5
PRELIMINARY

07/24/16

CHATRMAN COMMISSIONER COMMISSTONER

COMPTROLLER

TREASURER




Rept: PROS1CA STOREY COUNTY PAYROLL SYSTEM

Run: {8/04/16 11:22:43 Check Register
Payroll Type: Deductor Check Date: 08/04/16
Check/ Emp #/
DD # Ded # Payee , Amount
Total User Transfer for EFTPS: .00
Total Deductor Checks: 187,714.05

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER

CCMPTROLLER

TREASURER

Page

2
FINAL




Rept: PROS510A STOREY COUNTY PAYROLL SYSTEM Page 2

Run: 08/04/16 11:27:33 Check Register FINAL
Payroll Type: Deductor Check Date: 08/04/16
Check/ Emp #/
DD # Ded # Payee Amount
Total User Transfer for EFTPS;: : .00
Total Deducter Checks: 112,220.19

Approved by the Storey County Beard of Commissioners:

CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER

COMPTROLLER

TREASURER




Report Nao: PBl39%0 STOREY COUNTY Page 1

Run Date : D7/28/1% TYPED CHECKS REGISTER
CHECK FISCAL CHECK CHECK
NUMBER YEAR RECORD# VENDOR NAME AMOUNT TOTAL DATE INVOICE# DESCRIPTION
2017 733 1,692.36 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE 2016
2017 733 1,154.43 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL - JUNE
2017 733 49.24 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 27.57 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 11.82 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 23.63 ZND QTR 2016 APRIL - JUEN
2017 733 65,805.66 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 1,596.82 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 93,466.48 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 7332 84.40 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 939.51 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 479.50 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 815.33 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
2017 733 1,661.75 2ND QTR 2016 APRIL-JUNE
86301 PUBLIC AGENCY COMPENSATIO 167,808.50 7/25/16
2017 734 26,745.06 AUG-SEPT 2016 W/DEDUCTIONS
26302 3T CC SENIOR CENTER(VC} 26,745.06 7/25/1%6
TYPED CHECKS TOTAL 1%4,553.586
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REVIEW AND AUTHORIZATION DATE
COMPTROLLER
TREASURER
CHAIRMAN
COMMISSIONER
COMMISSIONER




Report Nao: PB1315 STOREY CQUNTY Page 1

Run Date : 08/03/186 CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDOR INVOICE DESCRIPTION B/C # DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
86303 AIRGAS NCN INC
EMS SUPPLIES 8/05/16 77177 225 .64 225.64
86304 ALADTEC, INC
FF STAFFING SYSTEM 8/05/16 77779 1,995,00 1,995.00
86305 ALL CLEAR FIRE TRAINING &
QUAD COQUNTY HAZMAT DRILL B/05/16 17726 4,297.00 4,287.00
86306 ALPINE LOCK INC
VC SENIOR CENTER LOCKS 8/05/16 17645 202.50
POOL-KNOB, LOCK,KEYS 8/05/16 17661 82.80 285.00
86307 ALSCO INC
ST 71 LAUNBRY 8/05/16 77778 10.60
ST 72 LAUNERY 8/05/16 77718 8.77
ST 75 LAUNDRY 8/05/18 77778 16.52
ST 74 LAUNDRY 8/05/16 77778 10.52
SHOP 8/05/18 17646 39.04
SHCPp 8/05/16 77646 44 .14
CH 8/05/16 77646 37.30 1l66.89
86308 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP
8/05/16 77716 11.88% 11.99
86309 ARC HEALTH AND WELLNESS
SICA STEPHENS 8/05/16 77775 387.08
8109 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 17687 410.36
5087 - PHYSICAL 8/05/1¢6 77687 410.36
5085 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 77687 410,36
8042 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 TT687 410.36
5037 - PHYSICAL 8/05/18 FT687 507.36
8035 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 717687 507.36
$121 - PHYSICAL 8/08/16 1687 507.36
5023 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 77687 456.92
§11¢ - PHYSICAL B8/05/16 17687 456.92
S034 -~ PHYSICAL 8/05/1%8 17687 456.92
5038 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 17687 507,38
8033 - PHYSICAL 8/05/16 17687 507.3¢
S014 - QUIRK 8/05/18 77687 507.36 6,443.44
86310 BACUS, RICHARD & DOREEN
TAXES PAID IN FULL 8/05/16 7675 34.77 34.77
86311 BENDER, DEBORAHN
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77717 30.00 30.00
8631z BERRY ENTERPRISES
’ COUNTER REPAIR 8/05/16 77710 240,00
RADTQO REPAIR 8/05/16 TI708 651.00
QUAD MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 8/05/16 777686 16,020.00 16,911.00
86313 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
EMSE SUPPLIES 8/05/186 77780 189.25 189.25
86314 BRANDON, RUSSELL D
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION 8/05/16 T7680 £0.00 60.00
86315 BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS
8/05/16 7118 76.50
JULY 14-27, 2016 B/05/16 77718 485.00 571.50
86316 BURTON'S FIRE INC
FR-MTRROR HOUSING ETC. 8/058/16 77678 308.69
WT-71 PUMP GSKT, HEAD 8/05/16 77678 1,632,723 2,541.42
86317 CANYON GENERAL IMPROVEMEN
LOCKWOOD SUB SWER & WATER 8/05/16 77684 46 .50
LOCKWOCD GARDEN WATER 8/05/16 771722 11.02 57.52

86318 CAPITAL CITY AUTQO PARTS




Report No: PBl31ls STOREY COUNTY Page 2

Run Date : 08/03/1¢ CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECE
NUMBER VENDOR INVOICE DESCRIPTICN P/o & DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
PW37816- MIRROR 8/05/16 77647 134.00
STQCK FILTERS 8/05/16 77647 81.60
SHOP- NEEDLE 8/05/18 77647 10.99
PARKS-V BELT B/05/16 77647 10.06
STOCK FILTERS 8/05/16 77647 50.62
FRE6G644 -DUS BOOT 8/05/16 77647 13.12 300.3%8
86319 CAPITAL SANTTATION CO
122-0000384-1149-2 LCKWD 8/05/16 77730 117.60
ST CO TOURISM 8/05/16 77718 83.97 201.57
86320 CARSON CITY JUVENILE PROB
PER COOQOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 8/05/16 77669 5.,284.25 5,284.25
86321 CARSON DODGE CHRYSLER INC
FR565598 STUD, NUT 8/05/16 77677 24.52 24.52
86322 CELLCO PARTNERSHIE
ACCT 942057617-00001 8/05/16 77781 400.10
P.WHITTEN 8/05/16 77667 40.01
I'T IPAD VERIZON 8/05/16 77768 40.01
IPAD DATA 8/05/16 77711 80.02 560.14
86323 CENTURY PUBLISHING €O INC
VISITOR GUIDE 8/05/16 TTT20 6,107.46 6,107.46
86324 CFOA
STOREY, CHAPMAN & HANSEN B/05/16 77792 100.00
STOREY, CHAPMAN & HANSEN B/05/18 77772 150.00 250.00
86325 CHIEF SUPPLY CORP
PBT STRAWS 8/05/16 11700 60.39 60.39
B6326 CITY OF CARSCN TREASURER
STOREY CO DRUG COURT FEES 8/05/18 77705 40.00 40.00
86327 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV
GARNISHMENT DISBURSED 8/05/186 77704 192.31 192.31
86328 COLORADO PRINTING COMBANY
VFD RECRUITMENT BROCHURES 8/05/16 77783 1,378.10 1,378.10
86329 COMMUNITY CHEST INC
AUGUST2016 PROGRAM SUPPOR B8/05/16 77642 11,833.33 11,833,133
86330 COMSTOCK CHRONICLE (VC}
MP PUBLIC NOTICE 8/05/16 77672 112.13
CAPE SEAL BIDS JULY 22 8/05/16 77650 43.88 156.01
86331 COMSTOCK GOLD MILL LLC
8/05/16 77723 64.00
JULY 14-27, 2018 8/05/16 77723 8.00
.50 X 18 TICKETS 8/05/18 77723 9.00
8/05/16 77723 6.00
8/05/16 77723 40.00
8/05/16 77723 776.00 903.00
86332 COSTCO HSBC BUS SOLUTIONS
POOL CONCESSIONS 8/05/16 77648 523.59 523.59
86333 CUSTOM GLASS
GLASS DOOR FRONT 8/05/1%6 77707 10,050,008 10,050.00
86334 DAIOHS USA INC
5T 72 WATER 8/05/16 77784 73.95
5T 71 WATER B/05/16 77784 30,95
ST 74 WATER 8/05/16 71784 36.95
ST 75 WATER 8/05/16 77784 30.95
8/05/186 77681 25.95
CH DRNX WATER- AUS B8/05/186 TTETO 51.90
WATER 8/05/16 77760 25,95

WATER LOCKWOCD B/05/16 17693 32.856




Report No: PRBRL31: STOREY COUNTY Page 3

Run Date : 08/03/16 CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDOR INVOICE DESCRIPTICN P/C # DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
359.45
86335 KRAVITX, SCHNITZER & JOHN
GARNISHMENT DISBURSED 8/05/16 77703 117.33
GARNISHMENT DISBURSED 8/05/16 77703 119.21 237.24
86336 DYNAGRAPHIC PRINTING, INC
VFD GRANT - BOCKLETS 8/05/16 77791 3,065.00
VFD GRANT- BOOKLETS 8/05/16 77791 2,395.,00 5,460.00
86337 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC
80 STOCK 8/05/16 77649 53.36
FIRE 8/05/16 77649 82.15-
FIRE 8/05/16 77649 61.26~
LW-MOWER BATTERY B8/05/16 77649 50.75
5066025- BRAKE PADS 8/05/16 77649 47,18
PW25254-SENSOR 8/05/16 77649 306,44
PW25254- SENSOR B/05/16 77649 48.62
50 STOCK PADS 8/05/18 77649 33,386
5051839-WHEL HUB 8/05/16 77649 71.15-
$058904-IDLER,V BELTS B/05/16 77649 344 .92
5058904 RAD CAP B/05/16 77649 17.99
5051839- PLATE, NUT 8/05/1%6 77649 45.22
SHOP-STAND STEEL B8/05/16 77649 13.44
SHOP-COAT STEEL 8/05/18% 77649 5.67
FR62244 GENERATOR 8/05/16 77649 224.16
FR62244 DEL 48 PG g/05/16 77649 i22.47
PW36545-DEL 48PG B8/05/16 77649 122.47
PW25254- 02 SENSOR 8/05/16 77649 212 .66~
FRG62244- CEN 306 g/0s/16 77649 74.73
FR65611- GEARROX 8/05/1¢6 77649 211.44
FR65597 AIR FILTER PANEL 8/05/16 775649 28.90
FRE5611- BOLT 8/05/16 77649 25.47
S05183%9~ HUB REPAIR 8/05/18 77649 161.44
5066025 HUB 8/05/1%6 77649 143.03
PW25254- 02 SENSOR 8/05/16 77649 48.62
5058904 HALOGEN CAPS 8/05/16 77649 13.54
FR R75-DEL94RPG B/05/15 77649 280.34
5062212 REGULATOR 8/05/16 77649 119.40 2,115,774
86338 FARMER BROS CO
COFFEE-~ LOCKWOOD 8/05/16 77746 59.45 59.45
86339 FAST GLASS INC
FR C2500 8/05/16 77683 149.00 149.00
86340 FASTENAL COMPANY
MOP HEAD & HANDLE, JAIL 8/05/16 7768% 67.61 67.61
86341 FIRE SERVICE SPEC &SUPPLY
VFD GRANT - FFI INST XIT 8/05/16 77790 580.00 580.00
86342 FLEET HEATING & AIR INCOR
REPLACEMENT OF AIR/HEATER 8/05/16 77724 8,927.00 8,927.00
86343 GLADDING, EDWARD A.
BLACK  AD140238 8/05/16 77696 3,876.00
SCDA ADMIN 8/05/16 77696 2,820.00 6,696.00
36344 GOLD HILL HOTEL INC
WATER DEPOSIT REFUND 8/05/16 77651 100.00 100.00
86345 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETRCLEUM
LW- UNL & DSL 8/05/186 77650 762.37
LW- UNL & DSL 8/05/1%6 77690 797.30
TRI- UNL & DSL 8/05/16 77690 640.55
TRI~ UNL & DSL 8/05/16 77690 637.68 2,B837.30

86246 GRANSBERY, TOM




Report No: PB131s STOREY COUNTY Page 4
Run Date : 08/03/16 CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDOR INVOICE DESCRIPTION P/O # DATE TRANS#H AMOUNT TOTAL
15.5 X45 8/05/16 77702 745.50
14.50 X45 8/05/16 TTTO2 652.00 1,3%7.50
86347 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES
QTRLY PEST CONTROL 8/05/16 77761 35.00
CH QUARTERLY B/05/16 77652 100.00
SCCC- 10 S E 8/05/16 77652 35.00
372 S C QUARTERLY 8/05/16 77652 35.00
160 TOLL 8/05/16 77652 35,00
WATER PLNT 8/05/16 77652 35.00
MTCC-QUARTERLY 8/05/16 77652 65,00 340.00
86348 GTE INVESTMENTS LLC :
POND PEAK RENT 8/05/16 77712 342.14
PN PK UTILITIES 8/05/16 77713 40.00 382.14
86349 HD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD
SEWER TESTS 8/05/16 77664 147.84 147,84
86350 HIGH DESERT MICROTIMAGING
IMG-FLM BK 65-69 8/05/16 77771 284 .81 284,81
86351 HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHO
2/05/16 77725 44 .00
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77725 245.00
VIETMAN HELICOFTER GROUP 8/05/16 77725 273.00 562.00
86352 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE
KEY COPILES TRI CONF RM g/05/16 77762 $.85
OLD JAIL PADLOCK 8/05/16 77653 21.98
VC-BUG SPRAY 8/05/16 77653 19.27
RETURN MATERIALS 8/05/16 77653 31.86-
OLD JAIL-SCREWS 8/05/16 77653 12.81
VC-INSECT KILLER B/05/16 77653 29.91
VC PARK-SUPPLIES B/05/16 77653 71.76
YC DRIP SYSTEM 8/05/16 77653 28,54
SHOP-AIRLINE FILTER 8/05/16 77653 23.97
VCSC-TILE ADHESIVE RETURN 8/05/16 77653 55.97-
VC-IRRIGATION FOR PLANTER 8/05/16 77653 68,33
MECH SHOP-MATERTALS 8/05/186 77653 42.08
MECH SHOP-MATERIALS 8/05/16 77653 35.53
VC PARK PLANTS 8/05/16 77653 155.68
MECH SHCP-MATERIALS 8/05/16 77653 114.00
MECH SHCP-SHELVING 8/05/16 77653 285.10
WTR PLNT-PLIERS 8/05/16 77653 39,94
SC-STUDS & DOGCR 8/05/16 77653 119.59
VC- SOTL 8/05/16 77653 63.76
FLOOR PATCH g8/05/16 77767 12,93 1,067.20
86353 HOMETOWN HEALTH
GROUP 347540 ACCT 3475P 8/05/16 77800 552,36
GROUP 347570& 347584 8/05/16 77800 8,828.55 9,380.91
86354 HOUSTON SMITH CONSTR INC
BARN DOORS INSTALL GHDEPT B8/05/16 77727 550.00 550.00
86355 HOWARD, MARGARET
REFUND 8/05/18% 77654 100.00 100.00
86356 IN TONE IMAGING LLC
EVOLIS ID CARD RIBRON B/05/16 17685 59.75 59.75
86357 ITCHY FEET USA INC
VIETMAN HELICOPTER PILOTS 8/05/16 77728 430.00 430.00
86358 ITS MY COMMUNITY STORE
OFFICE SUPPLIES 8/05/16 77729 829.23

OFFICE SUPPLIES 8/05/16 77655 66.87




Report No:
Run Date

CHECK
NUMBER

863538

862360

86361

86362

86363

86364

86365

86366

86367

86368

86389

86370

86371

86372

86373

86374

PB1315
08/03/16

VENDOR

IT1 SOURCE LLC

JAMES C MCLENNAN MDPC

KIECHLER, CHRISTIAN A

KLASSIC KRUISERS CAR CLUB
LEAVITT, CORY

LIFE~-ASSIST INC

LINCCLN NATIONAL LIFE

LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC

LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC

MACKAY MANSION MUSEUM

MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CTR

METRO OFFICE SOLUTIONS IN

MYERS, GERALD LESLIE JR
NEV COMPTROLLER

NEV COMPTROLLER

POST NEV

STOREY COUNTY
CHECK REGISTER

INVOICE DESCRIPTION

OFFICE 2016 TIM

HP STORAGE ARRAY

HP NEXT BUS DAY STQRAGE
LAPTOP TIM

HUGH LAPTOP

OFFICE 2016 HUGH

USB SERIAL ADAPTER

HP 24 PORT SWITCH VCTC
OFFICE 2016 DOSEN

AUGUST 2016 HEALTHOFFICER

JULY 14-27, 2016

ON

EMS SUPPLIES

EMS SUPPLIES - LINE MEDIC
EMS SUPPLIES

EMS SUPPLIES

RETIREE DENTAL

SPONSORSHIP IN & OUT
BUDGET REQUEST

JULY 14-27, 2016

VIETNAM HELICQRTER PILOTS
AUGUST2016 PROGRAM SUPPOR
GFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES
ENVELCPES, CLIPS, NOTES
LAMINATING POQUCHES

MISC OFC SUPPLIES

ES

JULY 14-27, 2016

DC ADMIN ASSESSMENTS

RT FEES

NS CAT II

B/O #

8/03/1s8

DATE

8/05/16
B/05/16
8/05/1¢6
8/05/16
8/05/186
8/05/16
g/0s/18
B8/05/16
8/05/18

8/05/16

B8/05/16
B/05/16

8/05/16
8/05/16

8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/18
8/05/16

8/05/14
8/05/16

8/05/16

8/05/186
8/05/18%

8/05/16
8/05/186
8/05/18

8/05/16

8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16

8/05/1¢6
B8/05/16
8/05/18
8/05/1¢6
8/05/16
8/05/1¢

8/05/18

TRANSH

7163
77763
77763
777632
TTTe3
77763
TIT63
77763
77763

1644

TFT3z2
71132

771656
7778%

T1e2
77782
77182
77792

1770
77770

77733

71134
77734

77735
TT735
TTI35

77643

77793
77793
77692
77697
77709
717774

77736
77715
TTI87
T7T8RT
TTIRT
TTIBT

77776

AMOUNT

374.37
8,737.68
18%9.84
1,742.69
1,904.10
374.00
13.47
308.50
374,37

500.00

23.00
531.00

100.00
20.00

72.00
5,656.94
1llz.62
1,564.57

815.42
5.70

2,285.00

2,500.00
24,400.00

22.00
420.00
485.00

1,666.67

265.30
38.37
42.93
24.84

257.54

152.65

144.00
967.21
170.00
240.00
497.50
2,899.00

350.00

Page
CHECK

TOTAL
896.10

14,022.02

500.00

554.00
i0¢c.00

20,00

7,406,113

821.12

2,285.00

96,900.00

927.00

1,666.67

851.63
144.00

967,21

3,806.50

5




Report No: PB131S STOREY COUNTY Page &

Run Date : 08/03/16 CHECK REGISTER 8/03/1s
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDCR INVOICE DESCRIPTION P/O # DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
POST TRAINING 8/05/1%6 77688 500,00 850.00
86375 WEV RURAL REGIONAL CENTER
MAY MEDICAID MORRISON 8/05/1¢ 77635 4,91 4.91
86376 NEV SUPREME COURT OF NV
URTVIEW 8/05/16 77773 5,000.00 5,000.00
86377 NEV TREASURER
8/05/186 FITRE 20.00 20.00
86378 NEVADA LEGAL SERVICE INC
FEES COLLECTED 8/05/16 77706 103.79 103.7%
86379 NTU TECHNOLOGIES INC
' & DRUMS B/05/16 77657 5,220.00 5,220.00
86380 OFFICE DEPOT INC
DESK CALENDAR B/05/16 77671 9.99 9.99
86381 OLIVAS, RICHARD A
VC PLAY EQUIP DEP {MATCH) 8/05/16 77673 10,000.00 10,000.00
86382 OSBORNE, JOAN
BILL FOR JUNE 2016 8/05/16 17679 2,600.00 2,600.00
88383 PATTERSON, BRIAN
8/05/16 77785 115.04Q 115,00
86384 PEDLEY KNOWLES & COMPANY
GAS DECTECTOR SERC GRANT B/05/16 77721 204 .00
CO DETECTOR SERC GRANT 8/05/16 77721 800.00 1,704.00
B6385 PERKINS, TINA MARIA
VIETNAM HELICOPTER PILOTS 8/05/16 77737 1,260.00 1,260.00
86385 PETRINI, ANGELO D
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77738 238.00 238.00
856387 PITNEY BOWES INC
POSTAGE SUPPLIES 8/05/186 77668 390.12 390.12
85388 PROTECTION DEVICES INC
ST 75 MONITORING 8/05/16 77714 75.00 75.00
86389 PUCKETT, LBNE
ACCT.¥ 505.03 199 S H 8/05/16 771754 100.00 100.00
86390 PURCELL TIRE & RUBBER COC
TIRES 1/2 8/08/1¢ 77658 1,22B.88
8062212- TIRES 3/05/16 71658 351.60 1,580.48
BG391 RAD STRATEGIES INC
8/08/16 77740 1,628.98
GIN PUB RELATIONS 8/05/16 77699 500.00
DATABASE B/05/16 77639 375.00
STRATEGIC CONSULTATION 8/05/186 11699 2,000.00
RELATIONS/MARKETING B8/05/16 71699 2,000.00 6,503.98
86392 RAPID SPACE LLC
7/29-8/25/16 RENTAL 8/05/186 Frarky] 89.00 8%.00
86393 RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA)
COPIER-COMM C STREET 8/05/186 77764 453.00
GIS PLOTTER CN2676-01 8/05/18 77764 158.01 611.01
86394 REDWOOD TOXICOLOGY LAB,IN
10 PANEL DRUG TEST KIT 8/05/1% 77694 199.50 199%.50
86395 RENO RODEQ ASSOCIATION
AD IN RODECQ PROGRAM 8/05/16 77782 2,500.00 2,500.00
86396 RENO TAHOE SPECIALTY INC
POST CARDS FOR GIFT SHOP 8/05/16 77741 81.00 B1.00
86397 REPORTING SYSTEMS, INC
FIRE/EMS REPORTING SYSTEM 8/05/16 77794 564 .00 564,00
86398 ROTH, RICHARD

ACCTH#516.03 8/05/16 77756 7.64




Report Neo: PB131s STOREY COUNTY Page 7

Run Date : 08/03/1%¢ CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDOR INVOICE DESCRIPTION P/O # DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
7.64
86399 SAFEGUARD WER & GRAPHICS
TIN MUGS FOR GILFT SHOP 8/05/16 77742 168,00 168.00
86400 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES INC
847-7500 VOTC 8/05/16 77798 76.78
252-6412 - COMMUNTCATIONS 8/05/16 77798 3,850.20
847-0962 JOP 8/05/18 77798 63.31 3,990.29
86401 SHOAF, BRIAN ALLEN
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77743 33.00 33.00
86402 SHOLER, KATHLEEN M
AUG-SEPT ADVERTISING 8/05/15 77744 500.00 500.00
86403 SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION LL
ANNUAL FIRE EXT MAINT B8/05/16 77795 1,093.00 1,0983.00
86404 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CQ
VIRGINIA CITY ST LIGHTS 8/05/16 77660 851.60
SC COMMISSIONERS ST LIGHT 8/05/186 77660 106.75
2610 CARTWRIGHT PUMPHSE 8/05/16 77660 67.93
431 CBNYOM WAY ST 4 8/05/16 77660 236.52
2612 CARTWRIGHT RD RES 8/05/1¢ 17660 130.29
145 N ¢ ST UNIT 8/05/1%6 77660 89,82
381 N C ST RESTSTOP 8/05/1¢ 77660 48.25
130 TOLL RD BLDG 8/05/16 77660 44 .82
11¢ TOLL RD BLDG 8/05/18 77660 112,98
100 TOLL RD SHOP 1/2 8/05/1¢ 77660 208.12
201 8 ¢ ST DA 8/05/16 77660 90.09
203 § C ST S0 8/05/16 77660 89.50
205 5 C 8T so 8/05/16 77660 171.03
911 US HWY 341 JATL 8/05/1% 77680 843.63
490 SAM CLEMENS PARK B/05/15 TTEE0 18.68
100W SOUTH ST WTR PLNT 8/05/18¢ 77660 912.52
21 8 C 8T GASLMO 8/05/186 77660 125.39
500 SPANIAL RAVINE RD "vn 8/05/16 77660 55.12
205 N E 8T VC PARK 8/05/16 77660 34.70
SUTTON ST 8/05/18 77660 30.25
1C4 8 B ST GARAGE 8/05/16 77660 32.32
8 C BT UNIT VC/372 C ST 8/05/16 77660 43.53
S C ST QUTDOOR/PAL LIGHT 8/05/16 77660 40.83
5 C ST UNIT V¢ 8/05/16 77660 167.52
CARSON ST BALLEARK 8/05/16 77680 - 32.32
N C ST FIREHS 8/05/16 77660 302.67
141 N C ST {TRAINING) 8/05/16 77660 433.48
MAIN ST UNIT GH DEPOT 8/05/1%6 77660 55.45
2220 SIX MILE CANYON 8/05/16 77660 1,173.80
26 S B ST COURTHOUSE 8/05/16 77660 638.03
176 N ¢ ST LIGHTS 8/05/18 77660 60.48
342 8 C ST LIGHTS B/05/16 77660 80.48
531 8 ¢ ST LIGHTS 8/05/14 77660 83.68
800 PERI RANCH RD 8/05/16 77660 177.30
1705 PERU DR 8/05/16 77660 967.76
185 N C ST 8/05/16 77660 53.27
420 CANYON WAY UNIT B 8/05/16 77660 145.95
420 CANYON WY UNIT A 8/05/1¢6 77660 189.57
1000 PERI RANCH RD' FPARK 8/05/16 77660 34.68
160 UNION ST/ B OF A 8/05/16 77660 50.04
TOWN OF GH STR LIGHTS 8/05/16 77660 95.51
100 TOLL RD PED{FOUNTAIN} 8/05/1¢ 77660 616.62

2610 CARTWRIGHT FIREHSE 8/05/16 77660 210,04




Report Ng: PB1231S5 STOREY COUNTY Page 8

Run Date : 08/03/16 CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16
CHECK CHECK
NUMBER VENDOR INVQOICE DESCRIPTION P/O # DATE TRANSH# AMOUNT TOTAL
9,953.32
86405 SILVER STATE INDUSTRIES
TRI PLOW-PAINT 8/05/16 77682 4,191.00 4,181.00
86406 SLICK INDUSTRIES LLC DBA
CEM GIN T SHIRTS 8/05/16 77745 2,112.50
CEM GIN TABLE COVER 8/05/16 EENT 1S 125.00 2,237.50
86407 SPALLONE, DOMINIC J III
JAIL TOILET PAPER 8/05/16 77686 78.00 78.00
86408 ST CO SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX RECEIVED 8/05/16 77698 151,164.41
JULY 14-27, 201%& 8/05/1% 7747 3z.00
8/05/18 77747 4.00
VIETNAM HELICOPTER PILOTS 8/05/18 77747 100.00 151,300.41
86409 ST CD TREASURER
TRIC PROPERTY TAXES 16/17 8/05/16 77801 514,451.77 514,451.77
86410 ST O WATER SYSTEM
8/05/16 77676 128.59
8/05/18 77748 182,95
8/06/16 77676 152.75
8/05/16 77876 134.63
8/05/18 77676 128.58
B/05/16 77676 128.59
8/05/16 17676 150.66
8/05/16 77676 239.83
8/05/16 77676 515.18
B/05/16 77676 1,123.09
8/05/16 77676 146,71
8/05/16 77676 121.42
8/05/16 77676 441.22
8/05/16 77676 117.52
8/05/16 77676 370.19
372 ¢ ST 8/05/16 11676 128.59
8/05/16 77676 66.82
8/05/16 77676 62.92
8/05/16 77748 T8.20 4,418.42
86411 STARZSTAR COMMUNICATIONS,
SHERIFF & DETENTION 8/05/16 TIT69 740,17 740.17
86412 STRYKER MEDICAL
GURNEY BATTERY 8/05/16 77796 1,323.12 1,323.12
86413 SUN PEAK ENTEREFRISES
VIETMAN HELICOPTER PILOTS 8/05/186 77750 31.50-
8/05/18 77750 270.00
8/05/16 17750 2,310.00
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77750 246.00 2,794 .50
BEdld SUNBELT PUBLICATIONS, INC
BOOK FOR GIFT SHOP V/C 8/05/1¢6 77749 131.90 131.90
B6415 SUPERICR POOCL PRODUCTS
BASKETS FOR POOL a/05/18 77666 269.71 269,71
BE416 THE ANTOS AGENCY
VFD GRANT - PP PRESENTAT 8/05/16 77797 500.00
VISITOR GUIDE DESIGN 8/05/1¢ 77751 £00.00 1,100.00
86417 THE DUBE' GROU$ INC
ANNEX ARCHITECT 8/05/16 77759 1,783.47 1,783.47
86418 THE TOMBESTONE COWBOYS
JULY 14-27, 2016 8/05/16 77752 3.00
8/05/16 77752 333.00

8/05/16 717152 1,585.00




Report No:

Run Date :
CHECK

NUMBER
86419

86420

86421
86422
86423
86424
86425
86426

86427

86428

86429

86430
86431
864232

86433

PB1315
08/03/18

VENDOR

THE VIRGINIA CITY JERKY C

THOMAS PETRCLEUM LLC

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
UNIFORMITY OF NEVADA LLC
UNITED RENTALS

US BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINA
US POSTOFFICE (V)

VIDEQ VELOCITY

VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR (O

VIRGINIA CITY TOURS INC

VISION SERVICE PLAN, INC

W.S. DARLEY & CO
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA
WELHOUSE, RICHARD R

3D CONCRETE INC

STOREY COUNTY

CHECK REGISTER 8/03/16

INVOICE DESCRIPTION

VIETNAM HELICOPTER PILOTS
PW-REG & DSL

PW-REG & DSL

PW-REG & DSL

VCH REG & DSL

MEMBERSHIP

L/XL HATS

SKID STEER RENTAL

COPIER LEASE ACCT-842489
DEPOSIT FOR PERMIT #1

DVD'S FOR GIFT SHOP

JULY 14-27, 2016

VIETNAM HELICOPTER PILOTS

JULY 14-27, 2016

30 048047 0001 COBRA
30 048047 0001 RETIREE

E72 GEAR BAG
DNA TESTING NRS 176.0915
REPAIR STONE WALL

PARTIAL PAYMENT

BP/O #

DATE
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
g/05/1¢8
8/05/1¢
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/18
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/16
B/06/18
8/05/186
8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/18
8/05/16
8/05/16

8/05/186
8/05/16

8/05/16
8/05/16
8/05/1%¢

8/05/18

TRANS#
77752
77753
77674
717674
77674
77674
77663
77691
717662
77765
7707
77755
7757
77157
77757
71157
TITST
TI758
17758
77758
77758
77768

77799
77799

77788
TTT01
77659

17665

AMOUNT
20.00
525.00
1,568.24
1,599%.39
3,320.41
275,08
161.20
199.92
625.48
3,671.01
700,00
200.00
828.00
18.490
207.0¢Q
1,075.50
4,950.00
62.25-
210.00
1,892.00
212.00
1z.00

9.56
175,92

164 .45
135.00
4,760.00
754.04

CHECKS TOTAL

Page

CHECK
TOTAL

1,941.00

525.00

6,763.82
181.20
19%.92
625.48

3,671.01
700.00

200.00

7,078.50

2,263,75

185.48
164.45
135.00
4,760.00

754,04

1,016,365.05

2




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CF REVIEW AND AUTHORIZATION

CHECKS TOTAL 1,016,365.05 CHECK DATE 8/03/16

COMMISSIONER




Report No: PB5480ST STOREY COUNTY Page 1

Run Date : 08/03/16 PURCHASE CARD REGISTER
PC . CARD
NUMBER VENDCR FUND-DEPT INVOICE # DESCRIPTION DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL
: 85 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL, CARD PAYMENT
; ADOBE SYSTEMS " ADOBE EXPORT RENEWAL  8/05/16 844 23.88
ANTINORO - PCARD GAS - TRAVEL NVSCA 8/05/16 847 37.00
ARROYD PORT COF SUBS  SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 1,902.40
BLAKELY PORT OF SUBS SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 389.17
BOWERS - PCARD FOCD - TRAVEL TO LV CO 8/05/16 847 180.70
C.NEVIN- ATT INTERNET- 372 8§ C STRE 8/05/16 1480 70.00
C.NEVIN- NACO 2016 NACO CONFERENCE 8/05/16 1480 450,00
CURTIS JET.COM SCBA BATTERIES 8/05/1¢6 846 156.56 !
CURTIS JET.COM CLEANING SUPPLIES 8/05/18 846 50.62
CW STORE SUPPLY MERCHANDISE BAGS 8/05/16 842 50.69
DIXON S LN CURTIS P71 BOOSTER REEL HOSE 8/05/16 846 325.00
DOSEN - PCARD LAUNDRY, BLEACH, WIPES 8/05/16 847 36.00
FAIN 63156 CC FLORIS FLOWERS MCCOY/MILLER F 8/05/16 841 100.49
INV #2436960 PE BOOK MOUNT SET 8/05/16 845 525.13
JEFFH-HCME DEPOT SUPPLIES 8/0s/16 839 21.97
JEFFH-HOME DEPOT HAND TRUCK 8/05/16 839 54.97
KEENER 58355519 BROWNELLS/AMMUNITION  8/05/16 841 258.80
KLINGLER CARMENS MEX SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 3,474.80
KLINGLER PORT OF SUB SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 108.32
LOWE N RIM COUNTRY FULLER FIRE FUEL 8/05/16 846 117.45
MCBRIDE 12897201 QUEEN MARY/NACQ CONF 8/05/16 841 843.26
MCCULLOUGH COLLINSON HONOR GUARD INSIGNIA  8/05/16 846 71.50
MCCULLOUGH FLAG STOR ST 74 FLAG 8/05/1% 845 36.00
MCCULLQUGH UPS STORE POSTAGE 8/05/16 846 29,09
MCGUFFEY /NACO- ISLANDS RESTAURANT 8/05/16 841 43.52
MCGUFFEY/NACC-QUEEN  MARY 8/05/186 841 1,088.60
NEVIN HOME DEPOT VED GRANT - BANNER CLI 8/05/16 846 125.83
NEVIN HOME DEPOT ST 72 COMPRESSOR OIL. 8/05/16 846 4.568
OFFICE DEPOT PENS, REFILLS, ENVELCP 8/05/16 844 94 .50
QFFICE DEPQT FOR SUSAN B, 8/05/1¢6 844 15.39
OSBORNE QUEEN MARY/NACO CONF 8/05/1% B4l 1,088.60 . -
OSBORNE FOOD NACO CONF 8/05/186 841 23.62 i
PRICRITY POSTAGE CASE#14074CR AHMAD 8/0s/16 838 22.95
REVELLE MAVERIK SLCMC FIRE FUEL 8/05/16 846 51,53
REVELLE PILOT SLCMC FIRE FUEL 8/05/1% 846 174.32
RUSSELL IAFC HAMES MEMBERSHIP 8/05/16 848 254,00
RUSSELL USPS 072616 POSTAGE 8/05/16 846 6.47
SMARTFINALGS8S OPERATING SUPPLIES 8/05/16 842 132.06
SMITH CONOCO LAVA MT FIRE FUEL B/05/186 846 40.98 .
SMITH MAVERIK LAVA MT FIRE FUEL 8/05/16 848 46.16
SMITH PIT STOP LAVA MT FIRE FUEL B8/05/1¢6 B46 22.53
SMITH SHELL OIL LAVA MT FIRE FUEL 8/05/1¢6 846 47 .75
SMITH STINKER 315 LAVA MT FIRE FUEL 8/05/16 846 39.51
SNYDER DENNYS SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 64,35
SNYDER LITTLE CEASAR SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 19.39
SNYDER MCDONALDS SHOCTING RBNGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 845 30.77
SNYDER NAPA SHOOTING RANGE FIRE MA 8/05/16 846 79.51
SNYDER PETRO SHOQTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 79.74
SNYDER PORT OF SUBS  SHOOTING RANGE FIRE ME 8/05/16 846 377.01
BNYDER SAGE TRANSFER SHOOTING RANGE FIRE TR 8/05/16 846 6.50
SNYDER SIERRA FREIGH SHOOTING RANGE FIRE RE 8/05/16 846 10.00
SNYDER SONRAY MACH MASTICATOR REPAIR 8/05/1¢ 846 279.61
SNYDER SONSRAY REFUND SALES TAX B8/05/1¢6 B46 279.61-
SNYDER SONSRAY MACH  MASTICATOR MAINTENANCE 8/05/16 846 410.07

SFPELTZ BLACK BEAR FULLER FIRE MEAL B8/05/16 846 20.38




STOREY COUNTY Fage 2
PURCHASE CARD REGISTER

Report No: PB5480ST
Run Date : 08/03/16

PC CARD
NUMBER VENDCR FUND-DEPT INVOICE # DESCRIPTION DATE TRANS# AMOUNT TOTAL

SPELTZ JOESCRABSHACK TFULLER FIRE MEALS 8/05/16 846 37.28
SPELTZ LA QUINTA FULLER FIRE LODGING 8/05/16 846 244 .16
SPELTZ MAVERIK FULLER FIRE FUEL 8/05/16 846 42.00
TILLISCH AAFES CP BLCMC MEALS 8/05/18 846 28.25
TILLISCH CCONOCO SLCMC MEALS 8/05/16 846 17.16
VANHAVEL ADOBE SOFTWARE SUBSCRI 8/05/16 837 14.99
WALMART DMV GLASSES & COFFEE M 8/05/16 844 138.96
WHITTEN /NACC-QUEEN  MARY 8/05/16 841 1,088.60
WHITTEN/NACO - UBER  TRANSPORTATION 8/05/16 841 6.08
WHITTEN/NACO CHEAT TRANS 8/05/16 841 36.00

WHITTEN/NACO-CAFEDIA MCBRIDE, OSBORNE,MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 72.19 .

WHITTEN/NACO-GLADSTO MCBRIDE, OSBORNE, MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 476.00 i

WHITTEN/NACG-ISLANDS MCBRIDE,OSBORNE, MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 94,72 i

WHITTEN/NACO-PARADIE MCBRIDE,OSBORNE, MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 200.85 ;
WHITTEN/NACO-QN MARY MCBRIDE,OSBORKE,MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 436,52
WHITTEN/NACO-REEF MCBRIDE, OSBORME, MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 519.11
WHITTEN/NACO-RENQ/TA AIRPORT PARKING 8/05/16 841 80.00
WHITTEN/NACO-TEQJACK MCBRIDE, OSBORNE, MCGUFF 8/05/16 841 293.20
003409 GAS VC, PUMPS BROKEN 8/05/16 843 50.00
: 057685 KEYS QUAD RACK 8/05/16 843 6.00
: 138011663 ST74 DSL 8/05/16 843 80.00
| 138864913 VCE8O DSL 8/05/18 843 85.00
143557741 COMDEV DSL 8/05/16 843 85.76
147413709 VCCC DSL B/05/16 843 85.76

150452869 LOCKWOOD DSL B/05/16 843 85.76 i

20-25987557 IT DEPT TRAINING 8/05/186 843 357.00 ”
733221677-29 GOTOMYPC HUGH B/05/16 B43 329.65

7758470991 JAMES BACK LINE 8/05/16 843 100.87 i

18,830.59 !

*Card Total+ 18,830.59
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REVIEW AND AUTHORIZATION DATE

COMMISSIONER i




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date; 8/16/16 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: First reading for Mellow Fellow, 171 South C St., Virginia City Nevada.
2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading, a
General Business License and a cabaret license for the Mellow Fellow operating out of 171
S. C 8t., Virginia City Nevada.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Ryan Eller, Mellow Fellow, is requesting a general business & cabaret license
for the business at 171 S C St., Virginia City Nevada.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__Department Head Department Name: Gerald Wro
2

o e ————

% Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied i1 Continued -

Agenda Item No,




STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’'S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

August 8, 2016

S SEEa bR Yy

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda
Please add the following item(s) to the August 16, 2016 Commissioners Consent

Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. Mellow Fellow — General & Cabaret License. A local business to operate out of
171 South C St., Virginia City Nevada. Ryan Eller, Managing Member.

B. Virginia City 601 Vigilance Committee — General Non-Profit License. A local
non-profit operating out of 120 8. B St., Virginia City Nevada. President Fred
Dutton. '

LIQUOR BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. Mellow Fellow — Liquor License. A local business to operate out of 171 South C
St., Virginia City Nevada. Ryan Eller, Managing Member.

B. Virginia City 601 Vigilance Committee - Liquor License. A local non-profit
operating out of 120 S. B St., Virginia City Nevada. President Fred Dutton.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (7'75) 847-0924




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8/16/16 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda 1 Public hearing required [1

1. Title: First reading for Virginia City 601 Vigilance Committee, 120 S B St., Virginia City
Nevada, a local non-profit.

7. Recommended motion; 1motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading, a
General Non-Profit License for Virginia City 601 Vigilance Committee, 120 S B St.,
Virginia City Nevada, a local non-profit.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Fred Dutton, President, is requesting a general license for Virginia City 601
Vigilance Committee, 120 S B St., Virginia City Nevada, a local non-profit.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoxo
o)
Oﬁﬂ . C >
N

/%%eﬁy Manager Other agency review:

| 9. Board action:
. ] Approved
: i Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
)

Agenda Item No.
5/t




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for July 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
@ulﬁunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved I Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.
5/TV




oe” oo’ [\ [N 00" 00" 00" ([N SONNZ TV TYION
oo’ oc” oc” 00" 00° oo" 00" 00" ONIATOH SEXYL QIENDAS 005
oe” oc” 00" 00" 00" oo 00" 00" DNIQTOH SEXYL JEANJISNN 003
~98° E£Z5'0ZT oe” 00" 00" 88°ZI8 €6 20'0%6 ‘0T 00" -SL OLESEE ary TYOLOW 0LZ
-£EB°O¥T'LOZ 0o 00" 90" 00" oc” 00° ~€8°0%T'L0T ADNEDUEWE ZHId 092
-TLTBTL 0ZE'T 00" 00’ LT 958’2 28'99L'0L9 £L°ZG /65T ~EB GLI'ELY ~09°9T9'6LL"T LOTELSTG 4yId 062
~€9°5¥5°STT 00" 00" £5'959 6T LIT'I9 66°L06 '66T ~LETGPS 80T ~96° 189 '89E NOISSIWWOD WSIENOL JA Q€T
~G5%°DED 986 00" 0o" 00° co’ 00" 00- ~SFT0E0 986 LOELOYd I¥E DA 0Z2
-€0°BTE 00" 00’ 00" oe” 00’ 00" -t0°BTE aNng S41E TIVL §JITUIHE 0T
-06°0£5 '8 00" 00" 0o0° oc” Y9 LEE'LT -08°$56 ' ¥6 -PE" 186’8 SINVED TYyIa=d 90T
~B0°E95°020°Z 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" -¥0" €95 00T MDVEAYA TdL 002
-0€"8ET'ZZT 00" 00" 00" 00" 00"’ -00° 0SZ ~DEBEE"TTT aNnd MEYd 06T
00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" [\['N oe- IEN I¥L 68T
-€2°00T'¥E 0o* 00" oo* 00" ST L56'T -00° 588 -9ETTLL'FE aNNE IMNO3 HOILISOL L8T
-9Z° 206 'L 00" 00" oo’ 0o" 6L 88F'6 -T8° LT -¥Z EF8' VT INEAIDDY INASIAGNI S87
-99 65L'T¥ 00" 60" oo” 00" 00" €12 -00° €95 -99' 605 T¥ JHUN0D IDIWISIA 0BT
-TL 0E8’I0S ve’ [ [N 00" $9°9€9'86 -E6°BLE 0L ~€¥ L8O 'DES BIMLS 0L
-£5° £2L B8R [ [N 06" 00" 10" €0E'SE -0E°9%1 1T ~PETDBBETT aNfd ADOTONHOEL §97%
-09°186°¢E [N 00" 00° 00" Z0°9%0 €T -ST 98E'%E -L%° 1T 1T LASA TOOHDS 097
-T9 T16€’6TT oc” 6o* 00" 00" LS'SE6'0TT -9¢'8LL 92T ~26 BPSETT IODHDS 0ST
-60° 0L 00" 00° 00" oo’ oo’ 0§ -00°0% -00° 08 TAN0D DNUT 0T
~GG5°6¥TTEL'E 00" 00" 0o’ 1 00'L85°SY 0g” ~SS'9T8'9LL'E 0oWYd STIEM ANOE VOSSO SET
~26° 022 °8%E 20° 00" 00" TL TSP LT ZZ'0B0'B -8L TV6'6Z -L0°0T8EPE HAMES HAIAIQ YINIDWIA OFT
00" 00" 00" 00- 00" 00" 00" 00" ALID VINIDYIA 40 NMOL 0Z1
-00° 099 00° 00" 00" oe’ 00" 00" -00°099 TIIH @702 40 NMOL 0TI
-00°'000'000°T 00- 00" 00" oc” - 00" 0o- -0 000000 ‘T NOIIWZITIEVYLS DOY
6B LLE'3E5 7T 00" o0 00" £9°8EL ZE S0'6LO"ET -Z6° S¥T'¥S ~S9T6¥ELSG'T HILSXS YHIYM 060
~S0TLZE'OBY'T 00- 00" 00" 00" 00" -9¢ T¥Z ST -6L PHOESE T GNDE FEAIDNEISTIANT G686
~ELTZBPCLL T 00" o oo" op- 0g* [A-MhA: TA8-11 ([N ~SE PIL LTE'Y SIDALCHA TYLIAYD OLG
-I1'865°08€ 00" 00" oo’ 00" 00" -0z ESY’R -TT S%¥T°2LE NOILISINGOY INTWEINOT 096
-00°000 00T 0o 00" oc” 00" 00" 00" -00°000 ‘001 HIIANAS 0SC
-LE 9LE 90 oo’ [ 06" 0o0” 00" oo’ -LE 9LB ¥8 aI¥ TYNLOH 5%C
00" oo’ oc” 00’ 00" oo 00" 00" LOTULSIA HNId 0%C
co” 60" 00" 00" 00" oo’ 00" 00" ADNEOREWI BWId S€¢
¥S 67966 00" 00" 00" 00" oc” 00" ¥5°6¥9°66 d¥IZ 0EC
-50°¢S 00" 00" 00" oo’ 00°089°T -00° 002 -S0°E0G'T KOTINLILSEA bZC
~85°L69OLT’T 00" 00" £ETE80'T 29 S¥9'69 0E"86C"RC -00°T%9 '8¢ ~EB"E8T'E¥Z'T SaYOd 0ZC
00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 00 [ 00" XYL- HINYLSISSY INIDIANT STC
~%6°LYZ'ZBY 00" 00" 00* 06" 60°LTO'Y 6P ETL'T “%5°0%S'88F TYOIAAW INZDIANI ¢TI0
~96 G2 'SEE’G 00" 00" -€0°¥65°S ¥LOTIT ZEE’T  99°9Z0°08S -8T T1S¢°¥5E -SLTRTIS’LSE’S TYHEANID TOG
00°00Z 00* 00" oo’ 00" 00" 00" ce'ooe YOSSESSY  HSWD Alldd SC06
00°000°2 00" 00* [ 00" 00" 00" 060°000°2 JATYEHS HSUD ALLAd ¥06
00" 00T'T oo’ 00° 0c° 00" 00* 00" 00°00T'T HSYD ALIZd E06
DL EEY 00" oc” cc” 00" 00" 00" 0L GEY SNIOD dT0 106
oL P6R'BLT'E oc* oe” co- 00" 00" 00" 0L PERBLT'Y INNODOY dI9HT HZIMLIS 96T
09 ZOZ'6ST L 60" 00" 00" 00" oo’ 00" 05208 65T L LANAYW AZNOW OD¥Y STTAM 16T
TE 855°540°8 00" 00" 00" -65° PP LOT'Z TP YZTLIP'T 89 FPPE'9T6'T  £9°9BE'fFL'E INNODDY 20 0D¥Wd STIaM 66T
00° 00" 00" 00" 1N 00" oo- 00* SITYS ALHEJOEd ¥ 30 ° 86T
00" 00" 00" 00" 60" 00" 00" 00" SQUYDD MNYH SSANISNE L6T
0L ETT'S 00" 00° 00" 00" 0o’ oz’ 05" €ET'S NNVE NI HSYD S61
£9°6g5°g 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" 0E'g €€ EEV’g DNIGTOH JLAnod> IDIUISIC $6T
00- 00" 00" 00" 00" 00" [N oo’ HSYD VSN OD¥Yd STIEM £6T
JONY'TYH ONIONZ 1IN0 SYR4SHNYIL NI SOZaSNvdl GUEHON0A NAnOr STI0%ied SINIWESENESId SIdlipad oEUME0d v NOIIAId083ad IOV
9T0Z/L0 d0d

LAEHS SNIDNVTIYE ATHINOW
BNIINNOJOY 5udIUNSVANT 8P:EPI0T 9T/80/80 :uny
T obeg ATANSYITAL ALNNOD ADNGLE 00TZHL :oN 3xoday




00" ST at/ee/L YAYAHN 80 STYN LOZHOY 00 66T £EE98  MD

00°090"'T 9tT/ze/L TAATIYLAY HONVH HNY.ISOW 889%0% 00 6671 (A AR T t)
Zb°-99 9T/EC/ L YIYWYL 'NYOINW 6Z9E0¥ 00 6671 61298 D
007 LLE at/ze /L WOHSAW NOISNYIW AYMOYRW 69L%0% 00 66T ¥PIC98 M0
00 £0L 9T/ee/L ¥ NVILSI¥HD ‘¥ATHOEIX 868E0F 00 661 80298 D
00 8%6 9T/2C/L SNOISSTIANI HATILYAONNI OFECOT 00 661 £0Z98 MO
9L 69 9T/ZC/L NI NOILVINEVL INIGNIJACQNI 69520T C0 66T zZ0Zo9g M¥MD
T8 %65 9T/2e/L E0IAY¥AS IICEAD J0dHI0 AWOH 68800T 00 66T 00Z98 WD
TS 6E% 9t/ee/L DONIDYWICHDINW LYdSHCG HOIH PRE00T 00 66T 86T98 D
£6°6T 9T/2Z/L NOSYVD ’'SNINMYH B06%0F 00 661 S6T98 M2
S6°0% 9T/2T/L DNI STI¥YD ¥S800T 00 661 LBT98 D
00 0¥%T 9T/Ege/L 4 ESINEI 'NOLIIH dHETING FLEVOF 00 661 98798 MUD
00 0% 9t/ee/L 2777 59200 504 LEZSTO¥ 00 6671 8LT98 MO
00 00T 9T/22/L YLINY ‘SIIaND S05%0% 00 66T 9LT98 MO
00 908 9T/CE/L DT TIIK dTOS MDOLSHOD LBBEOY 00 66T €LT98 MD
¥9 ERP at/ee /L (2A) dTOINOYHD MDOLSHOD 25966 00 66T TLT98 MO
929271 9T/22/L TYNOISSHAIOEd ¥ SEENTSNG £9%00T 00 66T 95198 D
86°L88'¢E 9t/ee/L ONI DdALg 6ZZV0T 00 66T $ST98 MO
09" TLY 91/ze /L ONI AMALFTIW NMOAS S¥Z00T 00 66T EST98 M2
£9°¢8 9T/22/L ALLYd ‘@HESIE LLETOY 00 66T ISTS8 A
00°S0T 9T/ET/L HYH0gad ‘dHCoNdad 6S6E0% 00 46T 05188 D
C0-ste 9t/Tec/L OdHWQOD d0 ALHIDOS NYDINHWY V9Z¥07F 00 6671 L¥T98 D
00" 0S% ST/B80/L EOIAL0 SAATUHAHS 0D HOHSYM ZEGTOT 00 66T £E€T98 D
co¥Le’'e 9T/80/L SAQEMOD ANCLSIWOL HHIL TO6E0% 00 66T 6TT98 D
0z "888ET 9tT/80/L DNI ‘LSINOD VYOVAHN YHIATS 05LY0% 00 66T 66098 M)
6T ST ST/80/L q¥¥0od DNIZVYD YA¥AEN 98ZTOT 0C 66T £LO98  MD
28 %L ST/80/L NOIIYAYASNOD 40 Idd30 AEN ZBOPOF 00 66T £9098 D
00°0S¢€E ST/80/L AHLOHWIL ‘AHIEVIDW 668F0F 0C 66T 6%098 MO
ZZ 8TT ST/80/L TYIALSNANT NYWYA 006V0T 00 66T PE098  AMD
00 00T aT/80/L YANOL ‘MOTIVH SE8F0F 00 6671 12098 D
00° 96 91/80/L DT CTIIH TI0D MDOLSWOD LBBEOY 00 6671 zZ0098 Mo
00°00S5 % 9T/80/4 NOOI¥S qo0ad 40 I3dong 95FTOY 00 66T §8658 M0
Q0°6¢ 91/%2/9 ONI 99D9 HIAHHL BEGEQT 00 661 £CES8  MD
00" 00S "L 91/%Z/9 ONI ‘SANDOMAL LELYOY 00 66T TEGSE MO
05°28 9T/ ve/9 DONI aNVYEavodd I0odS LOH ESLEDT 00 66T 26868 Mo
99°T09'T 9T/¥E/9 SASIAGUFILNA A¥yEd S09TO0T 00 66T L%858 D
SE SPT 9t/¥%e/9 ESINEI 'NILSOV ¥88%0% 00 €671 Z%858 WD
T1° ¢t 9T/01/9 VAVHYL ‘NYDIK 6Z9E0F 00 B6T L9LS] MO
YE G2 9T/0T/9 HIN¥EL ‘HONAT ELBYOV 00 66T T9LER MO
06 "T8T 9T/0T/9 NOr ‘NCIAd SL8%0% 00 66T PTLS8 MO
0C SOT 9T/LZ/S HRESOW NOISNYW AVDVH 69LVOF 00 661 05958 Ao
00°09 9T/68/¥% HWOESNW NOISNYHN AVIDVWRH 69LF0% 00 861 9T%#58 MO
0L°€80'G 9T/T0/¥% NYWNH-HLIITYEH J0 AIQ AHN ZTLEODF 00 66T T9T58 AD
00108 91/8T/¢ ONI DIDOTHAOD LLOE0Y 00 66T 66678 NAD
80°%T ST/81/6 NODYAY HINVKW NNV ‘AVIann LESHOY 00 66T 06E£€8 A3
00°S5L ST/%0/6 YHLIIEYI ‘NOSHCH QELFOY 0C 66T 0SZE8 Mo
00°8L ST/%Z/L ONI 955 HHYHL BE6EOY 00 661 LTGEB ol
8T°06 ST/s%e/9 HONH IYOoDldddD 9L9PCT 00 661 T6SE8 Mo
S0°98 ST/ZT/9 A¥¥vd ¥ YUNTIT “dH3dId 0L9VOF 00 661 SL¥Z8 MO
00°06 ST/ZT1/% NHOL “ENSHIANGT ZBECOF 00 6671 ¥0%28 MO
SL°6E ST/LT/% NHOO ' AVHS 6T9F0¥ 00 66T €L6TH >
T6°9T ST/LT/T AYHD SNYAH IZ9%0% 00 66T LEGTY z
00°09 ST/LT/V HYYOHAd "dIANST 656E0F 00 661 TELTH z
00°42 st/oc/e HOAEAL ‘WNYIIZddY LBSYOP 00 66T 6STT8 2
Junowy aneq MosyD aswey safordwm/icpusp # uosaag beg wueg yoayy dr

9T/1e/L - 00/00/0 woxg

666656 ubnoxyul T #y29yn woid

syoay) butpueasing

DNILNNODDOWY SwdFTANSYHAL SC:P¥:0T @ SWIL uUny 9IT/80/80 @ 23RO UNY

T 2bes . ALNNOD AZHOLS Z9.11g 0N a1lodsy




T9 €¥F ' TLE

T9 €3V " TLE
0S°808'LIT

6L°09
F1°88%

T8 TIO'T
00" 09€’1

£1°'858S
95°6T9
Q0754
T9°98T
00" Z66

00" 678"V

00°SLS

TL" 0T
04°00¢E
00°€1Z

00 %66 '8¢

0g'00e
T8 ¥0¥%

05°'2L9 T

Q0" 00T
ZTEZT
00" %

(O] N 3
00°9LT
005

00" SLT

00" 006"

00°90T
05 °Z8¢

00°S0E’T
LOTGES'T
9% "S0L'T

00°DoE

aunoumy

666666 Ubnoayr T
S3o9ND burpueasing

ONILNOODOY Sa¥FIANSYANL
ALNNGD AFYOLS

P TeI10L

P TRI0L yueqg

91/S2/L
9T/6C/L
9T/62/1L
9T/62Z/L
91/6c/L
9T/6E/L
9t/62/L
9T/62/L
91T/62/L
9T/6Z2/L
9T/62/L
9L/6E/L
91/6Z/L
9t1/62/L
ST/ST/L
ST/ST/L
9T/ST/L
ST/ST/L
ST/ST/L
9T1/80/%

ST/60/0T

ST/%1/8
¥I/S1/8
91/22/L
91/2e/ L
9L/22/L
at/ee/L
9T/eC/L
9t/eze /L
91/8Z/L
91/8Z /4,
9tT/ee/L
91/2Z/L
ST/2T/L
aT/ee/L
9tT/ze/L
a1/ze /L
9T1/TZ/L
91/2T2/L
9t/ee/L
9t/eze/L
9T/TE/L
9t/ee/L

33eg I ooUD
- go/o0/0

QOILVSNIAWCD ADNHOV DITdNd
LI0D ‘S8dH

ANVTHET  NITINYHA

L 99D 'SSHH

LZZPH DOSSY ¥HAIHOIA HUTJ
SANT NOINN/HWDSIY

XYL ¥HLAY SNI HSYM/dIddWd
Q) SNI HAIT DIAIDYd

XYL ¥YALAY DOVIAY/dEd dWA
NYId SET O¥7dvY/0H3d dWd
dWOD JEYHHEAHR]

(XV1-¥BLAY) dHOD dEYNEJAd
SZT "SNI H4IT IYINOGTIOD
INZATIOY IYINCTIOD

II0D ‘SSHH

L DEYS ‘g8uH

LZZP# D0SSY UEIHOIA HAIA
SENG NOINN/AWDSAY
EONYANSNT LEd

ADNVENSNT HATIT

dNANH EHACTAWH/TYDIATKH
SZT "SNI HJAIT 'IYINOTICD
¥O/NOILOATTIOD HEHA JAIFTHS
‘¥ NATOHYD ‘ITANEOM

YAYAEN ‘XLNNOD HOHSYM
01440 SJAIHAHS 0D HOHSWYM
SANYTHOIH ALIO YINIDHEIA
COYIIHD A0 ALIS¥HATINN

ONI 999 HEYHL

ADOHA YAHS

ONI SHDIAYHS IVHOTD DES
ONT JHINADLYY SAYVW ILNIVS
ONI 0Dddny

ONI ‘NOILVYADI¥AHY SHNOA
LdAQ NOILVONAH YSWEN
TRSNOD ¥ SNITASNNCDY ISHAND
HAMCA HSYHOUNd

ad QTIADNY 'INTAIId

ANYdWOD ¥OLYAHTH SILO
YdAN

ONI YINNOAITYD 40 TILYXHEN
NSSY SAATHD HdTd YAYAEN
A0 NOISIAIQ HIVLS OVAHN

sweN @slotdmg/xopusa
Woxg

#3080 WOy

S F7:0T

68GZ0T
6LCT
TE2CT
CTT
TOS006
Z0%006
LGEOCSE
£0E006
Z0€006
T0E006
00ED06
662006
102006
00T006
6TET
ZTT
T0S006
Z0%006
66E006
£TT006
LOTO06
TDZ006
ST3006
CI6V0F
0STEOY
ZE6TCT
L¥VECT
TTSPO¥
BEGEOT
2GL¥0%
0TZTOT
S6£00¢C
9¢00T
TTI6%0F
ELZTOT
8T6¥0¥
90tE0T
S68E0¥
STLYVOT
068EZCT
CTOETOT
0T0E0T
TE9F0T

SWTL unyg

66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
661
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T

# uosisd Dbasg Mueg

91/80/80
coLTIg

10£98 dA
80ZsE ¥d
LDZGSE dg
9025¢ ud
S0ZSE  dS
¥0ZSE He
EQZSE e
AT AL I
TGZSE  dS
0025¢ s
6615 ¥d
B6TSE g
L6TSE g
96TGE g
P6TS5E ¥a
ZeTSt ¥d
T6eISE dd
06ISE ¥d
68TSE ud
€T0SE  ¥d
YLLFE dd
S0LFE g
TETPE da
96298 Mo
TET98 NI
06Z9% =
98798 o
£9298 o
8L298 o
99298 o
59298 o
£9z98 A
66298 M3
85298 M3
£5Z298 MO
6%298 M2
8FZ98 MO
£E¥T98 MO
6E£Z98 AD
SEZ9B  MAD
¥E€Z98 MO
TEZ98 ¥D
6298 ¥D
# Hoeyd di
23 uny

tON axodeoyw



OT'6E6'065 § OTP9SS €T § LST69'TS 936EBSS B8SSE9T6 S IBBLL § TRUPSTS GPEILTS Seib98Z5 OZISYBS GLOBEVZ § OZE87'0C1 § UL ZiLBT1 § 100CS6LL §  TVLOLQNYED

- s - 5 - s - $ - $ - S 15K 2d
- H 15K Xd
- $ - 5 - s - $ - H - S 1513 X
- s - 5 - 5 - 5 - $ 1510 24"
o1y 11]
68’9090 5 OTH9S S - $ IST69'T$ TBUGELS EBTBOY $ L6EE  § EVRIT $ OBBL $ BPOIZT § OUOLE § Zpi80T § TIbZ9S ¢ IE1568 5 SETELY 5 DASNAIVLOL
wawhedianp
SL6TZ'S $ TrvOT S 07'ETE % LEVSL  § w9 $ TWoe 3 OFET ¢ TSLEZ  $ 90TL  $ BOEOZ  § CEOWOT  § PLPSE'T 8 L102/9102
. pL'£88'sT  $ 6L°6SE S LEGLETS THL6E'TS OVBTEE § EGLT  § TLT6  § 0609 5 L6BEDT § pO'SOE § bEWSS ¢ GLEEST § TETSS'S $ IESLZZ § MO IVIOL
; 95°656'9T S LS90E S LL616 § TULRTOTS VESITT § LEBT  § OTT®  § £50v $ SLT69 § TTEGZ $ S968S  $ SE9SD'E ¢ 89Twer ¢ TUmce’ & 9102/5302
Se'zER'p § TIEST S S9'6SF § 0L'04L § TIUBOT'T § 976 $ SS0E $ 0T 0§ TTOYE  § ERTOT § 69'%WET  § vriTST 4 - g |e3030Ng
BSTEV'R S TTESTS S96SP S 0L0LL § TTGOT'T $ 916 $ SSOE  $ 4E0T 0§ TZ9VE  § EBTOT § 69WET  § YPIEST  $ £9'B09'F & ST0Z/YI0C
- 4 vroz/E10e
£T0Z/210Z
- [ T0Z/TI0Z
- 5 TT0Z/0102
- 4 0T0Z/600z
- - 4 600Z/8002
- 3 800Z/100¢
- 3 £00¢/900T
4055355V
IZ'ZEE095 § - & I8ty § - $ VO'ZEP'ES SLSTOUB S bRbbs § SESEVTS GOPYITS [BOLELCS OTOL0BS £L860EC8 ST'6S8'0ZT § ET9ZZ'OTT §  OSTLBLPLT § -SIVLO) LHOJ3Y
LETY H LETr & PR4N3as punysy
PE'06Z'098 § -8 - $ POTEV'ES SOSIOUBS vEGE. § BESEY'TS SUVKITS LBOLELZS OTOL0SS ELEETET § ST'6S90CT § ET9ZZ'OTT § STLRLPLT §  QIWND3S TWIOL
TEErE'PES § -8 - $ - $ 2WEETYBS VOLIL $ OGTYEZS 6U'BLS'TS $9062'9T% O0'BSZ'L S TEBLETT S 9BUBR'GIT § E6'TYS'ZOT § ZEZ0Z99T § LT/9TWLOL
wEr s £8'9 Ti 0] $ 610 S €10 5§ €12 $ €90 § 8T S I¥s S e S 55355y [enadg
6€°908'VES  § 695¥T'P8 & B6'9TL & TLUPET § SUBLST § SS8ST'OT § LEUSLL S 0S9LETT § SYELE'STT & EEIPSZ0T § ST'OST'99T § LT0Z/9T0Z
€0 TbY'sT § - % - S - $ PVOTEVES EZ'ESYE § 08'LZ 0§ BYE6 § 0599 $ 6T0S0T § OLEIE $ TPO0ZT6 § 6TOLLY $ OTPEYT § 6LPES'E  § MO IVLOL
ST'EIF'6T  $ - % - s - $ POLE0TS LSTELT § 9LTZ $ EOWL  § 0TOS S ZTESE  § ZOTST ¢ 8Uoer $ 0TP9L'e  $ 0TVRIT S WIEGT9  § 9107/5T0Z
TLTLT § EPT S 9y $ LITE $ I6ES $ 985t  $ GRSy S SLET $ 16195 §  ssassy ewads
POLEO'TS 986557 § EEOT S £T69  $ S04y § TT86L  $ 9TSEZ & 6E089 $ SEO9LSE $ 0ZVRYT $ EFIPYS § 9102/S10T
L[8'L16'S $ 00'SEE'TS 99084 § 09 § SPET  § 0E9T $ £0082Z $ 809 $ ET'WET  $ 60900'T & - $ SO'SLET ¢ |ejoagns
BE'TOP'E S LTTOL § BBYEF  § ISE § OTLTT 5 558 $ TOTEL  $ TOBE § O0GTIT ¢ ST'S8S s - $ BEZIET § ST02/¢T0Z
ssassy |eidads
LTT0L S 68VIF S ISE $ TLTIT $ 958 $ TYTET  § TOGE S O06TIT ¢ 51585 H 8E'Z8E'T  § S10Z/y10E
69'506 H 99T $ PLEOT 5 930 S 987 S 06T 5 BEZE $ 256 S 9547 S LB s - $ v§LEE S pIOZ/ET0ZIEI0)
55355y jeads
T § YLEOT $ 980 $ 987 $ 06T 3 8£78 S ¥56 $ 9542z IR 44 S bSLEE g YT0Z/ET0Z
86°072'T $ OP'EZE § STTHFT  § OTT S 88¢ S 09T S oTey S BT $ ESLE 5 TSVET s 95'65Y s £ToT/enoz
19'6E 4 96T % 05T $ E00 S 00 $ 500 $ Lo $ TT0 5 590 $ e S or's 3 T0T/1T0T
- $ TT0Z/0T0T
POETZ s SPET & LS0E S 520 $ 80 S 891 S §56 $ 187 3 €18 S E6TY 5 LE°86 S 0102/6002
00002 S 9g'br  $ 0442 S €20 $ 600 $ 6T S 598 § ¥5T S 9f¢ S ST'8E $ 0T'68 s £002/8002
- $ 8002/200Z
- $ £00Z/9002
- s 9002/500g
WLOL %LUV LNDBAD  %5u/¥  SALIYNI  ¥INI/IHA  HLNOA JO¥ ANl Q3 ani ETL T nov dvd 2Q HIS dOHIS alo isnam TvyINID HIVASYIEL
91 90S95-T00 HOTWE-TOO 100 0sz 100 58T 010 0Lt 050 091 0sT 005-T00 100

910z AIng




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

L. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2016-17
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions

2. Recommended meotion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: NRS 361 provides for property tax exemptions to individuals who meet
certain criteria. Exemption applications and renewals are typically due to our office on or
before June 15™ of each fiscal year, but circumstances beyond a taxpayer’s control may
cause a delay and, as a result, an exemption not being applied to the tax bill. In cases where
the Assessor’s Office feels that the taxpayer could not have reasonably filed their
exemption application or renewal by the deadline, or if there is an unforeseeable error
causing the exemption to not be applied correctly, the tax bill may be amended by the
Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the
affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter(s) with adjusted assessed values.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Compitroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: -~
_ X__ Department He}% Department Name: Assessor’s Office
%ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denicd

Approved with Modifications
Continued

En N e |
e ]

Agenda [tem No.

6/V




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

(/1777 m 26 South B Street
P.O. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

August 5, 2016
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: Corrections for Exemptions

The owners of the properties listed below should have had a personal exemption applied to their
property for the 2016-17 tax year. For various reasons, the taxpayer was either unaware of their
eligibility for the exemption, a clerical error occurred, or the exemption renewals or percentage
changes were not received and processed by our office before the close of the 2016-17 re-opened
secured roll. Therefore, we were unable to apply or adjust the exemptions prior to the printing of
their tax bill. The adjusted net assessed values and the net assessed value overrides should be:

. R Current Year Net
C i t Pri GAY —
APN Lurrent Net Exemption Amount Adjusted Ne ror Yr. Assessed Value
— Assessed Assessed : Override - . )
, T U T Override
. 00353124 28388 2600 25785 18,668 16,603
001-207-18 26232 1,300 24932 16562 15,742

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and send a new
tax bill or refund as necessary.

Starey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda|] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2016-17
Secured Tax Roll for Clerical Error

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: A clerical error on parcel number 003-283-14 occurred before the close of the
2016-17 Secured Tax Roll. The improvements value entered was incorrect, as the structure

is only 55% complete. The tax bill was generated based on the incorrect value, and may
require adjustment.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__ X Department Hea Department Name: Assessor’s Office

@ﬂjfﬁm Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.

5/vVI




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

ane Sedden hribans
P.O. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

August 5, 2016

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 003-283-14

The above referenced parcel was billed with errors for the 2016-17 tax year. A clerical error

occurred, and the assessed value of Improvements requires correction. The structure is only 55%
complete. In accordance with NRS 361.765, T am requesting the following changes be made:

Assessed Land ImAssessed s | E ton Net Prior Year
Value pl’\(;:;;: cnts xcmp Assessed | GAV Override
2016-17 Billed 13,247 29,842 2,600 40,489 28,450
2016-17 Corrected 13,247 17,453 2,600 28,100 28,450

Please approve these corrections, and advise the County Treasurer to make the changes and issue
a corrected tax bill and/or refund to the taxpayer, if necessary.

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16, 2016 Estimate of time required: 30 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

I.

Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval to authorize the County Manager to
finalize submittal language regarding Storey County’s singular Bill Draft Request (BDR)
allocation for the 2017 Nevada Legislative Session to the Legislative Counsel Bureau
(LCB) regarding restructuring of the current composition of the Nevada Commission for
the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway (Rail Commission) as provided for in the Chapter
566, 1993 Statutes of Nevada as amended by Chapter 42, 2001 Statutes of Nevada. For
further clarification, while additional minor verbiage changes may occur subsequent to
Commission approval and prior to submittal of the BDR by or before the Legislative
deadline of September 1, 2016, the core fundamental language must address and cover the
following concepts:

a. Restructure the Rail Commission Board as constituted under Chapter 42, 2001
Statutes of Nevada, reducing the current structure from nine (9) Rail
Commissioners to five (5) consisting of:

i. One elected Supervisor, or a designated staff appointee from Carson City
appointed by the Carson City Board of Supervisors.
. One elected Commissioner, or a designated staff appointee from Storey
County appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.
ili. The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Carson City
Convention and Visitors Bureau.
iv. The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission.
v. One member appointed by the Governor.

b. The effective date of this change, if approved, would be October 1, 2017

¢. Others elements as may be recommended by Storey County Legal Counsel, Storey
County’s acknowledged Legislative Lobbyists including, but not limited to Walker
& Associates and the LCB.

Recommended motion: I, (Commissioner), move to approve and authorize the County
Manager to finalize submittal language regarding Storey County’s singular Bill Draft
Request (BDR) allocation for the 2017 Nevada Legislative Session to the Legislative
Counsel Bureau (LCB) regarding restructuring of the current composition of the Nevada
Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway (Rail Commission) as provided
for in the Chapter 566, 1993 Statutes of Nevada as amended by Chap. 42, 2001 Statutes of
Nevada. Additionally, I move to condition approval of submittal based on the requirements
that the fundamental language must address and encompass the following provisions:

a. Restructure the Rail Commission Board as constituted under Chap. 42, 2001

Statutes of Nevada, reducing the current structure from nine (9) Rail




Commissioners to five (5) consisting of:
i. One elected Supervisor, or a designated staff appointee from Carson City
appointed by the Carson City Board of Supervisors.
ii. One elected Commissioner, or a designated staff appointee from Storey
County appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.
iii. The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Carson City
Convention and Visitors Bureau.
iv. The Executive Director, or equivalent position, of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission.
v. One member appointed by the Governor.
b. The effective date of this change, if approved, would be October 1, 2017
c. Others elements as may be recommended by Storey County Legal Counsel, Storey
County’s acknowledged Legislative Lobbyists including, but not limited to Walker
& Associates and Greg Hess and the Legislative Counsel Bureau (L.CB).

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: See next page

5. Supporting materials:
e Present provisions of the Statutes of Nevada governing the Rail Commission (Exhibit A)
o Preliminary rough draft of LCB submittal form for BDR consideration (Exhibit B)
o Financial analysis of “long-line” operations based on data provided thru August 7, 2016.
(Exhibit C)

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Limited to existing staff support Fund: TBD  Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
Q%nty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e )

Agenda Item No.

g




Staff summary: Currently, operations and governance of the “long-line” rail tourist attraction of
the V&T is delegated to the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway (Rail
Commission) as first structured under Chapter 566 of the 1993 Statutes of Nevada and as amended
by Chapter 42 of the 2001 Statutes of Nevada. This includes a governing board of nine (9) Rail
Commissioners consisting of:
One clected Supervisor from Carson City
One elected Commissioner from Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe Counties
One member appointed by the Virginia and Truckee Historical Railroad Society
One member appointed by the Governor
One member appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly
* One member appointed by the Senate Majority Leader
Time and experience, at least from the Storey County perspective is that this 9-member
Commission has struggled and failed to deliver acceptable results, at least for Storey County and
Virginia City, commensurate with the level of our investment as provided for through our voter
approved and extended one quarter cent (1/4 cent) sales tax override. Rail operations between
Carson City and Virginia City are fiscally modeled to lose money on every trip and the overall
project has been forced to remain solvent only thru liquidation of assets and conducting a currently
popular and “in-trend” annual event that provides little to no benefit to Storey County or Virginia
City beyond keeping the operation afloat. It is staff’s opinion and position that the primary causal
factors center on both the size and pertinent interests (or lack thereof) of the various Rail
Commission Board members. More bluntly stated, the majority of Rail Commissioners have zero
vested fiscal interests and some local governments currently involved recognize this and quietly
question why they are even on the Rail Commission Board. As far as the additional appointees
from the Governor, Speaker of the Assembly and Senate Majority Leader, staff believes this
should be pared down to one, hopefully from the sitting Governor who also must consider the
ramifications and impacts on tourism, which is the over-arching theme of this entire project. There
are a multitude of additional lesser factors to be considered but it is patently apparent that we need
to finally address the composition of the Rail Commission Board in order to effectively move
forward with progressive corrective action targeted toward improving bottom line fiscal results as
well as impacts on tourism. As such, and after discussions with high level Rail Commission staff
and officials, as well as very tentative and non-committal discussions with most of the Local
Government Jurisdictions that are currently required to sit on the Rail Commission Board, staff
recommends that the Rail Commission be reduced from 9 members to 5 members, which would
consist of the following:
* One elected Supervisor, or a designated staff appointee from Carson City appointed by the
Carson City Board of Supervisors
¢ One elected Commissioner, or a designated staff appointee from Storey County appointed
by the Storey County Board of Commissioners
¢ The Executive Director, or equivalent position of the Carson City Convention and Visitor’s
Bureau (CCCVB)
e The Executive Director, or equivalent position of the Virginia City Tourism Commission
(VCTC)
¢ One member appointed by the Governor
A Board so constituted would consist of representatives from agencies and local governments with
a direct vested interest in the funding and financial results of the V&T long-line operations
between Carson City and Virginia City. Since the Rail Commission is established under Chap.
566. 1993 Statutes of Nevada as amended by Chap. 42, 2001 Statutes of Nevada, the only way to
enact change is thru the Legislative process. The deadline for submission of a Bill Draft Resolution
(BDR) for consideration during the 2017 Legislative Session is September 1, 2016. A preliminary




draft copy of the BDR submittal form is included. Staff continues to work with our Legislative
Representatives, legal counsel, lobbyists and the LCB to ensure compliance with the established
requirements for BDR submittal. As such, there may be minor adjustments and “tweaks” in
wording however, the core content will contain provisions for reducing the Rail Commission
Board from 9 members to 5 members consisting of designated representatives as indicated above.
For Storey County to submit it’s one BDR for consideration during the 2017 Legislative Session,
the Storey County Board of Commissioners must approve submittal. As such, Staff’s
recommended action is to approve submittal subject to the conditions specified in the
recommended motion (2) above and within this Agenda Action Report.




Exeaesy B
NEVADA COMMISSION FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE V & T RAILWAY

Chapter 566, Statutes of Nevada 1993

AN ACT creating the Tricounty Railway Commission of Carson City and Lyon and Storey counties;
praviding for the appointment, number, terms, reimbursement, powers and duties of the
commissioners; specifying the powers of the commission; and providing other matters properly
refating thereto. [Approved July 12, 1993]
(Leadlines for sections have been supplied by the Legisiative Counsel of the State of Nevada)

Whereas, On February 19, 1869, ground was broken for the Virginia and Truckee Railroad and 8
months later it was doing business between Virginia City and Carson City, a distance of 21 miles; and

Whereas, The 13-mile portion of the track between Virginia City and the Carson River is a
continuous incline that has caused the Virginia and Truckee Railroad to be called the “crookedest”
railway in the United States because the total of the curves in the track are equal to going 17 times
around a circle; and

Whereas, Running from 30 to 45 frains per day, the Virginia and Truckee Railroad carried suppiies
of all kinds, including heavy machinery for the mines and goods and merchandise for the towns of
Virginia City and Gold Hill and returned with ore from the mines for the mills on the Carson River,
carrying from 500 to 800 tons of ore daily out of the Comstock Lode; and

Whereas, The Virginia and Truckee Railroad has been recognized nationally as one of the
greatest engineering feats of the 1800s; and

Whereas, The Nevada Legislature hereby finds and declares that a general law cannot be made
applicable because of the unique nature of the opportunity to restore this “iron horse” of the past and
the variety of local governments that must be involved in the restoration; now, therefore,
The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact

as follows:
Section 1. Definitions. As used in this act, uniess the context otherwise

requires:
1. “Commission” means the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway

created pursuant o section 2 of this act.
2. "Commissioner” means a person appointed to serve on the Commission pursuant to section 3

of this act.

3. "County” includes Carson City.

4. “Governing bodies” means the Board of Supervisors of Carson City and the Boards of County
Commissioners of Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe counties.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2326; A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 400)

Sec. 2. Creation; exemption from taxation; geographical jurisdiction; construction of act.

1. The Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway of Carson City and
Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe counties is hereby created.

2. The property and revenues of the Commission, and any interest therein, are exempt from all

state and local taxation.

3. The Commission is a body corporate and politic, the geographical jurisdiction of which is
Caison City and Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe counties.

4. The provisions of this act must be broadly construed to accomplish its purposes.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2326; A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 400)

Sec. 3. Composition; appointment and terms of members; vacancies.

1. The Commission must be composed of nine Commissioners appcinted as follows:

(a) One member who is a member of the Board of Supervisors of Carson City appointed by the

Board of Supervisors of Carson City;
(b) One member appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Douglas County from

among its members;
(c) One member appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Lyon County from among

its members;




{d) One member appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County from among

its members;
{e) One member appointed by the Board of County Commissianers of Washoe County from

among its members:
(f) One member appointed by the Virginia and Truckee Historical Railroad Society from among its

members.
(9) One member appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly;

(h) One member appointed by the Senate Majority Leader; and

(i) One member appointed by the Governor.

2. If the Virginia and Truckee Historical Railroad Society ceases to exist but is replaced by an
entity which is organized for the same purposes, that entity is entitled to appoint the member pursuant
to paragraph (f) of subsection 1. If the society ceases to exist and is not replaced, the number of
commissioners is reduced fo eight and no member may be appointed pursuant to paragraph (fy of
subsection 1.

3. The terms of the two members serving on the Commission pursuant to paragraph (a) of
subsection 1 on July 1, 2001, expire on that date. As soon as practicable after July 1, 2001, the
appointing authorities shall make any appointments required by subsection 1. All of the appointments
must be for initial terms of 1, 2 or 3 years to ensure staggered terms. After the initial terms, the term
of office of each commissioner is 4 years. A member is eligible for reappointment.

4. The office of a member who is required as a qualification for appaintment to be a member of
the body appointing him becomes vacant on the date he ceases to be a member of that appointing
body.
5. Each commissioner serves at the pleasure of his appointing authority, and all vacancies must
be filied for the unexpired term in the same manner as the original appointment.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2326; A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 400)

Sec. 4. Oath of office; compensation; officers; records; treasurer's bond.

1. Each commissioner appointed pursuant to paragraph (b), (c), (d) or (&) of subsection 1 of
section 3 of this act shall file his oath of office with the clerk of the county from which he was
appointed, and all other commissioners shall file their oaths of office with the Clerk of Carson City.

2. The commissioners must serve without compensation, but a Commissioner may be
reimbursed for expenses actuaily incurred by him for travel authorized by the Commission.

3. The Commission shall elect a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer from among
its members. The Secretary and the Treasurer may be one person. The terms of the officers expire on
July 1 of each odd-numbered year.

4. The Secretary shall maintain a record of all of the proceedings of the Commission, minutes of
all meetings, certificates, contracts and other acts of the Commission. The records must be open to
the inspection of all interested persons at a reasonable time and place.

5. The Treasurer shall keep an accurate account of all money received by and disbursed on
behaif of the Commission. He shall file with the Clerk of Carson City, at the expense of the
Commission, a fidelity bond in an amount not less than $10,000, conditioned for the faithful
performance of his duties.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2327; A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 401)

Sec. 5. Meetings; limitation of liability of Commissioners.

1. The Commission shall meet upon the call of the Chairman or a majority of the commissioners.

2. Amajority of the commissioners constitutes a quorum at any meeting.

3. The governing bodies shall each make available an appropriate meeting room and provide
adequate clerical staff and equipment to provide adequate notice of the meeting and to produce
minutes of the meeting and any other assistance necessary to allow the Commission to comply with

the provisions of chapter 241 of NRS.
4. The Commission shall alternate the location of its meetings among the facilities provided

pursuant to subsection 3.
5. A commissioner is not personally liable for any actions taken or omitted in good faith in the

performance of his duties pursuant to the provisions of this act.




(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2327)

Sec. 6. General powers. The Commission may:

1. Acquire by gift, devise, purchase, lease or trade any real and personal property it deems
necessary for any project authorized by this act.

2. Lease, sell or otherwise dispose of any property.

3. Enter into any contracts necessary for any project authorized by this act. The duration of any
such contracts may exceed the terms of office of the commissioners.

4. Construct and provide for the maintenance of walkways, parks and pathways for bicycles.

5. Solicit, accept and use gifts, grants and other donations from public and private sources.

6. Exercise the power of eminent domain as provided in chapter 37 of NRS to acquire the
property rights necessary for any project authorized by this act, which is hereby declared to be a
public purposs.

7. Adopt, enforce, amend and repeal any rules and regulations necessary for the administration
and use of any railway, park, walkways, pathway for bicycles or other facilities leased, constructed,

created or acquired by the Commission.
8. Employ or contract with any persons or governmental entities necessary for the operation or

maintenance of any project authorized pursuant to this act.

9. Establish fees and other charges for the use of any railway, park, walkways, pathway for
bicycles or other facilities leased, constructed, created or acquired by the Commission.

10. Regulate vehicular traffic on the right of ways and property leased or owned by the

Commission.
11. Grant any exclusive franchises and concessions it deems appropriate to carry out the

provisions of this act.
12. Take such other actions necessary to accomplish the purposes of this act and to comply with
any statute or regulation of this state or of the Federal Government.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2328)
Sec. 7. Establishing and maintaining railway; regulation of franchisees and concessionaires;

exemption from regulation by Public Utiiities Commission of Nevada.

1. The Commission may do all things necessary to establish and maintain a railway, including,
without limitation:

(a) Purchasing, leasing or otherwise acquiring right of ways and constructing railways and any
facilities or other appurtenances it deems appropriate in connection therewith; and

(b} Operating or granting franchises for the operation of a railroad that carries passengers to
locations within the jurisdiction of the Commission.

2. In addition to regulation by another agency related to public health and safety that is required
by local ordinance or state or federal law, the Commission shall regulate all franchisees and
concessionaires who operate on the right-of-way or property owned or leased by the Commission.

3. Arailway acquired, constructed or leased by the Commission pursuant to this act is not a
street railway for the purposes of chapter 709 of NRS.

4. Notwithstanding any provision of title 58 of NRS to the contrary, the rates charged by a railroad
operaied by the Commission or pursuant to a franchise or other agreement with the Commission, are
not subject to reguiation by the Public Utilittes Commission of Nevada. )

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1893 p. 2328, A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 402; Ch. 2, Stats. 2003 p. 2)

Sec. 8. Legal services; fund for the Commission; use of money in fund.

1. The Commission may enter into an agreement with the district attorney of Carson City or
Douglas, Lyon, Storey or Washoe County, or any combination thereof, to provide legal services to the
Commission. The Commission may authorize payment to the district attorney for the costs to the

district attorney for providing those services.
2. The Commission shali enter into an agreement with the Treasurer of Carson City or Douglas,

Lyon, Storey or Washoe County to create a fund for the Commission and pay all claims against the
fund that are properly approved by the Commission. The Commission may authorize payment to the
Treasurer for the costs to the Treasurer for providing those services.




3. All money received by the Commission must be deposited in the fund created pursuant to
subsection 2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.37945, the money in the fund must be used
only for the necessary expenses of the Commission and the costs of the projects authorized by this
act,
(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2329; A—Ch. 42, Stats. 2001 p. 402; Ch. 99, Stats. 2001 p. 586)

Sec. 9. Budget; funding of costs; Commission nhot entitled to distribution of revenue from
supplemental city-county relief tax. [Effective through December 31, 2005.]

1. The Commission shall adopt a budget for its operation and for each project it proposes for
presentation to the governing bodies. Each budget must be accompanied by a proposed allocation of
the net cost of the budget among the governing bodies which must be based upon the benefit of the
Commission or project to the jurisdiction of the governing body or another equally appropriate
indicator.

2. Upon final determinatior and allocation of the costs by agreement of the governing bodies,
each governing body shall include its portion of the costs in its budget for the purposes of chapter 354

of NRS and shall fund its share of the cost by:

{a) Issuing bonds pursuant to chapter 350 of NRS;

{b) Imposing an additional tax on the rental of transient lodging;

(c) Upon approval by the voters, imposing an additional tax upon retailers at a rate not exceeding
one-half of 1 percent of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of tangible personal property
sold at retail, or stored, used or otherwise consumed in the county;

(d) Upon approval of the voters, levying a property tax not exceeding 2 cents per $100 of
assessed valuation on alf taxable property in the county; or

{(e) Any combinaticn of the options provided in paragraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, including the
issuance of bonds which will be repaid from the revenue of one or more of the taxes authorized in this
section which may be treated as pledged revenues for the purposes of NRS 350.020.

3. If the county imposes a tax pursuant to paragraph (c¢) of subsection 2 it shall include in the
ordinance imposing the tax:

(a) Provisions substantially identical to those contained in chapter 374 of NRS;

(b) A provision stating that alf amendments to chapter 374 of NRS after the date of enactment of
the ordinance, not inconsistent with the provisions of the ordinance, automatically become a part of
the ordinance:

(c) A provision that the county shall contract before the effective date of the ordinance with the
Department to perform all functions incident to the administration or operation of the tax in the county;
and
(d) The date on which the tax must first be imposed, which must not be earlier than the first day of

the second calendar month following the adoption of the ordinance by the governing body.
4. The Commission is not entitled to a distribution of revenue from the supplemental city-county

relief tax.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2329)

Sec. 9. Budget; funding of costs; Commission not entitled to distribution of revenue from
supplemental city-county relief tax. [Effective January 1, 2006.]

1. The Commission shall adapt a budget for its operation and for each project it proposes for
presentation to the govemning bodies. Each budget must be accompanied by a proposed allocation of
the net cost of the budget among the governing bodies which must be based upon the benefit of the
Commission or project to the jurisdiction of the governing body or another equally appropriate
indicator.

2. Upon final determination and allocation of the costs by agreement of the governing bodies,
each governing body shall include its portion of the costs in its budget for the purposes of chapter 354

of NRS and shall fund its share of the cost by:
{a) [ssuing bonds pursuant to chapter 350 of NRS;
{b) Imposing an additional tax on the rental of transient lodging;




(c) Upon approval by the voters, imposing an additional tax upon retailers at a rate not exceeding
one-half of 1 percent of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of tangible personal property
sold at retall, or stored, used or otherwise consumed in the county;

(d) Upon approval of the voters, levying a property tax not exceeding 2 cents per $100 of
assessed valuation on all taxable property in the county; or

(e) Any combination of the options provided in paragraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, including the
issuance of bonds which will be repaid from the revenue of one or more of the taxes authorized in this
section which may be treated as pledged revenues for the purposes of NRS 350.020.

3. If the county imposes a tax pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 2 it shall inctude in the
ordinance imposing the tax;

(a) Provisions substantially identical to those contained in chapter 374 of NRS;

(b) A provision stating that all amendments to chapter 374 of NRS after the date of enactment of
the ordinance, not inconsistent with the provisions of the ordinance, automatically become a part of
the ordinance;

(c) A provision that the county shall contract before the effective date of the ordinance with the
Department to perform all functions incident to the administration or operation of the tax in the county;
and
(d) The date on which the tax must first be imposed, which must be the first day of the first
calendar quarter that begins at least 120 days after the adoption of the ordinance by the governing

body.
4. The Commission is not entitled to a distribution of revenue from the supplemental city-county

relief tax.

(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2329; A—Ch. 400, Stats. 2003 p. 2389, effective January 1, 2006)

Sec. 10. Severability. If any provision of this act or the application thereof to any person, thing or
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect the provisions or applications of the act that
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this

act are severable.
(Ch. 566, Stats. 1993 p. 2330)

Chapter 676, Statutes of Nevada 1995
AN ACT making a contingent appropriation to the Tricounty Railway Commission of Carson City and

Lyon an Storey counties for restoration of the railroad line from Virginia City to Carson City; and

providing other matters properly relating thereto.

[Approved July 6, 1995]
(Leadlines for sections have been supplied by the Legislative Counsel of the State of Nevada)

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

Section 1. Contingent appropriation for establishment of raiiroad line.

1. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund to the Tricounty Railway
Commission of Carson City and Lyon and Storey counties the sum of $5,000,000 for the
establishment of a railroad line similar to the former Virginia & Truckee Railroad from Virginia City
through the Gold Hill area to Carson City, including, without limitation:

(a) Acquisition of the right-of-way necessary for the railway and any appurtenances thereto:

(b} Construction of the track, including any necessary preparation of the underlying surface; and

(c) Purchase or other acquisition of any associated equipment.

2. The appropriation made by subsection 1 is contingent upon:

(a) The Tricounty Railway Commission obtaining money from any public or private source in an
amount of $15,000,000 for support of the establishment of the railroad fine.

(b) The Tricounty Railway Commission entering into a written agreement with the State Board of
Examiners to repay the amount of this appropriation by transferring to the State Treasurer at least 6
percent of the price charged or $1 per ticket sold, whichever is greater, per persaon to ride upon the
railroad line once it is completed until the amount of the appropriation has been repaid. The
agreement must set forth the terms of repayment.

{¢) The receipt by the State Board of Examiners of a first security interest in favor of the State of
Nevada upon the railroad track, the right-of-way acquired and all equipment and other assets of the




Tricounty Railway Commission to the extent necessary, as determined by the State Board of
Examiners, to secure the repayment of the appropriation made by subsection 1.

(Ch. 676, Stats. 1995 p. 2589)

Sec. 2. Reversion of appropriation. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by section
1 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after April 1, 1999, and reverts to the State
General Fund as soon as all payments of money have been made.

(Ch. 676, Stats. 1995 p. 2589; A—Ch, 566, Stats. 1999 p.2971)
Chapter 566, Statutes of Nevada 1999
AN ACT relating to State Financial Administration; authorizing the issuance of general obligation
bonds to pay a portion of the costs of establishing a certain tricounty railway; revising the provision
governing the reversion of the appropriation made during the 68th Session of the Nevada Legislature
to the Tricounty Railway Commission of Carson City, Lyon and Storey counties; and providing other

matters properly relating thereto.

[Approved June 9, 1999]
{Leadiines for sections have been supplied by the Legislative Counsel of the State of Nevada)

Whereas, in reliance on Assembly Bill No. 113 of the 1995 Legislative Session, the Tricounty
Railway Commission of Carson City and Lyon and Storey counties has been working diligently to
obtain the required $15 miliion from public and private sources to support the establishment of a
railroad line similar to the former Virginia & Truckee Railroad from Virginia City through the

Gold Hill area to Carson City; and
Whereas, This historic reconstruction has wide public support and will benefit the entire Western

Nevada region; and

Whereas, Itis impartant that the State of Nevada honor its 1995 commitment to contribute one-
fourth of the costs of this project contingent upon the success of the local effort to raise the
remainder; and

Whereas, If current financial conditions require the withdrawal of the 1995 appropriation, then the
State of Nevada must find an alternative method to keep its commitment to this economic
development project; now, therefore,

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

Section 1. Contingent issuance of general obligation bonds for establishment of railroad line.

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, the State Board of Finance shall issue general
obligation bonds of the State of Nevada in the face amount of not more than $5,000,000. The
proceeds of the bonds must be allocated for the establishment of a railroad line similar to the former
Virginia & Truckee Railroad from Virginia City through the Gold Hill area to Carson City, including,
without flimitation:

(a) Acquisition of the right-of-way necessary for the railway and any appurtenances thereto;

(b) Construction of the track, including any necessary preparation of the underlying surface; and

(c) Purchase or other acquisition of any associated equipment.

2. The expenses related to the issuance of bonds pursuant to this section must be paid from the
proceeds of the bonds, and must not exceed 2 percent of the face amount of the bonds sold.

3. The State Board of Finance shall not issue the general obligation bonds pursuant to
subsection 1 uniess on or before July 1, 2003:

{(a) The Tricounty Railway Commission has received commitments for at least $15,000,000 from
other public or private sources, or both, for the establishment of the railroad line.

(b) The Tricounty Railway Commission has entered into a written agreement with the State Board
of Examiners to repay the amount of these bonds by transferring to the State Treasurer at least 6
percent of the price charged or $1 per ticket sold, whichever is greater, per person to ride upon the
raifroad line once it is completed until $5,000,000 has been repaid to the State Treasurer. The
agreement must set forth the terms of repayment.

(c) The State Board of Examiners has received a first security interest in favor of the State of
Nevada upon the railroad track, the right-of-way acquired and all equipment and other assets of the
Tricounty Railway Commission to the extent necessary, as determined by the State Board of

Examiners, to secure the repayment of the $5,000,000.




4. The provisions of the State Securities Law, contained_in chapter 349
of NRS, apply to the issuance of bonds pursuant to this section.
(Ch. 566, Stats. 1999 p. 2970)




Exaeyy

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
BILL DRAFT REQUEST
FOR THE
2017 LEGISLATIVE SESSION

* Person or Entity Authorized to Submit BDR: Storey County Manager Pat Whitten on
behalf of and as authorized by the Storey County Board of Commissioners at their August

16, 2016 Commission Meeting,
* Name of Person Submitting Request: Pat Whitten — Storey County Manager

*1. Intent of Proposed Bill or Resolution (Describe the problem to be solved, intended
effect, and/or the goal(s) of the proposed bill or resolution — may be attached as separate
document): Please see attached Exhibit A

2. Any additional information that may be helpful in drafting the bill (e.g., any
relevant legislative measures, cases or federal or state laws — may be attached as separate

document): Please see attached Exhibit B containing:
¢ Storey County Board of Commissioners Agenda for their August 16, 2016

Commission Meeting,
* Preliminary fiscal analysis of long-line rail operations between Carson City and

Virginia City for the 2016 season.

* Required fields.

Bill Draft Request — Local Government (Revised 6/27/16) Page 1 of 3




3. NRS Title(s), Chapter(s) and Section(s) affected and/or Nevada Constitutional
provisions affected: Chapter 566 of the 1993 Statutes of Nevada as amended by Chapter
42 01 2001 Statutes of Nevada

4. Effective Date:
X Default (October 1, 2017)
1 July 1, 2017
L] January 1, 2018
O Upon Passage and Approval
O Other

*5. Person(s) to be consulted if more information is needed:
Name: Pat Whitten - Storey County Manager

Phone Number(s): (775) 847-0968 or (775) 721-7001
E-mail Address: pwhitten@storeycounty.org

6. Description of any known cost to the State or a local government that would result
from carrying out the changes in the bill if enacted: No known or anticipated costs to the
State of Nevada. Potential reduction in costs to the local governments of Douglas, Lyon and
Washoe Counties associated with travel and per diem costs of their designated participants.
Strong anticipated net cost reductions to the local government entities of Carson City, Storey
County and the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway. While
some addition costs may be incurred by these local governments if they assume
responsibility for certain necessary functions currently out-sourced such as fiscal
accounting, they will be more than offset by reduction in the anticipated levels of financial
participation required to support sustained operations,

7. If this bill draft request is required to be approved in a public meeting, please list
the entity that approved the request and the date on which the request was approved:
Storey County thru their Board of Commissioners as approved on August 16, 2016.

REQUIRED PREFILING:

Non-Legislators: A bill draft requested by any entity other than a legislator or a legislative
committee is required to be prefiled on or before the third Wednesday of November
preceding the regular legislative session (Wednesday, November 16, 2016). By statute, a

* Required fields.

Bill Draft Request — Local Government (Revised 6/27/16) Page 2 of 3




measure that is not prefiled on or before that date is deemed to be withdrawn. There is no
authority to waive this requirement.

Please submit completed Bill Draft Request form by mail to: Brenda Erdoes, Legislative
Counsel, Legislative Building, 401 South Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada 89701, by
e-mail at erdoes@lch state.nv.us or by fax at (775) 684-6761.

* Required fields.

Bill Draft Request — Local Government (Revised 6/27/16) Page 3 of 3




Local Government Bill Draft Request for the 2017 Legislative Session Exhibit A

1. Intent of Proposed Bill or Resolution:
Currently, operations and governance of the “long-line” rail tourist attraction of the V&T is
delegated to the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway (Rail
Commission) as structured under Chapter 566 of the 1993 Statutes of Nevada as amended by
Chapter 42 of the 2001 Statutes of Nevada. This includes a governing board of nine (9) Rail
Commissioners consisting of:
* One elected Supervisor from Carson City
One elected Commissioner from Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe Counties
One member appointed by the Virginia and Truckee Historical Railroad Society
One member appointed by the Governor
One member appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly
¢ One member appointed by the Senate Majority Leader
Time and experience has indicated that this 9-member Commission has struggled and failed to
deliver acceptable results, at least for Storey County and Virginia City, commensurate with the
level of our investment as provided for thru our voter approved and extended one quarter cent
(1/4 cent) sales tax override provided for under Chapter 566 of the 1993 Statutes of Nevada as
amended by Chapter 42 of the 2001 Statutes of Nevada. Rail operations between Carson City
and Virginia City are fiscally modeled to lose money on every irip and the overall project has
been forced to remain solvent only thru liquidation of assets and conducting a currently popular
and “in-trend” annual event that provides little to no benefit to Storey County or Virginia City
beyond keeping the operation afloat. It is Storey County’s opinion and position that the primary
causal factors center on both the size and pertinent interests (or lack thereof) of the various Rail
Commission Board members. Otherwise stated, the majority of Rail Commissioners have zero
vested fiscal interests and some local governments currently involved recognize this and quietly
question why they are even on the Rail Commission Board. As far as the additional appointees
from the Governor, Speaker of the Assembly and Senate Majority Leader, we further believe this
should be pared down to one, hopefully from the sitting Governor who also must consider the
ramifications and impacts on tourism, which is the over-arching purpose and mission of this
entire project. It is clear that we need to again address the composition of the Rail Commission
Board in order to effectively move forward with progressive corrective action targeted toward
improving bottom line fiscal results as well as impacts on tourism. As such, Storey County, thru
it Board of County Commissioners and their staff recommends that the Rail Commission be
reduced from 9 members to 5 members, which would consist of the following:
e One elected Supervisor, or a designated staff appointee from Carson City appointed by
the Carson City Board of Supervisors
e One elected Commissioner, or a designated staff appointee from Storey County appointed
by the Storey County Board of Commissioners
e The Executive Director, or equivalent position of the Carson City Convention and
Visitor’s Bureau (CCCVB)
s The Executive Director, or equivalent position of the Virginia City Tourism Commission
(VCTC)
e One member appointed by the Governor
A Board so constituted would consist of representatives from agencies and local governments
with a direct vested interest in the funding and financial results of the V&T long-line operations
between Carson City and Virginia City. Since the Rail Commission is established under the
Statutes of Nevada, the only way to enact change is thru the Legislative process. Storey County
appreciates the consideration of and by the Legislative Counsel Bureau, the Nevada State
Legislature, the Governor and others involved in the process.




P (£2) 98esany

leossy'sy-  8S'WS uss 1086'SS LE'BSO'SS

et ewes  wesers  ooowoss  ousoers  sos  swiol

C

R ks M1 A L -

E 90€°9$ wl 91508

£89'T$-  0E6'S$ EVT'ES v 9TTEL

U e Cosres oee'ss  ooces s C otoes

i N i 0Lt o e

S P o e e o R

poz'ss- L19%- | 086'SS _STT 9TIL

EI1ts 6855 0F6'sS L 1

| eess ove$-  0E6'ss B 9TST

£2L's$- oYU'T$- 086’ . 66 . 9T0TL

0EV'9S- EY8IS-  0E6'sS 56 . oTe0L

0ST'9$- €9S'TS-  086'S$ 6 9T80L

| Le9Es 068 . OE6'SS wr oreoL

T9ELS LTS 0E6'SS €9 9Tl

ozres- _€ESTS- | 0€6'SS Wt orTot

o ey . v9gs 0E6'SS o ET 9T979

Aeq siayied|8ST eS- .. 6w'Ts og6'ss el . 91619

(324358 BVETS | 0E6'SS SYT | 918l

o STE'SS- '8TLS- 0£6°9S 180T _ 9T-ZT-9

s S S e OO0 LR 1

T0Z'9$- YIS 086'sS 16 91509

£19'5S- 0£0'T$-  0€6'SS - S6 9T-v09

STE'ES o TL9s 0g6'ss &L 9T-62-S

B 8TS'VS- 65$ . 0£6'SS gt o187
—rad e B DS

e mmoneiet TORRE - S L

191'9%

0£ELS-

e
e

N

Craise

wr 91-80-S
_______ S8 L 9TLos

9T/9t/v

13N mmmhg&::co_pmuo“‘? peaysang  140id ss09. 1s0j.iojesadg  SnUSAY $s0I1D.  pJeoqy

| .mamn_‘ ‘

9107 ‘0T 3sn8ny| ‘deday uny IA 18A




910Z/01/8

TTive vmm ._“

00000057 | P B e S K3 eIUIEIA Ul uoamﬁ 1SK8) plo 3Y1 4o asepind 3y Joj 1 :BmE Jue8 awn

mco e Suiacudde .>m>>__mm L1gaay 10 cozu:‘smcoumm ay3 Jo} UOISSILLIO?) mtm_;mz
o ucm 3::8 2101 cmmz;mn_ 010z om >m_>_ nm“mv EmEmEm< _muc:BE 53d

Sriveveen . ] e e | feio: >E8m ol uond
- 1 T - co;:n__:m_n_ Xey sajes cosmxm_. j0 EmEtmgwo epens Jed

Ev'88TLIT - ) 1 " orzve'sc | eL(BL'BC | BL'WCO'ST m;mo.mﬂw,mﬁ_:,. CPTTITET
i S N RN A N i s s

£0'8VLTT | T8'896'UT | 90°TSK'ET 6402271 e 1o’ 8T

m.SN papu3 Jeaj Jepusjed 104

(GGESSBYC | (L0E9'VT  LTBLCEL | LSBTTC

*eeonnn

9sv'ess | veEOTBC | 06wy 6vvsDce | SOeSO'EC | 80950'SC | €TIETZ STROVYL  SBEISGL  09'BLvE  SeElgic  TLGOLET |ILUOS
e ‘ T : ¢Hcm papu3 Jedj Jepusje) Jo4

POELE'I0Z  L1'8YT'0T | SE'SSBOT | TSOBTYT.

9L'€22'07 | LO'L66°0T A €9TLSTT | LL6LEDT

| TS'689'6T | SE'9ELLT | SE'86T'ZT | ES'T08'0Z | Z8'8LYOT

e6vOETLT | 60VOL'GT  ¢8P'TT | 9TOGSTT | 68'O/T'BT  Z6'L98VT  C8TTLET | L0GOLLT | YTBIY'EL

pS089'PT | £699L'6 | ZIOTSTL

Nﬁom Um__u:m_ hmm> ‘_mﬁcm_mu 104

ZETYBYIT | 83'6v8YT | ET'E006T | 6C'8SE'ET | 68TEO'ET | 66'886'ET | T609V'YT . EL'SBOWT | SSTSY'ZL  66'8ECTL  986C6UT  OSLVL'S
: : i HHDN _Um_—.ucm mev> Lmﬁcm#mu .,:uu_

'8€'89£'8¢1  SS'0TT'0C | YO'0T9'B | LSO8LTT | bS'I6Z'TT | CI'9Z8'El | 69'EVY'S | 8652201 | 1o'sos’s [ 15.68'6 | 07956'8 | 08'769'9
IVLOL Lmn_Em_umo _maEm_;oz 120130 Jaqualdasg 1sn8ny Anr aunf Aepyi judy _._Em_>_ \cmEn_mi ?E::ﬂ
Y e b ITM U FE A ST vt ST St S [t S 0107 PapU3 Jest pUS1Y 104

AYANTIVY 33NYL OGNV VINIDHIA
XYL NOLLJO
ALNNQD AJHOLS




- APPW@ rer P
Storey County, Nevada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writing and must include all
suppotting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (ltems recefved after the deadline will be placed

on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: &, / Vo / Lo

Date Request Submitted: 97 & /

Agenda Item Requested: VC‘ - ‘W’(&:\e Ul/f\iw CIZR( A M@{?‘f

This item is intended for: [_] Discussion Only D1scusswn/PosmbIe Action (at the Board's discretion)

] Supporting documentation is attached ["] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: LAY 0\

UL es

(please print name clearly)

Address: | ' ,\u“{fﬂ(\h\"’\(\\( A \')

e\ ?{i’.—vm

'] r\\ ¥ o=y ;
IN gren=

Phone{;rji)\;’f\’z %}0\‘1 2 Emhll {optional}:

RN

DN WATZ Qs (e

Please submit this completed form to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

& e Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope

or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

Date Reguest Received: Received: || InPerson [ ] Via FAX

By:

[_] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages

Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org

Aorda 1o~

O




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 8/16/16 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent {x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for Mellow Feliow, 171 South C 8t., Virginia City Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading, a
Liquor License, both on and off-sale for the Mellow Fellow operating out of 171 S. C St,,
Virginia City Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary: Ryan Eller, Mellow Feliow, is requesting a liquor license, both on and off sale,
for the business at 171 S C St., Virginia City Nevada.

5. Supporiing materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X __Department Head Depart%l\lﬁe: Gerald Antinoro
s =

L

@Mmﬂy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [

Continued

[ S—

Agenda Ttem No.

i\




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 16,2016 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2016-230; Cape Seal Project on
approximately 10 miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve bid award for Public Works Project No. ST-2016-230 to the
low bidder, Intermountain Slurry Seal Inc. in the amount of $685,900.00 for Storey County Public
Works Cape Seal Project.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works Telephone: 847-0958

4. Staff summary: Staff recommends approval of award of bid to the lowest responsive bidder,
Intermountain Slurry Seal Inc. All documents and bid package conform to requirements of NRS
332 and 338 as applicable.

5. Supporting materials:
ALL ATTACHED:
A. PWP ST-2016-230 Bid Tabulation / Comparisons
B. Intermountain Slurry Seal Inc. Bid Submittal and Contract Documents (applicable sections)
C. Intermountain Slurry Seal Inc. — Bid Bond - Licenses and Permits
D. Farr West Engineering — Letter of Recommendation of Award

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: Infrastructure and Roads Budgets  Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
—i

Agenda Item No. (3




9107/8/8

xspeqe] prg jessadeng (g7 00421018 . 1301
bhnuu._w&em walarg |eas 2del 9107 Bupoomdug 5o LB
[4 I HuBy
00°SSH'r698 00°010°CHLS 00°006°589% QAN

00 S90TLIS 29°E% 00°0EF 6018 £5°¢S 00 00L LIS 0L'¢E AS | o000'I€ SPUBREE] DA 5
00006 011T £E6Y 00°008'971% PE9E 00°000°56% SLVE AS | 000°0T ) (/1) 13ua) L L4
00°0Z0°'962% 15§ 00°0FL'TECS L5EE 00°00£°66Z3 £9'es AS | 00078 uoAuR] AN XIS 3
00°00¥'S01% Or'es 00°00F°S0TE Or'eg 00°00+'501% 0F'e§ AS | o00071E Sajesy urem ], BN [4
00°0L0°0LS LTO% 00'049°99% P 9% 00°008°1L% ) AS | 000'TE {.7/1) pooavpor] 1

Bunoomug jsap L igg ‘weydi] seon-] iedmBuy

Aunag 431018 LBUMAD

Wd 00:T emig,

9107 'g 15BNy "Aepuopy :3)e(]

17568 AN "vusy 2T AS[FU0-T 016 ‘BupasmBuy 1o, 1B, :uonea0] duaado pg

(0£2-910Z-1S "ON dMd)
Josfoid |eag ade) 910z
Aunog Aslolg

gv.l ag




Contract Documents

Storey County
2016 Cape Seal Project

Storey County, NV
Public Works Project No.
ST-2016-230

July, 2016

OWNER:
Storey County
160 Toll Road
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
{775) 847-0958

. EGINEER: _
FARR WEST:

ENGINEERING

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511
(775) 851-4788
(775) 851-0766 Fax




ADDENDUM NO. 1

August 4, 2016
Engineer: Owner:
Farr West Engineering ' Storey County
5510 Longiey Lane 100 Toll Road
Reno, NV 89511 Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY 2016 CAPE SEAL PROJECT

To: All Holders of the Bidding Documents, Specifications, and Drawings

The Contract Documents for the above-referenced Project are modified as set forth in this Addendum.
The original Contract Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect,
except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents. Bidder
shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid, and shall acknowledge
receipt of this Addendum in Article 3 of the Bid Form. Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to
disqualification.

Bid Submittal Deadline: The Bid submittal deadling remains the same and is not changed by this
Addendum,

This addendum consists oft

4 Pages of text (including this cover sheet and attachments)

Prepared by:

Lucas Tipton, P.E.

Storey County A-d FWE #IN94
2tH6 Cape Seal Project Addendum No. I (Auguss 2016)




REVISIONS TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

1. Title Page

a. Replace the title page of the contract documents with the revised title page, included in this
addendum, The original title page was not stamped by the engineer,

CLARIFICATIONS

1. The bidders should be aware that there is centerline and miscellaneous striping on Denmark Drive,
Venice Drive, Canyon Way, and Six Mile Canyon Road. Unit prices shall include replacement of ail
existing pavement markings. In other words, striping replacement by the contractor shall be
considered incidental to the cape seal work in each street and will not have its own bid
items, Existing striping shall be tabbed to ensure replacement in the same locations. All striping
work shall be in compliance with Orange Book specifications. Striping shall not be placed earlier
than 2 weeks from the completion of the cape seal to allow for cure time of the top coat.

2. The bidders should be aware that all roads, including Six Mile Canyon Road, shall remain open to
emergency and school district vehicles at all times. All traffic control plans shall be approved by the
engineer prior to construction. Any road closures must be pre-approved by Storey County Public
Works.

PLANHOLDERS LIST

1. The current plan holders list is provided in this addendum.

END OF ADDENDUM

Storey County A-2 FWE #1094
2016 Cape Seal Project Addendum No. 1 (August 2016)




STOREY COUNTY
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
2016 CAPE SEAL PROJECT
PWP No. ST-2016-230
July 22, 2016

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed Bids for the construction of the Storey County 2016 Cape Seal Project will be
received, by Farr West Engineering, at the office of Farr West Engineering, 5510 Longley
Lane, Reno, NV 89511, until 2:00 p.m. local time on Monday, August 8, 2016, at which time
the Bids received will be publicly opened and read. The work generally involves the placing of
approximately 175,000 square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type II Rapid Setting Slurry
Seal, and Type III Rapid Setting Slurry Seal in Lockwood, Mark Twain Estates, Six Mile Canyon,
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and Virginia City Highlands.

The Contractor will have 21 calendar days to reach substantial completion and 28 calendar days to reach
final completion of the Work in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The Engineer’s Opinion of Probable cost for this project is estimated at $800.000.

Bids will be received for a single prime Contract. Bids shall be on a unit price basis as indicated in
the Bid Form,

The Issuing Office for the Bidding Documents is: Farr West Engineering, 5510 Longley Lane, Reno,
Nevada 89511, 775-851-4788, Attn: Cuyler Frisby cuvler@farrwestengincering,com. Prospective
Bidders may examine the Bidding Documents at the Issuing Office on Mondays through Fridays
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., and may obtain copies of the Bidding Documents from the
Issuing Office as described below.

Bidding Documents may be viewed and ordered omline by registering with the Issuing Office
at http:/www farrwestengineering. com/bid-room. Following registration, complete sets of Bidding
Documents may be downloaded from the Issuing Office’s website as portable document format (PDF)
files. The cost of printed Bidding Documents from the Issuing Office will depend on the number and size
of the Drawings and Project Manual, applicable taxes, and shipping method selected by the prospective
Bidder, Cost of Bidding Documents and shipping is non-refundable. Upon Isswing Office’s receipt of
payment, printed Bidding Documents will be sent via the prospective Bidder’s delivery method of choice;
the shipping charge will depend on the shipping method chosen. The date that the Bidding Documents
are transmitted by the Issuing Office will be considered the Bidder’s date of receipt of the Bidding
Documents. Partial sets of the Bidding Documents will not be available from the Issuing Office.

A 5% bid security shall be furnished in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. All bidders shall be
licensed and qualified by the Nevada State Contractor’s Board to do the type of work contemplated for
this project prior to the time of opening of said bids and shall be skilled and regularly engaged in the
general ciass or type of work,

This proposal to the Owner is irrevocable for a period of sixty (60) days after the date of the bid opening.
The right is reserved by the Owner to reject any and all bids, waive iregularities, informalities, or non-
conformities; or to accept the bids deemed in their best interest, such as the lowest, responsible,

EJCDC® C-111, Suggested Advertlsement for Bids for Construction Contracts,
Copyright ® 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved, Page 1




g

responsive bid. The right to add or delete items, or change quantities shown on the bid forms is further
reserved by the Owner. Omission or improper completion of any or all of the proper bidding documents
may be considered as a reason for rejection of the Bid.

Published: Comstock Chronicle
Owner: Storey County
By: Mike Nevin

Title: Public Works Director
Date:  July 22, 2016

END OF ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

EJCDC® C-111, Suggested Advertisement for Bids for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Englneers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Givil Englneers. All rights reserved.  Page 2




ARTICLE 1 - DEFINED TERMS

1.02

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated in the General
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders
have the meanings indicated below:

A Issuing Office — The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued
electronically.

ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

2.01

2.02

2.03

Compiete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Issuing Office in the number
and format stated in the advertisement or invitation to bid.

Complete and unaltered sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither
Owner nor Engineer assurnes any respoansibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the
use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.

Ovmer and Engineer, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms, do
so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and do not authorize or confer a license
for any other use.

ARTICLE 3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

To demonstrate Bidder’s qualifications to perform the Work, Bidder shall submit with its Bid {(a)
written evidence establishing its qualifications such as financial data, previous experience, and
present commitments, and (b) the following additional information:

A.  Evidence of Bidder’s authority to do business in the county and state where the Project is
located.

Bidder’s state or other contractor license number, if applicable.

C.  Subcontractor and Supplier qualification information; coordinate with provisions of Article
12 of these Instructions, “Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others.”

D. Other required information regarding qualifications,

A Bidder’s failure to submit required qualification information within the times indicated may
disqualify Bidder from receiving an award of the Contract.

No requirement in this Article 3 to submit information will prejudice the right of Owner to seek
additional pertinent information regarding Bidder’s qualifications.

Bidder is advised to carefully review those portions of the Bid Form requiting Bidder's
representations and certifications.

ARTICLE 4 - SITE AND OTHER AREAS; EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS; EXAMINATION OF
SITE; OWNER'S SAFETY PROGRAM; OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

4.01

Site and Other Areas

A.  The Site is identified in the Bidding Documents. By definition, the Site includes rights-of-
way, easements, and other lands furnished by Owner for the use of the Contractor. Any
additional lands required for temporary construction facilities, construction equipment, or
storage of materials and equipment, and any access needed for such 2dditional lands, are to
be obtained and paid for by Contractor.

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Canstruction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Enginears, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and Ametrican Sociaty of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 1




4.02  Existing Site Conditions

A. Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions

1. The Supplementary Conditions identify:

a.  those reports kmown to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at
or adjacent to the Site,

b. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface
or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities),

¢ reports and drawings known to Owmer relating to Hazardous Environmental
Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site.

d. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.

2. Owner will make copies of reports and drawings referenced above available to any
Bidder on request. These reports and drawings are not part of the Centract Documents,
but the Technical Data contained therein upon whose accuracy Bidder is entitled to rely,
as provided in the General Conditions, has been identified and established in the
Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any interpretation or conclusion
Bidder draws from any Technical Data or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or
information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings.

3. If the Supplementary Conditions do not identify Technical Data, the default definition
of Technical Data set forth in Article 1 of the General Conditions will apply.

Underground Facilities: Information and data shown or indicated in the Bidding Documents
with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site are set forth in
the Contract Documents and are based upon information and data furnished to Owner and
Engineer by owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or others.

Adequacy of Data: Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished
to prospective Bidders with respect to subsurface conditions, other physical conditions, and
Underground Facilities, and possible changes in the Bidding Documents due to differing or
unanticipated subsurface or physical conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 of
the General Conditions. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data
furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to a Hazardous Environmental Condition at the
Site, if any, and possible changes in the Contract Documents due to any Hazardous
Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or
indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be
within the scope of the Work, appear in Paragraph 5.06 of the General Conditions.

4.03  Site Visit and Testing by Bidders

A.

Bidder shall conduct the required Site visit during normal working hours, and shall not
disturb any ongoing operations at the Site.

Bidder is not required to conduct any subsurface testing, or exhaustive investigations of Site
conditions.

On request, and to the extent Owner has control over the Site, and schedule permitting, the
Owmer will provide Bidder access to the Site to conduct such additional examinations,
investigations, explorations, tests, and studies as Bidder deems necessary for preparing and
submitting a successful Bid. Owner will not have any obligation to grant such access if
doing so is not practical because of existing operations, security or safety concerns, or
restraints on Owner’s authority regarding the Site,

Bidder shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations regarding excavation and
location of utilities, obtain all permits, and comply with all terms and conditions established

EJCDC® £-200, Suggested nstructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts,
Copyright ® 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, Amerfcan Council of Engineering Companies,
. ) and American Society of Civil Engineers, Allrights reserved. Page 2




4.04

4.05

by Owner or by property owners or other entities controlling the Site with respect to
schedule, access, existing operations, sccurity, liability insurance, and applicable safety
programs.

E.  Bidder shall fill all holes and clean up and restore the Site to its former condition upon
completion of such explorations, investigations, tests, and studies.

Owner’s Safety Frogram

A.  Site visits and work at the Site may be governed by an Owner safety program. As the
General Conditions indicate, if an Owner safety program exists, it will be noted in the
Supplementary Conditions,

Other Work at the Site

A.  Reference is made to Article 8 of the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of the

general nature of other work of which Owner is aware (if any) that is to be performed at the
Site by Owner or others (such as utilities and other prime contractors) and relates to the
Work contemplated by these Bidding Documents. If Owner is party to a written contract for
such other work, then on request, Owner will provide to each Bidder access to examine such
coniracts (other than portions thereof refated to price and other confidential matters), if any.

ARTICLE 5 — BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

5.01

It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid to:

A

b.

m

examine and carefully study the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items
identified in the Bidding Documents;

visit the Site, conduct a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and
become familiar with and satisfy itself as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may
affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work;

become familiar with and satisfy itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, and performance of the Work;

carefully study all: (I) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or
adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or
subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and
drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site
that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to
Technical Data in such reports and drawings;

consider the information known to Bidder itself, information commonly known to
contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained
from visits fo the Site; the Bidding Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings
identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information,
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the
means, metheds, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by
Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs;

agree, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, that
at the time of submitting its Bid no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests,
studies, or data are necessary for the determination of its Bid for performance of the Work at
the price bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and
conditions of the Bidding Documents;

EICDC® C-200, Suggested instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 Natienal Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Enginzering Companies,
and American Sotiety of Civi Engineers, Al rights reserved. Page3




G. become aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents;

H. promptly give Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies
that Bidder discovers in the Bidding Documents and confirm that the writien resolution
thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder;

I determine that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey
understanding of all terms and conditions for the petformance and furnishing of the Work;
and

J. agree that (he submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by
Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, that without
exception the Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the
Work required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 6 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE

6.01

No pre-bid conference will be held

ARTICLE 7 - INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA

7.01

7.02

All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to
Engineer in writing, Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by Engineer in response
to such questions will be issued by Addenda delivered to all parties recorded as having received
the Bidding Documents. Questions received less than seven days prior to the date for opening of
Bids may not be answered. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral and other
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, supplemeént, or change the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 8- BID SECURITY

8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of [$%]
percent of Bidder's maximum Bid price (determined by adding the base bid and al} alternates)
and in the form of a certified check, bank money order, or a Bid bond {cn the form included in the
Bidding Documents) issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraphs 6.01 and 6.02 of
the General Conditions.

The Bid security of the apparent Successful Bidder will be retained until Owner awards the
contract to such Bidder, and such Bidder has executed the Contract Documents, furnished the
required contract security, and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the
Bid security will be released. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract
Documents and farnish the required contract security within 15 days after the Notice of Award,
Owner may consider Bidder to be in default, annul the Notice of Award, and the Bid security of
that Bidder will be forfeited. Such forfeiture shall be Owner’s exclusive remedy if Bidder
defaults.

The Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes to have & reasonable chance of receiving
the award may be retained by Owner until the earlier of seven days afier the Effective Date of the
Contract or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will
be released.

Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes do not have a reasonable chance of receiving
the award will be released within seven days after the Bid opening.

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright @ 2013 National Sozlety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and Ametrican Society of Civi Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page 4




ARTICLE 9~ CONTRACT TIMES

9.01  The number of days within which, erthe dates by-w :
Work is to be substantiafly completed and ready for ﬁnal payment are set forth in the Agreement

ARTICLE 10 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

10.01 Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, for failure to timely attain a Milestone, Substantial
Completion, or completion of the Work in readiness for final payment, are set forth in the
Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 - SUBSTITUTE AND “OR-EQUAL” ITEMS

11.01 The Contract for the Worl, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified
or described in the Bidding Documents, and those “or-equal” or substitufe materials and
equipment subsequently approved by Engineer prior to the submitial of Bids and identified by
Addendum. No item of material or equipment will be considered by Engineer as an “or- equal”
or substitnte unless written request for approval has been submitted by Bidder and has been
received by Engineer at least 15 days prior to the date for receipt of Bids in the case of a proposed
substitute and 5 days prior in the case of a proposed “or-equal.” Each such request shall comply
with the requirements of Paragraphs 7.04 and 7.05 of the General Conditions. The burden of
proof of the merit of the proposed ilem is upen Bidder. Engineer’s decision of approval or
disapproval of a proposed item will be final. If Engineer approves any such proposed item, such
approval will be set forth in an Addendom issued to all prospective Bidders. Bidders shall not
rely upon approvals made in any other manner. Substitutes and “or-equal” materials and
equipment may be propased by Contractor in accordance with Paragraphs 7.04 and 7.05 of the
General Conditions after the Effective Date of the Contract.

11.02  All prices that Bidder sets forth in its Bid shall be based on the presumption that the Contractor
will furnish the materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, as
supplemented by Addenda. Any assumptions regarding the possibility of post-Bid approvals of
“or-equal” or substitution requests are made at Bidder’s sole risk.

11.03 If an award is made, Contractor shall be allowed to submit proposed substitutes and “or-equals”
in accordanee with the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 12 - SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS

1201 [Deleted]
12.02 [Deleted]

12.03 If required by bid documents, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so
requested, shall within five days after Bid opening, submit to Owner additional lists of the
Subcontractors or Suppliers proposed for the major portions of the Work, trades on the
job, and specific areas or expertise required.

If requested by Owner, such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent
information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity. If Owner or Engincer, after due
investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Suppiier, individual, or
entity, Owner may, before the Notice of Award s given, request apparent Successful Bidder to
submit an acceptable substitute, in which case apparent Successful Bidder shall submit a
substitute, Bidder’s Bid price will be increased (or decreased) by the difference in cost

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Cantracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Saciety of Professional Engineers, Ametican Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Enginesrs, All rights reserved.  Page5




12.04

12.05

12,066

12.07

occasioned by such substitution, and Owner may consider such price adjustment in evaluating
Bids and making the Contract award.

If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the
Contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers, or
other individuals or entities. Declining to make requested substitutions will constitute grounds for
forfeiture of the Bid security of any Bidder. Any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity so
listed and against which Owner or Engineer makes no written objection prior to the giving of the
Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to subsequent
revocation of such acceptance as provided in Paragraph 7,06 of the General Conditions.

Contractor shail net be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or
entity against whom Contractor has reasonable objection.

The Contractor shall nof award work to Subconfractor(s) in excess of the limits stated in SC
7.06.

The Contractor shall submit a list of Subcontractors and Suppliers which make up at least
5% of the total bid price with the Bid Submittal. The Contractor shall submit a list of
Subcontractors which make up 1% of the total Bid price or $50,000, whichever is greater,
within 2 hours of the Bid Opening. Per NRS 624, names, percentages, license numbers,
addresses and a description of work shall be included on all lists for Subcontractors and the
Bidding Prime Coniractor.

ARTICLE 13 ~ PREPARATION OF BID

13.01

13.02

13.03

12.04

13.05

13.06
13.07

13.08

13.08

The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents.

A.  All blanks on the Bid Form shall be completed in ink and the Bid Form signed in ink.
Erasures or alterations shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Form. A Bid
price shall be indicated for each section, Bid item, alternate, adjustment unit price item, and
unit price item listed therein,

B. If the Bid Form expressly indicates that submitting pricing on a specific alternate item is
optional, and Bidder elects to not furnish pricing for such optional alternate item, then
Bidder may enter the words “No Bid” or “Not Applicable.”

A Bid by a corporation shall be executed in the corporate name by a corporate officer (whose title
must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate
address and state of incorporation shall be shown.

A Bid by a limited lizbility company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a member or
other authorized person and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation
of the firm and the official address of the firm shall be shown.

A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder’s name and official address.

A Bid by a join{ venture shall be executed by an authorized representative of each joint venturer
in the manner indicated on the Bid Form. The official address of the joint venture shall be shown.

All names shali be printed in ink below the signatures.

The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of ali Addenda, the numbers of which shall
be filled in on the Bid Form.

Postal and e-mail addresses and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid shali be
shown.

The Bid shall contain ¢vidence of Bidder’s authority and gualification to do business in the state
where the Project is located, or Bidder shall covenant in writing to obtain such authority and

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright ©® 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Councl of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civit Engineers, All rights reserved.  Page 6




gualification prior to award of the Contract and attach such covenant to the Bid. Bidder’s state
contractor license mumber, if any, shall also be shown on the Bid Form.

ARTICLE 14 - BASIS OF BID

14.01 Base Bid with Alternates

A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a unit price basis for the base Bid and include a separate price
for each alternate described in the Bidding Documents and as provided for in the Bid Form.
The price for each alternate will be the amount added to or deleted from the base Bid if
Owner selects the alternate,

B. Inthe comparison of Bids, alternates will be applied in the same order of priority as listed in
the Bid Form.

14.02 Unit Price

14.03

A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a unit price basis for each item of Work listed in the unit price
section of the Bid Form,

B. The “Bid Price” (sometimes referred to as the extended price) for cach unit price Bid item
will be the product of the “Estimated Quantity” (which Owner or its representative has set
forth in the Bid Form) for the item and the corresponding “Bid Unit Price” offered by the
Bidder. The total of all unit price Bid items will be the sum of these “Bid Prices™; such total
will be used by Owner for Bid comparison purposes. The final quantities and Contract Price
will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions.

C. Discrepancies between the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resclved in
favor of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures
and the correct sum thereof wiil be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

Allowarnces

A.  For cash allowances the Bid price shall include such amounts as the Bidder deems proper for
Contractor's overhead, costs, profit, and other expenses on account of cash allowances, if
any, named in the Contract Documents, in accordance with Paragraph 13.02.B of the
General Conditions. -

14.04 {Deleted]

ARTICLE 15 - SUBMITTAL OF BID

1501

15.02

15.03

With each copy of the Bidding Documents, a Bidder 1s furnished one separate—unbound
electronic copy of the Bid Form and the Bid Bond Form. The unbound copy of the Bid Form is
to be completed and submitted with the Bid security and the other documents required to be
submitted under the terms of Article 7 of the Bid Form,

A Bid shall be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the
advertisement or invitation to bid and shall be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the
Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is
submitted), the name and address of Bidder, and shall be accompanicd by the Bid security and
other required docurnents, If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope
containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate package plainly marked on the outside with the
notation “BID ENCLOSED.” A mailed Bid shall be addressed to the Owner and location as
indicated in the Advertisement for Bids.

Bids received after the date and time prescribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the
correct location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted and will be returned to the
Bidder unopened.

E}CDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts,
Copyright © 2013 Nationaf Society of Professicnal Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Englneers. All rights reserved, Page7




ARTICLE 16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID

16.01 A Bid may be withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the same manner that a
Bid must be executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date
and time for the opening of Bids. Upon receipt of such notice, the unopened Bid will be rehurned
to the Bidder.

16.02 If 2 Bidder wishes to modify its Bid prior to Bid opening, Bidder must withdraw its initial Bid in
the manner specified in Paragraph 16.0]1 and submit a new Bid prior to the date and time for the
opening of Bids,

16.03 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Cwner
and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Cwner that there was a
material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid,
and the Bid security will be returned. Thereafter, if the Work is rebid, that Bidder will be
disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

ARTICLE 17 — QPENING OF BIDS

17.01 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and,
unless obviousty non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids
and major alternates, if any, will be made available to Bidders after the opening of Bids.

ARTICLE 18 - BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE

18.01 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Form, bt
Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and retumn the Bid security prior to the end of
this period.

ARTICLE 19 - EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

19.01 Owmer reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming,
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner will reject the Bid of any Bidder that
Owner finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaloation, to not be responsible. If Bidder purports to
add terms or conditions to its Bid, takes exception to any provision of the Bidding Documents, or
attempts to alter the contents of the Contract Documents for purposes of the Bid, then the Owner
will reject the Bid as nonresponsive; provided that Owner also reserves the right to waive all
minor informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work.

19.02 If Owner awards the contract for the Work, such award shall be to the responsible Bidder
subritting the lowest responsive Bid.

19.03 Evaluation of Bids

A. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether or not the Bids comply with the preseribed
requirements, and such alternates, unit prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid
Form or prior to the Notice of Award.

B. Inthe comparison of Bids, alternates will be applied in the same order of priority as listed in
the Bid Form. To determine the Bid prices for purposes of comparison, Owner shall
announce to alt bidders a “Base Bid plus alternates” budget after receiving all Bids, but prior
to opening them. For comparison purposes alternates will be accepted, following the order of
priority established in the Bid Form, untit doing so would cause the budget to be exceeded.
After determination of the Successful Bidder based on this comparative process and on the
responsiveness, responsibility, and other factors set forth in these Instructions, the award

EICDC® €-200, Suggested Instructicns to Bidders for Construction Contracts,
Copyright © 2013 National Saciety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of {ivll Engineers, All rights reserved. Page 8




may be made to said Successful Bidder on its base Bid and any combination of its additive
alternate Bids for which Owner determines funds will be available at the time of award.

19.04 In evaluating whether a Bidder is responsible, Owner will consider the qualifications of the
Bidder and may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors and Suppliers
proposed for those portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors and Suppliers
must be submitted as provided in the Bidding Documents,

19.05 Owner may conduct such investigations as Qwner deems necessary to establish the responsibility,
qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders and any proposed Subcontractors or Suppliers.

ARTICLE 20 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

20.01 Article 6 of the General Conditions, as may be medified by the Supplementary Conditions, sets
forth Owner’s requirements as to performance and payment bonds and insurance. When the
Successful Bidder delivers the Agreement (executed by Successful Bidder) to Owner, it shall be
accompanied by required bonds and insurance documentation,

ARTICLE 21 - SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

21.01 When Owner issues a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the
unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement along with the other Contract Documents as identified
in the Agreement. Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall execute and deliver the
required number of counterparts of the Agreement (and any bonds and insurance docurnentation
required to be delivered by the Contract Documents) to Owner. Within ter days thereafier, Owner
shall deliver one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement to Successful Bidder, together with
printed and electronic copies of the Contract Documents as stated in Paragraph 2.02 of the
General Conditions.

ARTICLE 22 - SALES AND USE TAXES (NOT USED)
ARTICLE 23 - WAGE RATE REQUIREMENTS

2402 Contractor shall pay State Prevailing Wage Rates for each labor classification. Copies of the wage
determinations are included in Section 00900 and are available at the L.abor Commission office
and website,

24,03 The contractor shall submit certified payrolls to the owner for every week worked for verification,

ARTICLE 25 - RETAINAGE

25,01  Provisions concerning Contractor’s rights to deposit securities in lieu of retainage are set forth in
the Agreement

ARTICLE 26 - NEVADA PUBLIC WORKS REQUIREMENTS

26.01 Contractor shall comply with all provisions of Nevada Revised Statates (WNRS} Chapter 338-
Public Projects, if applicable, and all regulations promulgated under the statutes,

ARTICLE 27 - PARTNERING (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

EICDC® C-200, Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. Alirights reserved. Page §




SECTION 00410

BID FORM FOR CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTS
Storey County 2016 Cape Seal Project

PWP No. 8T-2016-23()
TABLE OF CONTENTS

ALTICIE 1 — Bid RECIPIETIE . vuissisiersinrerrersievesesssasssesststnssesssisstsessssesseseseseseseseasessaassesssn eses sensemsmsssessrasesssssssasees I
Article 2 ~ Bidder's Acknowledgements, v iesessesssensrsssesessesersensssesenseene |
Article 3 — Bidder’s Representations . iiniiieierersveseseinsesssesserssesssesmsasssmessess 2
Article 4 — Bidder’'s CertifiCatIOn . meimimisisiini e sisessseeeeeeeesseeessseessesssesesesssaesesesssssssessssesssnsesd
Article 5 — Basis 0f BId ... e ss st es s s es s nt sttt bbb eerenseeene
Article 6 — TIme Of COmMPIBHON.ccc. et et tse s e sereee et smr s rse s e s ens et sesemssasarsesnsasssesnseanssn D
Article 7 - Attachments t0 this Bid ..o ine s sor s srrar s oersssessareserseed
Article 8 — DEfINEd TEIIMIS 11vivercorerernriaeesiesersrasiesesssnss s ssseseess tessessisssssss ssassmsemsessesesomseessasssensssesnessssassanseens 5
Article 9 — Bid SUBIUITAL .c..vvviricirimcrireetiesesiens e st e e e e reerenrersasesars s sasssstorssasssesensmseesssessemesesssoeseseresssererensd

ARTICLE 1 -- BIDD RECIPIENT

1.1 This Bid is submitted to Owner address as identified in Section 06100 — Advertisemen.

1.2 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and
in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to
acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree o in writing upon request of Owner.

EJICDC® C-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Sodiety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and Amerlcan Society of Civil Engineers. Al rightsreserved.  Pagel




ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. DBidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and
reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of

the following Addenda:
Addendum No. Addendum Date

Porre "
4 &/91146

B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work,

C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect
cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating fo
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself, information commonly
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related
reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of
such information, observations, and documents on {1} the cost, progress, and performance of
the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of
coastruction to be emploved by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

F. Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data
are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid
and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and condifions of

the Bidding Documents.

G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or
discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the
written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder,

l.  The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

EICDC® €-410, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Sodiety of Professlonal Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companes,
and Amarican Society of Clvil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page2




The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the
Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work
required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 - BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.1 Bidder certifies that:

A

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or om behalf of any undisclosed
individnal or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or
rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or sclicited any other Bidder to submit a false
or sham Bid; )

Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing
for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. *fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b} to establish bid prices at
artificial non-competitive levels, or (¢) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and
open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or amrrangement between two or more Bidders,
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or
affect the e execution of the Contract,

EJICOL® C-310, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright @ 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Coyncil of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. Allrights reserved.  Page3




ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF BID
5.1 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following

price(s):

The placing of approximately 175,000 square yards of 3/8” and/or 1/2” chip seal, Type I Rapid Setting
Shury Seal, and Type I Rapid Setting Slurry Seal. The approximate pay quantity shall be PLACED
SQUARE YARD at spread rates specified within the Technical Specifications. The emulsion and/or oils
shall be part of the bid price(s) of the Technical Specifications. Also, all required equipment, personnel,
sweeping, traffic control, reflector tabs, protecting of existing tape markings, public notification, and signage
for the complete project shall be part of the unit prices. Bid schedule items shall also include the replacement

of all existing pavement markings. See Contact Plan Descriptions and Maps.

Item Approximate Item & Unit Bid Prices Enit Price Amount
Na. Quantity
Type II Rapid Setting Slurry
1. 11,000 Square | Seal with 1/2” chip seal, complete SO (&]¥]
Yards and in place at 6 - s A1, SOO —
Sr'x o llay qad
“Lockwood” Lifly cents
per SY '
Type II Rapid Setting Shurry Seal 6G
2. 31,000 Square | with 3/8” chip seal, complete and iy
' Yards in place at 35{'9" $10 S: 400
Fhree HAollar qrol
#“Mark Twain oy,ty Cents
Estates™ per 8Y
Type II Rapid Setting Sturry Seal ¢ S
3. 82,000 Square | with 3/8" chip seal, complete and Qo
Yards in place at 3= $ 3 GI C{ , 300“
Chroe olollors ero ) '
“Six Mile Sighy five cenmls
Canyon™ per SY
Type III Rapid Setting Shury G
4. | 20,000 Square | Seal with 1/2” chip seal, complete o2 5 a6
Yards and in place at l $ q Lom
Foir  clollars qnd
“TRI Center” Jevemty Five Camds
per SY
Type I Rapid Setting Slurry Seal
5. 31,000 Square | with 3/8” chip sezl, complete and 70 ‘_,’ ﬂ_mc.?
Yards in place at S— $ ! TR
“hree cbllars and
“VC Highlands” Sederty Ceats
per 8Y

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE - §

£85,900%

s S1X hundred gighty five thousapd  pine hunolred ol larc

In Words

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be

EICDC® 410, Bld Forsn for Construction Contracts.
Copyright @ 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companles,

and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,

Page 4




adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2)
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids,
and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as
provided in the Contract Documents.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 13.03.B of the General
Conditions.

The requirements of Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) shall apply to this project. The BIDDER
is respoasible for compliance with all applicable statues. These statutes include, bus are not
limited to:

A. NRS 333.020: Hourly and daily rate of wages must not be less than prevailing wage in
County.

NRS 333.080: Exemptions

C. NRS 338.141: Bids to include certain information concerning subcontractors; requirements
for substitution of named subcontracts.

D. NRS 338.147. Award of Contract to Contractor who submits best bid.

B We qualify and claim the Preferential BIDDER status as specified in NRS 338.147, and have attached
the appropriate information in accordance with the requirements of NRS 338,147,

{1 We do not qualify for the Preferential BIDDER status as specified in NRS 338.147.

Contractor: intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc,

License No: 0923657

Authorized Signature: /4,\_/ /Jason T. Klaumann, President

ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.1 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and wil! be completed and ready for
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the
dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement,

6.2 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to Liquidated Damages.
ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.1 The following documents are stbmitted with and made a condjition of this Bid:
Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EJCDC C-430);

List of proposed Subcontractors (Section 00440); 5
List of proposed Suppliers (Section 00440); :
Required Bidder Qualifications Statement with supporting data (EICDC C-450);
Evidence of authority to do business in Storey County and the State of Nevada;

mmo N ®m P

Evidence of qualifications for in-state bidder preference (see Section 7.2), if requesting
consideration; and

G. Contractor’s License No..___ 0023657 (may be combined with another
attachment).

EICDC® £-410, Bld Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright ©® 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, |
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page s




7.2 Each Bidder submitting a Bid on a public works project whose estimated cost exceeds $250,000 is
responsible for ascertaining whether the Bidder intends to utilize the referenced statute for five
percent (5%) preference and is also eligible for the bidder preference and other matters relating
thereto provided in NRS Chapter 338.0117. The Bidder claiming the bid preference shall:

A.  Submit with his or her Bid a valid certificate of eligibility to receive a preference in bidding
on public works issued to the Bidder by the State of Nevada Contractors’ Board; and

B. Within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of bids by Lyon County or its authorized
represeniative, submit a signed affidavit (Section 00445).

Failure to submit the Certificate of Eligibility and Affidavit shall result in a waiver of any Bidder
preference. .
ARTICLE 8§ - DEFINED TERMS

8.01  The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions
to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

ARTICLE ¢ - BID SUBMITTAL
BIDDER: fIndicate correct name of bidding entity/

Indermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.

I Ny G—

[Signature]

[Printed namef Jason T. Klaumann, President
(If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach
evidence of authority to sign,)

Attest: i
[Signature] %%L

7
[Printed namef Gary R. Price

Title: Assistant Secretary
Submittal Date: August 08, 20186

Address for giving notices:

1900-Glendale-Avenue*® 12U Tesminal ke

SpaskeMY-B943tmT Reno NV §1507 j

E!
Telephone Number: 775.358.1355
Fax Number: 775.355.3458

EICDC® C-410, 8id Farm for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Enginears, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 6




Contact Name and e-mail address: marc.thoreson@gcinc.com

Bidder’s License No.: Q023657

(where applicable)

EJCDC® C-41.0, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, Amerfcan Coundil of Engineering Compandes,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.  Page7




5% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Each Bidder shall list below the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of
the Work to the Contractor for which he will be pzid an amount exceeding five {3) percent of the
Bidder’s total Bid and the number of the Heense issued to the subcontractor pursuant to Chapter 624
of the NRS. The Bidder shall also list themselves as performing all remaining Work not otherwise
subcontracted that is exceeding 5% of the total bid. A general description of this Work shall be
listed.

Project Name: 2016 Cape Seal Project

Bidder Name: ____Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc,

Bidder Address: _1960-Glendate-Avente—Sparks; Ny-80431
Telephone No.:___775,358.1355

(émaining
otherwise subcontracted, see above.} percentage of
. work not intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc. :
a ytems of wok subcontracted:) 1 %@—@Mue ‘,,“', Y20 Term: nal Ko
W:f“ Lh‘f’fo{ Below cy SW&W%WQGAU‘ nv %c‘sal
[O0% | jcense No. 0023657
2. {Subconiractor)
3. (Subcontractar)
4, {Subcontractor)
5 {Subcontractor)
6. (Subcontractor)
7. (Subcontractor)}
8. (Subcontractor)
NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.
5% Suppliers may be included on this or another page.
Storey County 00440-1 FWE #1094

2016 Cape Seal Project Sub-Supplier List Contract Documents (July 2016)




1% SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

Within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the Bids, the Bidders who submitted the three
lowest bids must submit a list of the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion
of the Work to the Contractor for which he will be paid an amount exceeding one (1) percent of the
Bidder’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater, and the number of the license issued to the
subcontractor pursuant to Chapter 624 of the NRS. This list may be emailed or faxed to the Owner
or Owner’s Representative, or may be submitted with the Bid Proposal Form. The Bidder shall also
list themselves as performing all remaining Work not otherwise subcontracted that is exceeding 1%
of the total Bid or $50,000, whichever is greater. A general description of this Work shali be listed.

Project Name:
Bidder Name:

nu §7%2

< e Ly pene,

L. (Describe all remaining work not (Remaining | (Prime Contractor)

otherwise subcontracted, see above,) percentage of Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.

QL Hems oFf ok work not 1900 Glondale = AT TR ey
hot™ tistecd pelow subcontracted: ot fenofnv #1502

\00% License No. 0023657

2. (Subcontractor)

3. (Subcontractor)

4. {(Subconiractor)

5. (Subcontractor)

6. (Subcontracior)

7. {(Subconiractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.

Storey County 00440-2 FWE #1094

2016 Cape Seal Project

Sub-Supplier Lisi

Contract Documents (July 2016}




5% SUPPLIERS LIST

. Each Bidder shall list below the name of-each supplier who will provide materials or equipment to the

Contractor for which they will be paid an amount exceeding five (5) percent of the Bidder’s total Bid and
the number of the license issued to the supplier pursuant to Chapter 624 of the NRS. The Bidder shall
also list themselves as supplying all remaining Work items not otherwise supplied that is exceeding 5% of
the total Bid. A general description of this Work shall be Hsted.

Project Name:____ 2016 Cape Seal Project

Bidder Name: __ Intermountain Sfurry Seal, inc, "7 T T

Bidder Address. . 1900-Clongele-Auenue~Sparks MU B3 113G Fepmipal. e, Revo, W §3502

(Prime Contractor)

i. (De&cribe all réﬁmim‘n worlk not

otherwise supplied, see above) percentage of Int ain S Seal |

G1L oo of wark | werkar | Imemountan Sury Sealne || wa,
an So0-SlendateAvente

not dfed  felow supplies;) | Sparks NVETRTT™~  Resp, v 872
;rd License No. 0023657
66%

0 |
l (=Y ; MaTErta IS
2. 3[8 C "> 3% {(Supplier) Do-rg‘f?l?“’; n"\"”;" &

3«;10*‘ ny §9407

3 . (Supplier) Graate  Congfaclio
![;L Ch.PS l% ‘t{& Glendole Gue
Sparks, NY S59%)

* Emalsion S | Wastern Erelie
: Wiie Giy OR 9950
> (Supplier) '
6. (Supplier)
7. (Supplier)
8. (Supplier)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.

Storay County 00440-3 FWE #1094
2016 Cape Seal Project Sub-Supplier List Contract Documents (Jaly 2016)




SECTION 00445
PUBLIC WORKS BIDDERS PREFERENCE AFFIDAVIT

I, Jason T. Klaumann __, on behalf of Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.  (“Contractor™),
hereby certify and affirm under penalty of perjury, for purposes of qualifying for a preference in bidding under
Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 338 on Project No, §T-2016-230 , Project Name

2016 Cape Sea&j Project (“Project™, that the following requirements will be
adhered to, documented and attained for the duration of the Project:

L. At least fifty percent (50%) of workers employed on the Project (including Subcontraciors) hold a valid
driver’s license or identification card issued by the Nevada Department of Motor Vekicles;

2. All vehicles used primarily for the Project will be {a) registered and (where applicable) partially
apportioned to Nevada; or (b) registered in Nevada;

3. At least fifty percent (50%) of the design professionals who work on the Project (including subcontractors)
hold a valid driver’s license or identification card issued by the Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles;

4. The Contractor shall maintain and make available for inspection within Nevada all payroll records refated
to this Project.

Contractor recognizes and accepts that failure to comply with the requirements herein shall be a material breach of
the contract and entitle the Incline Village General Improvement District (*“Authority™) to liquidated damages in the
amount set by statute. In addition, the Contractor recognizes and accepts that failure to comply with any
requirements herein may lose its certification for preference in bidding for five (5) years and/or the ability to bid on

any contract$ Tor public workg,for one (1) year pursuant to NRS Chapter 338.
Signature:

By: Jason T. Klaumann
Title: President Date: 08/05/2016
State of Utah )
. )ss.
County of __LaVis )
Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this _Sth  day of August , 2016
by Jason T. Klaumann {name of person making statement).

JANE NIELSOR
Natary Public
Stata of Utah
Comm, No. 582565
My Comm. Expires Apr 28, 2018

g

MQL_

Jane Nielson

Notary Signature

ol T 1

STAMP AND SEAL

Storey County 004451 FWE #1094
2646 Cape Seal Project Affidavit Contract Documents (fuly 2016)




BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED N THIS DOCUMENT IS CONFIDENTIAL TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAWS AND

REGLEATIONS
1. SUBMITTED BY:
Officiat Name of Firm: [nfermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.
Address: 1900 Glendale Avenue

Sparks, NV 82431

2. SUBMITTED TO: Storey County

3. SUBMITTED FOR:

Storey County

Cwner:

2016 Public Works Project

Project Name:

TYPE OF WORK: Cape Seal, Chip Seal, Fog Seal

4. CONTRACTOR'S CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person: Marc Thoreson

Tite: Chief Estimator

Phone: 775.358.1355

Email: marc.thoreson@gcinc.com

5, AFFILIATED COMPANIES:
See Appendix A1...List of Affiliates

Name;

EICDGC” €450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 National Saciety of Prefessional Engineers, American Counddl of Engineering Companles,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. AH rights reserved,
Pagelof8




Address:

6. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION:

]  SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP

Name of Owner:

Doing Business As:

Date of Qrganization:

(] PARTNERSHIP

Date of Organization:

Type of Partnership:

Name of General Partner(s):

X] CORPORATION

State of Organization: Wyoming

Date of Organization: April 23, 1982

Executive Officers:

- President: See Appendix B1...List of Officers

- Vice President(s):

- Treasurer:

- Secretary:

[ LimiTED LIABILITY COMPANY

State of Organization:

Date of Organization:

EJCDC™ C-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright € 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, Amarican Eouncil of Engineering Companies,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 2 of B




Members:

[] fOINT VENTURE

Sate of Organization:

Date of Organization:

Form of Organization:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

- Address:

loint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:

- Address:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

- Name:
- Address:
7. LICENSING
Jurisdiction: State of Nevada
Type of License: Contractor's License Class A
License Number: 0023657

EJCDC® €-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright €@ 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 3of 8




Jurisdiction:

Type of License:

License Number:

8. CERTIFICATIONS CERTIFIED BY:

Disadvantage Business Enterprise:

Minority Business Enterprise:

Woman Owned Enterprise:

Small Business Enterprise:

Other ( ):

9. BONDING INFORMATION

Bonding Company: See Appendix C1...List of Surety Agencies

Address:

Bonding Agent:

Address:

Contact Name:

Phone:

Aggregate Bonding Capacity:

Available Bonding Capacity as of date of this submittal;

10, FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial institution; Bank of America

Address: 315 Montgomery Street

San Francisco, CA 94104-1866

Account Manager: Stuart Bonomo

EICDC' C-450, Qualifications Statement.

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Paged4of 8




Phone: 415.913.4777

11. CONSTRUCTION EXPERIENCE:

Current Experience:

List on Schedule A all uncompleted projects currently under contract {If Joint Venture list each participant's
projects separately). See Appendix D1...Major Incomplete Projects

Previous Experience:

List on Schedule B alfl projects completed within the last 5 Years (if Joint Venture list each participant’s
projects separatelyl.  See Appendix E1...Completed Jobs

Has firm listed in Section 1 ever failed to complete a construction contract awarded to it?
[ives Xno
tf YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

Has any Corporate Officer, Partner, Joint Venture participant or Proprietor ever failed to complete a construction
contract awarded to them in their name or when acting as a principal of another entity?

[Jves Xno
if YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

Are there any judgments, claims, disputes or litigation pending or cutstanding involving the firm listed in Section
1 or any of its officers (or any of its partners if a partnership or any of the individual entities if a joint venture)?

[ Jves X no

If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

12. SAFETY PROGRAM:

Name of Contractor's Safety Officer:_Janet Cassel

include the following as attachments:

OSHA No. 300 and

3004 - Log & Summary of Occupational tnjuries & ilinesses for the past 5 years,
See Attached

Provide as an Attachment Contractor's {and 3 4 3 B perishing
or-performing Work having oin-excass of 10 percont of the total omount o the Bid}list of all OSHA

Citations & Notifications of Penalty {(monetary or other) received within the last 5 years {indicate disposition
as applicable) - iF NONE 50 STATE.

None

EICDC® £-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Engineers, American Councit of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Cvil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50f8




3 pe e FOUA Bid I|st ofaII safety
citations or vsolatlons under any state all recewed within the last 5 years {undlcate disposition as applicabte) -
IF NONE SO STATE.

None

Provide the followmg for the flrm listed in Section \/ (a-nd-fe#eaeh-pfepesed&a-h-eemfaet-er—éum&smng—eﬁ

Bid} the following {attach

additional sheets as necessary)

Workers' compensation Experience Modification Rate (EMR) for the last 5 years:

YEAR 2015 . EMR B1
YEAR 2014 EMR 62
YEAR 2013 EMR 85
YEAR 2012 EMR B9
YEAR 2011 EMR 83

Total Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR) for the last 5 years:

YEAR 2015 TRFR 06
YEAR 2014 TRFR 1.0
YEAR 2013 TRFR 0.8
YEAR 2012 TRFR 1.8
YEAR 2011 TRFR 1.1

Total number of man-hours worked for the Jast 5 Years:

YEAR 2015 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 348,658
YEAR 2014 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 416,851
YEAR 2013 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 468,803
YEAR 2012 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 326,834
YEAR 2011 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 348272

A RE o-H-g a F a-Bid Days Away From Work Days of
Restncted Work Actwuty orjob Transfer (DART) |nCtdence rate for the particular industry or type of Work to
be performed by Contractor and each of Contracter's proposed Subcontractors and Suppliers) for the last 5
years:

YEAR 2015 DART 0.00
YEAR 2014 DART 0.95
YEAR 2013 DART 0.57
YEAR 2012 DART 0.00
YEAR 2011 DART 1.14

BICDC” C-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Seciety of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Engineering Campanles,
and Ametican Society of Gl Engineers, Al rights reserved.
Page 6 of 8




13. EQUIPMENT:

MAJOR EQUIPMENT:

List on Schedule C all pieces of major eq.uipment available for use on Owner's Project.

See Appendix F1...Equipment

EICDC" C-450, Qualifications Statement.
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Councll of Englneering Companles,
and Amerlcan $aciety of Civil Engineers. AN rights reserved,
Page 7 of 8




| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED HEREWITH, INCLUDING ANY ATTACHMENTS, IS TRUE TQ THE

BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF.

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: Iptermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.
BY: -/Jason T. Klaumann
TITLE: “President
DATED August 05, 2016

SUBSCRIBE ORN TO BEFORE ME Notary Public
il Stats of titah
THIS DAY OF A 20 1P / Comm. No. 882565
My Gomm, Expirsd Apr 28, 2019 ¢

NOTARY PUBLIC - sTATE OF __ Utah
MY COMMISSION ExpIRes: April 28, 2019

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

1. Schedule A (Current Experience).

2. Schedule B (Previous Experience).

3. Schedule C (Major Equipment),

5. Evidence of authority for individuals listed in Section 6 to bind organization to an agreement.
6. Resumaes of officers and key individuals {including Safety Officer) of firm named in Section 1.
7. Required safety program submittals listed in Section 12.

8. Additional items as pertinent.

EXDC" €450, Qualifications Statement,

Copyright ©® 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 80of 8




INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL, INC,
LIST OF AFFILIATES

We define "Affiliate” as our Parent Company (Granite Construction Incorporated) and
any direct consolidated subsidiary of our Parent Comipany.

Address: P.O. Box 50085 Watscnville, CA 95077-5085

Granite Construction incorparated - Parent

GILC, incorporated - Subsidiary

Granite Construction Northeast, Inc. - Subsidiary
Granite Construction Company - Subsidiary
Granite Construction International - Subsidiary
Granite Industrial, inc. - Subsidiary

Granite Land Company - Subsidiary

Kenny Construction Company - Subsidiary
Pozzolan Products Company - Subsidiary

Updated January 2016 Appendix A1 Page 1 of 1




INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL, INC.
List of Officers

NAME

' : Presentofflce ,Edsit_idn'_ by ,‘

Jason T. Klaumann

President

Kathleen Schreckengost

Vice President, Treasurer & Assistant
Secretary

Darren S. Beevor

Vice President, Coniroller & Secretary

Gary R. Price

Vice President & Assistant Secretary

Updated: December 2015

Appendix B1

Page 1 of 1




Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.

Chubb Group of Insurance Companies —~ 1926 to Present
Federal Insurance Company

15 Mountain View Read

Warren, NJ 07058

Contact: Scoit Bishop, Underwriting Manager - {908) 903-3451
State of Incorporation; Indianz

Ratings — AM Best: A++ XV; Moody's: Aa2; Standard & Poor's: AA
NAIC #: 20281 California License No.; 0059-6

CNA Financial Corporation - December 15, 2014 to Present
The Continental Insurance Company

Continental Casualty Company

333 South Wabash Avenue, Floor 41

Chicago, IL 60604

Contact: Samuel Ware, Underwriting Manager - {312) 822-1831
State of Incorporation: CIC - Pennsylvania; CCC - lllinois Ratings
— AM Best: A XV, Moody’s: A3; Standard & Poor's: A

NAIC #:; 35280 California License No.; 2270-7

The Travelers Companies, Inc, — August 1, 2002 to Present
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

Travelers Casually and Surety Company

1 Tower Square

Hartford, CT 06183

Contact: Brien Bialaski, Vice President - (860) 277-1914

State of incorporation: Connecticut

Ratings —~ AM SBest: A++ XV; Moody's: Aa2; Standard & Poor's: AA-
NAIC #: 31194 California License No.; 244-8

Zurich North America — February 1, 2004 to Present

Zurich American Insurance Company

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

Red Brook Corporate Center

600 Red Brook, 4™ Floor

Owings Mill, MD 21117

TREASURY ADDRESS: 1400 American Lane, Tower |, 18TH Floor, Schaumburg, IL 60196
Contact: Dave McVicker, VP Natignal Director - {410) 559-8733

State of Incorporation: Zurich — New York; F & D - Maryland

Ratings — AM Best: A+ XV, Moody's; A1; Standard & Poor's: AA- NAIC
#: 16535 (Zurich), 39306 {F&D) California License No.; 2479-4

Agent Name and Address:

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.

100 Pine Street, 11" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94111

(415) 403-1427

Contact: John D. Gilliland — Senior Vice President
ticense # 0036861 Expiration 08/30/2016

Single Job Capacity: $450,000,000. Aggregate Capacity: $5,000,000,000.

Updated: April 2016 Appendix C1




Asphalt Pavement And Recycling Technologies, Inc.

5207 Minter Field Avenue Shafter, CA 93263

Telephone: (661) 393-2748 Fax: (661) 393-2804

stevee@apartshafter.com bobs@aparishafter.com
Report: 16-0727 July 28, 2616

Customer: Idaho Asphait/ Western Emulsions — Doug Olsen, Tom Reneau
Samples Submitted:
One quart of CHFRS-2P Emulsion identified as:
White City Terminal
Tank 205, 07-22-16
Requested Testing:

Test the submitted sample for specification compliance. The specification was supplied by

Western Emulsions,

Summary of Testing:

The requested testing was performed using appropriate protocol. Test methods and test data are as

follows:
Test Method Test Result Specification

Viscosity, 122°F, SFS AASHTO T59 183.83 160-409
Sieve, w% AASHTO T59 0.06 0.10 Max,
Particie Charge AASHTO TS5 Positive Positive
Residue by Distillation, w9 AASHTO T39 134 65,0 Min,
0Qil Distillate, v% AASHTO T59 Nil 0.5 Max,
Tests on Residue

Penetration, 77°F, dmm AASHTO T49 86 30-130

Softening Point, °F AASHTO T53 138 130 Min.

Eiastic Recovery, 10°C, %% AASHTO T301 75.0 55.0 Min.

Float Test, 140°F, seconds AASHTO TS50 >2400 1800 Min,

Viscosity, 140°F, Poises AASHTO T202 6040 1300 Mia.

" Excepiion to AASHTOT 59: Bring the temperature on the tower thermometer slowly te 3530°F & 10°F. Maintain at

this temperature for 20 minytes. Complete total distillation in 60 £5 minutes from first application of heat.

@ Elastic Recovery @ 10°C (50°F): Hour glass sides, pul] to 20 em, hold 5 minutes themregiBrsit Tﬁ“ﬁ\ﬁN E. HICKOX
. Natary Publio- State of Arzona
RN Y bacounTy

Congclusion: . ;

Test data indicate that the sample is in compliance to the specification.

'_i/l/!:/f--., l’ 3/7-"(
¥

Test datn reported hereln kay been secured by velinble testing procedures. As we have no knowledge of, ar control over the
conditions that may sflcet the use of material [rom which samples were faken, we asstme no responsioilily in furnishing this data
other than fo warraot that they represeat reliable measurements of the properties of the samphe {8} received and tested. No
warranties, expressed or implicd, incleding warranties of merchantability or fitness for 2 pacticular use, sre made with respect fa the
products deseribed herein, Nothing contained herefn shall constltute 8 permission or reconnmendation to practice any invention
covered by g patent without Heense from the owner of the patent.




INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

RESOLVED, that, effective January 1. 2016 through December 31, 2016, the individuals
named on the attached Exhibit 1 are authorized to negotiate, execute and/or attest electronic and
paper documents and contracts necessary for the conduct of the Company’s affairs with respect
1o the submission and exccution of construction project bids, bid proposals, bid addenda and all
other bid-related documents prepared and submitted on behalf of the Company not to exceed $25
million, relating to any and all domestic construction projects arising out of the Company’s
operations.

RESOLVED, that, cffective January 1, 2016 through December 31, 20186, the individuals
named on the attached Exhibit 2 are authorized to negotiate, execute and attest electronic and
paper documents and contracts necessary for the conduct of the Company’s affairs with respect
to the submission and execution of construction project bids, bid proposals, bid addenda and all
other bid-related documents prepared and submitted on behalf of the Company not to exceed §75

million, relating to any and all domestic construction projects arising out of the Company’s
operations,

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the authority provided for herein shall be in accordance with
applicable policies, procedures and limits of authority previonsly approved and the Granite
Construction Incorporated Delegation of Authority and Policy then in effect.

I, Kathleen Schréckengost, do ercby certify that I am duly qualified as.Assistant
Secretary of INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL, INC., a Wyoming corporation {the
“Company”); that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of resolutions duly adopted effective
December 16, 2015 by unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors, held without a
meeting as authorized by 17-16-821 of the Wyoming Business Corporation act and the Bylaws
of the Company; that the Directors acting were duly and regularly elected; and that the resolution
adopted has not been modified or repealed and is still in full force and effect.

S
/A A
Dated: December 21, 2015 . Py

Kathleen Schreckengost  /

S Tempnian Iniana Fils Compvas.Outhisk: T¥MLORGZSS CERT wili Fxhitnl, L2.16.13 FIHALd0C

€ Lasbawiniy Lixzl

Page ] of 3




EXHIBIT 1

AUTHORIZED SIGNERS
Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.
California, Nevada, Utah, Northwest Area and Texas

AUTHORIZED SIGNERS
Gary R. Price, VP & Assistant Secretary
James Bryan Warner, Construction Manager
Marc C. Thoreson, Chief Estimator
Paul Foster, Construction Manager
Shawn Fielding, Construction Manager
Nathan B. Niemann, Project Manager
Daniel J. Cruz, Project Manager
Derrick Deckwa, Project Manager
Jason Lampley, Area Manager
Josh Bowen, Project Manager
Scott Curtis, Regional Division Controller

ATTESTORS
" Gary R. Price, VP & Assistant Secretary
James Bryan Warner, Construction Manager
Marc C. Thoreson, Chief Estimator
Paul Foster, Construction Manager
Shawn Fielding, Construction Manager
Nathan B. Niemann, Project Manager
Daniel J. Cruz, Project Manager
Derrick Deckwa, Project Manager
Jason Lampley, Area Manager
Josh Bowen, Project Manager
Derrick Deckwa, Project Manager
Scott Curtis, Regional Division Controller
Jane Nielson, Office Administrator
Kari Coleman, Office Administrator
Brooke Precourt, Office Manager

£ Usersybensling-AnpOatiaafMierosei Windtows Tumporary ingkmses Fifon ot Cudink VY MLGRGEZ 155 CERT with Exbibat, 12,1645 FINAL sl

Page 2 of 3




EXHIBIT 2 ;

AUTHORIZED SIGNERS
Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc.
California, Nevada, Northwest and Utah Areas

AUTHORIZED SIGNERS
Jason T. Klaumann, President

Cosers ghawhop-AppDatad_eabMcrnin Wmidows Teanacary iemd Filus Coaran, Crubmok:yV MEGKGZASS CERT with Exhibi, 12,146, 15, FINAL

Page 3 of 3




"ENGINEERING

Angust 8, 2016

Mr. Mike Nevin

Storey County

100 Tolt Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: BID ACCEPTANCE 2016 CAPE SEAL PROJECT
Mr. Nevin,

As you are aware, Storey County (County) held the bid opening for the 2016 Cape Seal Project on August
8, 2016. Intermountain Slurry Seal (Intermountain) is the apparent low bidder with a total bid cost of
$685,900.00. TIntermountain met the various bid requirements with a complete and balanced bid that
contained all required snbmittals.

Farr West has performed a due diligence check on Intermountain by checking references, Nevada State
Contractor’s Board, debarment, Secretary of State, and the Labor Commissioner. The references were all
positive; the general consensus is that they are more than competent to complete the work. A search of
the Contractor’s Board shows no disciplinary action against Intermountain and that they are within their
licensed limits. A search for “Intermountain Slurry Seal” in the System for Award Management showed
that Intermountain has no active exelusions or delinquencies. A search of the Secretary of State shows
that Intermountain is in current and good standing. Lastly, a search of the Labor Commissioner shows no
action as well. Intermountain has many years of experience, and as a company, has performed rnany local
asphalt sealing and maintenance projects.

Intermountain has provided the low bid and appears to be competent in performing the work; therefore,
Farr West recommends that the County award the complete project construction to Intermountain Siurry
Seal.

If'you have any questions or require additional information regarding this letter, please fecl free to contact
me,

Sincerely,

Lucas Tipton, P.E.
Project Manager

3510 Longley Lane * Reno, Nevada 89511 » (775) 851-4788
www.fartwestengineering.com




PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable,

BIDDER (Mame aond Address}):
Intermountain Sfurry Seal, Inc.
1900 Glendale Avenue
Sparks, NV 89431
SURETY {Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business}:
Federal Insurance Company
15 Mountain View Road

Warren, NJ 07059

OWNER (Name and Address}:
Storey County

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440
BD .
‘Bid DueDate; August 8, 2016
- Description (Project Name— Include Location): 2016 Cape Seal Project, Story County, NV

BOND
Bond Number: N/A
Date: August 2, 2016
Penalsurm  Five Percent (5%) of Bid Amount 8 5% of Bid Amount

{Words) {Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY
Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc. (Seal) Federal Insurance Company {Seal}
Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
7,

Signafure « Signature {Attach Power of Attorney)

JasenTidaumenn Marc Thovesc. Ashley Stinson

Print Name Print Name

Presiont  (hief Egftmecte Altomey-in-Fact

Title Title
Attest: Attest: W Q
Signature Signature “Kathleen Sch

7€f<engost

Title Title Attorney-in-Fact

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice. _
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCDE® €-430, Bid Bond {Penat Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Pagelof2




Y A
EICDC= PENAL SUM FORM
DOCTRAT NN COMM L

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administratars, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set farth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal surm under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents {or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Gwner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This abligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder's 8id and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Decuments (or any
extension thereof agreed te in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Docurents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Qwner, which notice wilt be given with reasonable
prompiness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

2. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent,

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project s located.,

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by persanal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and hind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory reguirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been amitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EICDC® C-430, Bld Bond {Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,
Page 2 of 2




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

N eueste.
State of Galifornia
County of __Jaghee )

On G““ﬁﬂ.‘:f 31 M!é before me, Deﬁ/“'ﬁ VOUUGH UUTW pUBL.{C,

(insert name and titla of the officer)

personally appeared ___[Y\arc. Thore sun & Chrg  Burke

who proved o me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the persan(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upcn behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| cerlify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the faws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

DEBRA YOUNG
Notary Public, State of Nevads $
Appoistment No. 16-1398-2
My Appt. Expires Feb 22, 2020

B vy
PcHias)
44 ‘5":
g ‘.-

D

e

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature Wé W%/\ (Seal)

v J"




A nolary public or ether officer completing this
cerfificate verifics only the identity of the individual AC KNOWLEDGME NT
wha signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, 2ccuracy, or validity
of that dacument,

State of California

County of Santa Cruz )

On August 2, 2016 before me, _ 10bi Stonich, Notary Public
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared Ashley Stinson & Kathleen Schreckengost

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 1o be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hefshe/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by hisfher/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

P certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

TOB! STONICH E
WITNESS my hand and official seal. Commission # 20567928

Notary Public - California 2

Santa Cruz County z

Signature \ / (Seal)

W\S@]}Eh, Notary Public




POWER Federal insurance Company Attn; Surety Department
OoF Vigilant Insurance Company 15 Mountain View Road
ATTORNEY Paclific Indemnity Company Warren, NJ 07059

Know Al by These Presenls, Thal FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, an Indlana cotporation, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, 8 New Yok corparafion, and
PACIFIC TNDEMNITY COMPANY, a Wisconsin corporalion, do esch hereby constiute ard appoint Jigisha  Desal, John B, Giflitand,
Kathleen Schreckengest, Ashiey Stinson and Lillan Tse of Watsonvlile, Californla

each as thelr true and iawiul Atiormey- In- Fact to execute under such designation in their names and o affix thelr corporate seals to and deliver for and on thair behalf
25 gurety thereon of othawise, bonds and undarakings and othar wrilinge oblijatory in the nature thereo! (other than ball bonds) given or executsd in the course of
business on behall GRANITE CONSTRUGTION iINCORPORATED and all Subsidlaries alore or in joint venture as principal, In comoction with
bids, propasals or eontrauts to of with the Unitad States of Amarica, any State or poliical subdivision therecf or any person, firm of corporation, And the execution of
such bond or obligation by suth Attormey- in- Fact in the Company's namg and on its behalf as surely thereon of otherwise, unger is corporale sesd, in pursuance of the
Autharity hareby confamred shall, upon delivery thereof, ba vafid and tinging upon the Company.

In Withess Whereof, sei FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VI%LANT INSURANGE COMPANY, and PAGIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY have sach execuled and
sitesled these presants and affixed their corporate seals on this 19" day of April, 2016.

Dawn M. Chiorps, Assistant SRW

STATE OF NEW JERSEY ss.
County of Somsreat

on s 197 day of April, 2018 before me, a Notary Public of New Jorsey, peraonally came Dawn M. Chlorus, to me known fo be Assistant Secretary of
FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEWMNITY COMPANY, the cempanles which exacuted the foregoing Power
of Aftomay, and the said Dawn M. Chioros, belng by me duly swom, cid depose and say thet she is Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANGE COMPANY,
VIGILANT INSURANCE GOMPANY, and PACIFIG INDEMNITY COMPANY and knows the comporate seals thereof, that the seals affixed o the foregeing Power of
Aftomey ané such corpocate seals snd were thereto affied by autherity of the By. Laws of ¢aid Companies; and that she signed eald Power of Attorney &3 Assistant
Secrafary of said Companles by ke authority: and that she Is exyueinted with David &, Nomis, Jr, and knows him fo be Vice President of said Companies; envd that the
signature of David B. Nanis, Jr., subscribed 1o said Pewer of Attornay i Ia the genuine hangwriting of David B. Norris, dr., and was thereto subscribed by authority of

gaid By Laws and I daponent's presence,
KATHERINE J. ADELAAR
NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW SERSEY
No. 2318585 %
Commission Expires July 16, 2019
F V

Notaria) Seal
Notary Pubic

. CERTIFICATION
Exiract from the By- Laws of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, end PAGIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY:

*Excapt a3 otherwlse provided in these By-Laws o by law or as otherwise direcied by tha Board of Dlrectors, the Presklent or any Vice Prasident shall be avthorized i
execute and deliver, in the nama and on bahalf of the Corparation, all sgreements, bonds, contracts, daecls, mortgages, and other instruments, ettt for the Corporaton's
own aectimt or in a fiduclary or other capacily, and the seal of the Corporation, if eppropriate, shall be affixed therato by any of such oficers of the Secretary or an Assistant
Becrataty. The Hoard of Directors, the President or any Vica President desigrated by the Board of Directors may autherize any other officer, employas or agent (o exacute
and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, agreements, bonds, contracts, desds, marigages, and other inetrigmeats, elther for the Corporation’s cwn
accoiint o in 3 fidduciary or other cepacity, and, if approprate, to affix the seal of the Corporation thereto. The grant of sch authority iy the Board or any such officar may
be general or confined 14 specific instances.”
1, Dawn M. Chloros, Assistant Secratary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGHANT INSURANGE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY {the "Carmpanies”)
o0 heroby cartify that
@  the foregoing exiract of the By- Laws of the Companles Is frug and comect,
(i) the Companles gre duly ficensed and aulhorized ¢ transact sursty business in @it 50 of the United States of Amarica and ihe District of Columbin and are
autharized by the U.8, Treasury Dapartment; further, Federal and Vighant are Reensed in the U.S. Virgin lafends, and Federal is llsensed in Guam, Puerty
Rico, and each of the Provinces of Canada except Prince Edward {stand; and
{lly  the foragoing Pawar of Attomey 5 trus, correct and in full force and effect.

Given under my hand ang seal

MO o™

Bawn M. Chiorog, Asslstant Setretary

IN THE EVENT YOU WISH TO NOTIEY US OF A CLAIM, VERIFY THE AUTHENTICITY OF THIS BOND DR NOTIFY US OF ANY OTHER MATTER, PLEASE
CONTACT US AT ADDRESS LISTED ABOVE, OR BY Telephone {S8) 903- 3403 Fax (508) 803- 3656 e-mall: surety@ chubb.com

Form 165-10-0154B-U  CORP CONSENT {rov.07-15}




NEVADA STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD
e 2310 Corporate Circle, Suite 200, Henderson, NV 89074
mmﬁ%ﬁgﬂ% 9670 Gateway Drive, Suite 100, Reno, NV 89521
www.ansch.nv.gov

February 16, 2016

INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL INC
1005 TERMINAL WAY SUITE 220
RENQ, Nevada 89502

Enclosed is your new Nevada state contractar's license identification card. Please carefully review the card
for accuracy. [f you locate errors on your card, please cantact an office of the Board immediately at (702)
486-1100 or (775} 688-1141. You may order additional cards at a cost of $10.00 per card using the re-order
form below.

Nevada State Contractors Board
9670 Gateway Drive, Suite 100, Renc, NV 89521
2310 Corporate Circle, Suite 200, Henderson, NV 89074

POCKET CARD RE-ORDER FORM

Enclosed is a check or money order made payabls to the Nevada State Contractors Board in the amount of
tocoverthecostof ____  additional pocket cards at $10,00 per card,

Company Name: _

License Number:;

Note: Pocket cards will only be printed for active status licenses. If your license Is suspended or has been placed
on inactive status, your request cannot be processed.

STATE OF NEVADA

Hﬂ% CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE
" THIE 15 7O CERTIFY THAT THE COMPANY OR P| {
'LICEFQEP INTHE STATE QF NEVADA FOR Tﬂ-E‘ELgSSIFIC.Q_T!DN(B) SHOWN H
LICENSER: 0023657  EXPIRES: 355112018 - i
INTERMOUNTAIN SLURRY SEAL INC . .

1006 TERMINAL WAY SUITE 220
RENO, Nevada 85802

LIMIT: Unlimited
CLASS: A




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: August 18, 2016 _ Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

L. Title: Consideration of and possible action to approve contract for the purchase of three (3)
lots from Bucket of Blood Saloon which are adjacent or close to the courthouse. The
addresses of the lots are 55 and 75 South A Street and 50 South B Street. They bear
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 1-081-01, 1-081-02 and 1-081-05.

2. 2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the contract for the purchase of three (3) lots
located at 55 and 75 South A Street and %0 South B Street from the Bucket of Blood
Saloon.and authorize the county manager to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4, Staff summary: See attached staff report

5. Supporting materials: Proposed Contract with Exhibits

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [

Continued

SIS )

Agenda Item No. \ .




STAFF REPORT

As the Board is aware, the County wants to improve the parking areas
adjacent to the courthouse for parking lot purposes. In order to make
improvements, the County must first own the real property prior to making the
improvements NRS 244.294. The attached contract proposes to purchase the three
lots adjacent to the courthouse which are presently under lease from the Bucket of
Blood Saloon. The lots have been appraised by Ann Delahay, a Nevada certified
appraiser who was first duly sworn to conduct the appraisal. She appraised the
properties and determined that their fair market value was $200,000.00 before the
excavation work was done on the parcels. Accordingly, the contract to purchase
the parcels provides that the price to be paid for the parcels will be $200,000.00.
Escrow is set to close on July 1, 2017, which is one day after the current lease
expires. If the contract is approved, escrow will be opened at Ticor Title with the
expenses of the escrow to be paid for by the County. As there are no contingencies
upon the close of escrow, once the escrow is opened, Storey County will be the
equitable owner of the properties and can commence the work of improving the
parcels into a finished parking lot.




Real Property Purchase Agreement

This Real Property Purchase Agreement (Agreement) is entered into this
day of 2016, by and between Storey County, a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada (Purchaser), and The Bucket of Blood Saloon (Seller) based on the
following facts:

a. The Seller is the owner of three parcels of real property located at 55
and 75 South A Street and 50 South B Street APN 1-081-01, 1-081-02, 1-081-05 (The
Properties), located in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada.

b. Purchaser desires to acquire The Properties in order to improve a
parking lot next to the Storey County Courthouse in Virginia City.

c.  Marshall McBride is a principal in the Bucket of Blood Saloon and is

also the Chairman of the Board of the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County.

Normally a member of a board of county commissioners would be prohibited from
entering into a contract through a business entity in which he has a substantial pecuniary
interest unless an exception is available under NRS 281A.430. Pursuant to NRS
281A.430, Chairman McBride filed a request for a first party opinion with the Nevada
Commission on Ethics (Ethics Commission). The Ethics Commission held a hearing on
the request and excepted this transaction from the prohibition of NRS 281.230. This
exception was largely based upon the fact that the parcels to be purchased by Storey
County are the only suitable parcels available for expansion of the parking lot for the
County’s courthouse, the purchase of the parcels would be in the public interest and
because the County will strictly follow the requirements of NRS 244.275 regarding an
‘appraisal of The Properties. '

d. The Properties have been appraised by Ann Delahy, a Nevada
certified appraiser, who was first duly sworn to make a true appraisement of The
Properties. Said Oath and Appraisal are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B.

€. Purchaser has already obtained at its expense a preliminary title
report on the property and has no objections to any of the exceptions from insurable title
set forth in that report.

f. The parties have reached an agreement as to the terms and
conditions for the sale and purchase of The Properties.




Based on these facts and the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purchaser agrees to purchase from Seller and Seller agrees to sell to -
Purchaser, The Properties located in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and more
particularly described in the attached Exhibit C, on the terms and conditions that follow.

2. The agreed on purchase price is $200,000.00.

3. Escrow will be opened with Ticor Title Company in Carson City, Nevada.
Escrow will close on the 1% day of July, 2017. All modifications or extensions must be
in writing and signed by the parties. Escrow instructions will be prepared as follows:

A.  Purchaser will deposit the sum of $200,000.00 for The Properties
described in Exhibit C into escrow prior to the close of escrow. Purchaser will pay the
costs and fees of the escrow.

B. Seller agrees to execute a warranty deed to convey to Storey County
The Properties described in Exhibit C and deposit said document in escrow prior to the
close of escrow.

C. Purchaser agrees to obtain a CTLA title insurance policy on The
Properties and pay for the cost of the policy.

4. Purchaser is buying The Properties for future utilization as a parking
facility. Purchaser will agree to allocate 100% of the purchase price to land.

5. This Agreement sets forth all the promises, agreements, conditions,
warranties, and representations between the parties and is intended to be an integration of
any and all agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect to the transaction
in this agreement.

6. The parties acknowledge having the opportunity to be represented by the
counsel of their choice with respect to the preparation, negotiation and execution of this
Agreement and each party agrees that the doctrine of construing the contractual terms
against the drafting party will not apply to this Agreement. Each party will bear their
own costs and attorney fees associated with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. All notices or other documents under this Agreement must be in writing and
delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested,




addressed to the Seller in care of Marshall McBride at PO Box E Virginia City, Nevada
89440 or to the Purchaser in care of Pat Whitten, County Manager’s Office, Post Office
Box 176, 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada, §9440.

0. Time is of the essence for this Agreement.

10.  This Agreement is binding on and inures to the benefit of the parties and
their heirs, successors and assigns.

11.  Each person signing this Agreement covenants that he or she has the proper |
authority and power to enter into this Agreement and bind the party to this Agreement.

12.  This Agreement must be construed in accordance with and governed by the
laws of the State of Nevada and the parties agree that the proper venue and jurisdiction of
all actions arising out of this agreement is the First Judicial District Court, Storey County,

Nevada.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date written above.

Purchaser Seller
By:

By: _
Lance Gilman Acting Chair Marshall McBride, President
Storey County Commission The Bucket of Blood Saloon

Attest: Approved as to form:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Anne Langer, District Attorney

By:




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22 |

23

24

25

26

27

28

. B8 g gy
E i boa Eee

" OATH 2016 APR -5 AM10: 55
STCHRL f wouiiy CL?RK

BY Obm{f‘m

EPUT
I, Ann Delahay hereby swear that I will well and truly perporm the duties of

an appraiser for Storey County, Nevada, as appointed by the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada for the purpose of making a true
appraisement of three lots owned by the Bucket of Blood Saloon near the Virginia

City Courthouse to the best of my knowledge and ability.

Dated this __ 5 #h _day of Ape]

Sworn to before me, (/Qorg, [evrn » Deputy Storey County

Clerk/Treasurer on the date set forth above.

Vanessa Stephens -
Storey County Clerk/'I réasurer

Deputy Clerk/Treasurer

EXHIBIT A




AN APPRAISAL
CONVEYED IN A
RESTRICTED APPRAISAL REPORT

- OF

An 18,285 SQUARE FOOT SITE
IN THREE PARCELS
LOCATED AT
THE WEST SIDE OF B STREET
and THE EAST SIDE OF A STREET
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AS OF
APRIL 5, 2016

PREPARED FOR
PAT WHITTEN, COUNTY MANAGER
STOREY COUNTY
P OBOX 176
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

By
Ann Delahay
Ann Delahay, Appraiser
2898 Rio Vista Court
Minden, Nevada 89423
2016031

EXHIBIT B




ANN DELAHAY, APPRAISER

2898 Rio Vista Court® MINDEN, NEVADA 89423
Phone: (775) 267-9675  Fax: (775} 267-9675

June 11, 20186

Mr. Pat Whitten, County Manager
Storey County

F OBox 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Update of an appraisal dated December 21, 2015 of an 18,285-square-foot site situated on the
northeast corner of South A Sireet and Taylor St, with additional frontage on the west side of South
B Street, in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada

Dear Mr. Whitten:

As you requested, | have completed an inspection and analysis of the above-referenced property in order to
pravide an updated opinion of its Market Value, as a parking lot. The function of the appraisal is to assist the
client, Storey County, in making a decision regarding the possible purchase of the subjéct property for
assemblage with two county-owned parcels for a future parking facility.

This is a Restricted Appraisal Report. As such, it does not present discussions of the data, reasoning, and
analyses that were used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. In addition,
please note that this is an update of a pricr report dated December 21, 2015. This report incorporates the
prior report by reference, and is not complete without the prior report. Supporting documentation concerning
the data, reasoning, and analyses is retained in the appraiser’s file. The depth of discussion contained in this
report is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use stated above. The client is Story County.
The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use of this report.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, and based on the extraordinary
assumptions and hypothetical conditions stated in the report, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the fee
simple interest in the subject, as is, as of April 5, 2016, was:

Respectfully submitted,

o e

Ann Delahay
Certified General Appraiser
Nevada License # A-0002515.CG




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

TABLE OF CONTENTS
SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS. ... .. oo i ee e e e 1
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION. © ... i e e e e man e 2
APPRAISAL ISSUES. . . e e e 2
PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL. ... .. ... ... i 2
DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE. . . . .. .. i i i i e e i e e i e 2
PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED. . .. ... . i e aaas 2
EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION. . ... i it e i 2
SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL.. . o .. o e e e et 3
VALUATION. . o i i e i e e 3
INCOME APPROACH. . . oo e it et e i s e et anas 3
FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE. .. . ... e i it 4
CERTIF AT N, L ittt it ittt e i ie it et e a e e enns 6
STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS. . . ... . oo, 7

ADDENDUM

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER
SUBJECT PLAT MAP
PROSPECTIVE PARKING MAP
SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS

PROPERTY APPRAISED

LOCATION

APPRAISAL DATE

DATE OF REFORT

INTEREST APPRAISED

PURPOSE OF APPRAISAL

INTENDED USE OF APPRAISAL

INTENDED USER OF THE APPRAISAL

CLIENT

OWNER OF RECORD

HIGHEST AND BEST USE

EXPOSURE/MARKETING TIME

VALUE CONCLUSION, AS IS

VALUE CONCLUSION, PRIOR TO
EXCAVATION

An 18,285 square-foot site comprised of three parcels known as
Assessor’s Parcels 001-081-01, 001-081-02, and 001-081-05,
as a parking lot.

Northeast corner of South A Street and Taylor Sireet, with
additional frontage on the west side of South B Street, aiso
known as 55 and 75 South A Street and 50 South B Street,
Storey County, Nevada

April 5, 2018

June 11, 2016

Fee Simpie

To form an updated opinion of the Market Value of the property,

as assembled with the two adjacent county-owned parcels as a
parking lot

For use in internal decision-making regarding the possible
purchase of the subject property by the client

Storey County
Storey County

001-081-01 & 02: Bucket of Blood Saloon
001-081-05: Criginal Bucket of Blood

Parking lot
Six months to one year

$250,000

$200,000




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location: The property is iocated on the northeast corner of South A Street and Taylor Street, with
additional frontage on the west side of South B Street, also known as 55 and 75 South A Street and 50 South B
Street, in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada. itis identified by the Storey County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcels
Number 001-081-01, 001-081-02, and 001-081-05.

Owner of Record: The subject parcels 001-081-01 and 001-081-02 are under the ownership of Bucket of Blood
Saloon, and subject parcel 001-081-05 is under the ownership of Original Bucket of Blood. None of the parcels has
sold within the last three years.

APPRAISAL ISSUES

PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL

The purpose of this appraisal is to form an updated opinion of the Market Value of the fee simple interest in the
subject property, as vacant and used for public parking. The intended use of the appraisal is to assist the client in
making a decision regarding the possible purchase of the subject property. The infended user is the client, Storey
County.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE

Market Value is defined as the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably, and assuming
the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified
date and the passing of title from selfler to buyer under conditions whereby:

buyer and seller are typically motivated;

both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own best inferests;

a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable therelo;
and

5. the price represents the normal cansideration for the property sold, unaffected by special or creative finan-
cing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the safe.’

Rooho

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED

The property rights appraised in this report are the fee simple estate in the subject, assuming no indebtedness
against the property.

LFIRREA Tille X1, OTC Regulation 12 CFR 564.2(f)




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION
The effective date of this appraisal is April 5, 2016, the date of inspection. The report date is June 11, 2016, the date
indicated on the cover letter.

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL

In deriving an opinion of the value, by prior agreement with the client, the appraiser has researched parking rates and
income from public parking lots in Virginia City in order to derive an estimate of income that could be generated by
the subject property, based on the extraordinary assumptions that it is used for paid parking and will accommodate
39 vehicles. Parcel 001-081-05 is currenfly graded, paved, and striped for 25 vehicles. Parcels 001-081-01 and 001-
081-02 are graded and engineering and design have been completed for assemblage with County-owned parcels
001-081-06 and 00-081-07. The appraisal is limited in scope in that only use as a parking lot has been considered.

This appraisal is limited to a valuation based on projected net income as a parking facility. Research was conducted
to find any sales of comparable properties that have occurred since the original valuation date and to update annual
income and capitalization rates for area parking iots in order to derive a value as a parking lot. '

The vaiuation is based in part on a hypothetical condition that the subject sites are assembled with the adjacent
parcels noted above for construction of a 75-space parking lot, per designs by Farr West Engineering provided by
the client. When complete, the property will be paved for 75 vehicles, including four handicapped spaces. Ingress
and egress will be from B Street. The valuation is of the subject three parcels only, based on their contributory value
to the hypothetical assemblage. Based on information furnished by the client, the subject will have 39.5 parking
spaces. For the purpose of this report, | have based valuation on 39 spaces.

This is a Restricted Appraisal Report that is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth under
Standards Rule 2-2(b) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) for a Restricted
Appraisal Report, As such, it does not include discussions of the data, reasoning, and analyses that were used
in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser’s opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the data,
reasoning, and analyses is retained in the appraiser's file. The information contained in this report is specific to the
needs of the client and for the intended use stated in this report. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized
use of this report. To the best of my knowledge, this appraisal conforms to the requirements of USPAP, 12 CFR Par
34 (FIRREA), and the State of Nevada.,

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of forming an opinion of the value of a property. These are known as the
Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the iIncome Approach. Only the Income Approach will be used
for this appraisal, although the Sales Comparison Approach will be address.

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

Land sales in Virginia City have been analyzed, but there is insufficient data from which to derive a reliable indication
of value. Onlytwo sales of reasonably level sites have occurred; a 0.50-acre site at 320 N G Street, and a 0.257-acre




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

site at 168 S D Street, both purchased by Storey County for parking. The G Street lot is significantly inferior to the
subject in location and topography, and will have to be graded and leveled. The D Street lot is slightly inferior in
location, but similar in topography and has aiready been leveled and utilized for parking. Based on the number of
spaces planned by Storey County for each site, the G Street lot sold for $2,500 per space, and the D Street lot sold
for $6,461.54 per space. Given the fact that the D Street lot is about one third the size of the subject, it provides a
good indication of value per space for the subject, but the lack of other supporting data makes this indication
unreliable. Additicnally, it must be noted that the sale prices for both of these parcels were based, at least in part,
on an appraisal by this appraiser: therefore, although the sales are discussed here, the Sales Comparison Approach
has not been relied upon in deriving a value conclusion.

INCOME APPROACH

The appraiser has attempted to gather updated information on three parking lots currently generating income in
Virginia City. My research uncovered no changes in rental income since the date of the original report, December
21, 2015. Following is a recap of the analysis in that report.

The appraiser has gathered information on three parking lots currently generating income in Virginia City. Cne of
these lots is the subject Parcel 001-081-05, which is improved as a parking lot and is leased to Storey County for
open parking. The other two are used for public parking and are rented to the public on an hourly or daily basis. My
research indicates net income for parking in Virginia City which ranges from $720 per space per year to the lot on
B Street (subject parcel 001-081-05) to an estimated $1,625 per space per year for a premium location on C Street
and $1,300 per space per year (actual revenue for 2014) for another prime lot on C Street. The C Street locations
would be expected to have significantly higher income than a B Streetlocation; however, the subject B Streetiocation
reflects aleased lot rather than income that could be achieved from daily public parking. No other public parking lots
were found in Virginia City. Because values in Virginia City are significantly different frorm those in surrounding areas,
parking lots in Reno and Carson City were not considered.

Identification | Location Number of | Income Comments
Spaces
001-081-05 50 Scuth B St | 25 $720 net/spacelyear Leased lot, paved
001-085-10 19SouthC St | 74 $2,027 gross/spacelyear Expenses estimated
$1,625 netfspacelyear Daily parking, paved lot
001-084-01 8 North C St 20 $1,300 net/space/year Daily parking, paved lot

Given the location of the subject, | have estimated that annual income per space for the subject, based on daily
parking rates, would be slightly higher than that achieved by the B Streetlot under the currentlease, and significantly
lower than the income achieved for the C Street lots. Given this, | have projected annual net income to be about 50%
of the average achieved for the C Sfreetlots. This equates to $61 per space per month, or $732 per space per year.
| have rounded this to $730 per space annuaily. This results in an annual projected income for the subject 39 space
lot of $28,470.

There is little local data on current capitalization rates, and no information on capitalization rates for parking lots was
found. Based on discussions with area brokers and on national surveys such as the Price-Waterhouse Coopers

4




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

report for the Second Quarter, 2013 and a study of capitalization rates for major U.S, cities for the second half of 2015
by CBRE, who reporis that rates were virtually unchanged from the first half of the year. | have used an overall
capitalization rate of 9% to 8.5%. This results in a value range indication of $299,684 to $316,333 for 39 spaces.
| have concluded to a vaiue in the middle of the range, or $310,000.

The preceding value reflects the value for a paved and striped lot. Currently, only Parcel 001-081-05 is paved and
striped, and many stripes have faded such that they cannot be seen. in order fo derive an as is value for the subject,
costs to complete the lot must be deducted from the value as complete. Based on figures supplied by the client for
aggregate base and retaining wall, plus figures for paving and striping from Marshall Valuation Service, the cost of
completing the parking lot, excludiing landscaping, curbing, and fencing, is estimated to be $2,050 (rounded) per
space for the 14 spaces that are not currently paved, and $1,300 per space for the paved site (001-081-05). Thus,
the prorated cost to pave and stripe the subject parcels, plus provide a retaining wall, is $61,202. | have rounded this
figure to $60,000, and deducted it from the estimated value as a finished parking lot to arrive at a value “as is” of
$250,000




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE, AS iS

The value of the subject has been estimated based on the assumption that the suibject can accommodate 39 vehicles
as a part of an assembled parcel which will include the two adjacent sites on B Street. The assemblage will
accommodate a total of 75 vehicles.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, and based on the hypothetical condition as
stated above, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the fee simple interest in the subject, as is, as of December

21, 2015, was:

FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE PRIOR TO EXCAVATION

It is noted that the County has already completed significant excavation and grading of Parcels 001-081-01 and 02.
In addition, engineering costs have been incurred. The total expenditure to date is approximately $85,000. Of this,
approximately $50,000 can be allocated to the development of the subject sites, with the balance being allocated to
the 35 spaces in the two parcels already under Storey Courty ownership. Thus, the value of the subject prior to
excavation is estimated to be $200,000. '




Ann Delabay, Appraiser

CERTIFICATION

The Appraiser ceriifies and agrees that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
1. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

2. The reported analysis, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the assumptions and limiting conditions set forth herein,
and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions.

3. I have no present or prospective future interest in the real estate that is the subject of this appraisal report. | have no present
of prospective personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. | did not base, either partially or
completely, my analysis andfor the estimate of Market Value in the appraisal report on the race, color, religion, gender, handicap,
familial status, or national origin of either the owners, prospective owners, or occupants of the subject property or the present
or prospective ownears or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property.

4. | have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this assignment,

5. Neither my compensation nor my future employment is contingent upon the appraised value of the subject property. |1 was
not required to report a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client or any related party, nor are
a predetermined value estimate, the attainment of a specific resuit, or the occurrence of a subsequent event required in order
to receive my compensation and/or employment for performing the appraisal. | did not base the appraisal report on a requested
minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the need to approve a specific mortgage loan. My engagement in this assignment
was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.

6. My analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this appraisal report has been prepared in conformance with
and is subject to the requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) adopted by the
Appraisal Foundation.

7. | have personally inspected the subject property and the exterior of all properties listed as comparables in this report, unless
otherwise indicated. | have noted any apparent or known adverse conditions in the subject improvements, on the subject site,
or on any site within the immediate vicinity of the subject property of which | am aware.

8. No one provided significant professional assistance to the appraiser signing this report.

9. This report is an update of an appraisal of the subject property performed by me and dated December 22, 2015. | have
performed no other services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report
within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment. | note that | have previously appraised
Parcels 001-081-06 and 001-081-07 on August 5, 2013. These parcels are not a part of this appraisal but do make up the
assembiage of which the subject parcels are a part.

(e

Ann Delahay
Certified General Appraiser
A.0002515-CG




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

This appraisal report and the valuation reported herein are made subject to the following assumptions and Hmiting conditions.
1. | assume that the title is good and marketable and, therefore, will not render any opinions about the title.

2. No survey has been mads for the purpose of this report. All maps and sketches in the report are made for illustrative purposes and are
submitted to assist the reader in visualizing the property. Although | have attempted to be as accurate as possible, maps and sketches are not
guaranteed to be exact.

3. Data for this report was provided by the client and by informed local and governmental sources and checked where possible by secondary
sources and is believed to be reliable; however, the accuracy of this information is not guaranteed.

4. This appraisal is to be considered in its entirety. The allocation of value between land and improvements, if any, is based upon the highest
and best use of the land as herein stated, and cannot be applied to any other use.

5, Neither all, nor any part of the contents of this report or copy thereof shall be used for any purpose by any but the client without the previous
wiitten consent of the appraiser and/or client. The appraiser's wiitten consent and approval must also be obtained before the appraisal or any
part of the appraisal (including conclusions about the property value, the identity of the appraiser or a firm with which the appraiser is connecled)
may be conveyed by anyone to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media. | will not disclose the contents of
the appraisal report except as provided for in the Uniferm Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.

B. Itis assumed that the property will be under responsible ownership and competent management and that reasonable maintenance will prevail.

7. lassume that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures which would render it more or less valuable.
| assume no responsibility for such conditions or for engineering which might be required to discover such factors. The existence of hazardous
material which may or may not be present on the property, was not observed by me, and | have no knowledge of the existence of such materials
on the property, unless noted. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, or other potentially hazardous
materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there is no such material on or in the
property that would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or engineering knowledge
required to discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, If desired.

8. | am not required to give testimony or appear in court as a result of having made this appraisal, unless specific arrangements to do so have
been made beforehand.

9, The value assumes all governmental approvals and completion per plans and specifications submitted of the off-site and bullding
improvements, if applicable. If the appraisal is made subject to completion, repairs, or alterations, It is assumed that such completion, repairs,
or alterations will be performed in a workmanlike manner.

10. The opinions of value contained herein are estimates. There is no guarantee, written or implied, that the subject property will actually selt
for such amounts,

11. The subject building may or may not appear to be equipped to service handicapped 'chients; however, | make no representations as to
whether they are in compliance with ADA regulations. ADA regulations are complex and the appraiser is not qualified to determine whether or
not the subject is in compliance. The client is urged to refer to proper authorities, if desired.




ADDENDUM




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

Subject Parcel Map

10




QUALIFICATIONS OF ANN DELAHAY
Real Estate Appraiser/Consultant

2898 Rio Vista Court, Minden, NV 82423
{775) 267-9675 FAX 267-9675

MNevada Cert_iﬁed General Appraiser License #A.0002515-CG

Background and Experience
Review Appraiser, Nevada Department of TransportationOct 2008 - Present
Independent Fee AppraiserJan 1997 - Oct 2008
Associate Appraiser, The Aspen Appraisal Group, Aspen, COMay 1994 - Nov 1996
Senior Appraiser, Price Appraisal Services, Dallas, TexasNov 1987 - April 1994
Staff Appraiser, Cornwell & Associates, Dallas, TexasJan 1987 - Nov 1987
Manager of Property Accounting, Levin Management, Dallas, TexasApril 1984 - Jan 1987
Assistant Manager, Property Accounting, Cushman & Wakefield, Dallas, Texas July 1980 - April 1984

Education and Technical Training
Trinity University, B.A., Magna Cum Laude1974
American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers:
Real Estate Appraisat Principles (2/87)Basic Valuation Procedures (6/87)
Capitalization Theory & Techniques A & B (6/87)Standards of Professicnal Appraisal Practice (5/88)
Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation (4/89) Appraisal Report Writing (7/90)

Appraisal Institute:

The High Tech Appraisal Office (7/97)Standards of Professional Practice (10/97)
Appraising High Value and Historic Homes (12/98)Appraisers as Financial Institutions (10/01)
Water Rights in Nevada (11/01)Nevada Statues (2/03}

Guide to Uniform Residential App (9/05)Highest & Best Use (40hr - 10/06
USPAP Update (11/08)Analyzing Operating Expenses (1/09)

Forecasting Revenue (1/09)Eminent Domain & Condemnation (1/09)

Analyzing Distressed Real Estate (1/09)USPAP Update (3/10)

Evaluating Commercial Construction (10/10)Corridor Valuation (10/10)

Yellow Book Issues/Divided Partial Interests (10/10)

The Beckman Company:
The Technical Inspection of Real Estate

The Chicopee Group
Professmnal and Technical Compliance Compliance with USPAP Parts |, II, & Il (2/99)
Professional & Technical Compliance with USPAP I (5/02)

Reno/Sparks Association of Realtors
Property Flipping and Predatory Lending (10/01)

McKissock, Inc,
Appraising the Oddball: Nonconforming Appraising for the Secondary Market: Getting
& Difficult Properties {10/02)Along With Fannie & Freddie (10/04)
USPAP Update Equivalent (10/04)Appraisal Review (10/04)
Appraising High-Value Residential Properties (10/04)Fair Housing - Virtual Classroom (1/05)
Appraising Historic Properties (1/07)Construction Details & Trends (1/07)
Disclosures & Disclaimers (1/07)USPAP (2/14)

National Association of Independent Fee Appraisers
USPAP (2110)

11




Exhibit C

PARCEL 1

All that certain real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, also known ds 75
South A Street, more particularly described as follows, to wit: :

THE SURFACE RIGHT ONLY IN AND TO
TRACT 1

Being a portion of Lot 20 Block 103 Range A as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City,
Nevada filed June 6, 1865, in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of
Nevada and being described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Lot 20; thence from said Point of Beginning and along
the East Boundary of A Street North 23 feet; thence East at right angles 23.25 feet to a point;
thence North at right angles 23 feet to the South boundary of Lot 18; in said Block and Range;
thence along the said last mentioned boundary East 23 feet to the West boundary of Lot 19,in
said Block and Range; thence along the West boundary of Lots 19, 21 and 23, in said Block and
Range 71 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 20; thence along the South boundary of said lot
20 West 46 feet more or less to the Point of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion of the herein described lands lying within the existing
public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances thereto

TRACT 2

Lots 22 and 24 in Block 103 Range A, as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City, Nevada,
filed June 6, 1865, in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion of the herein described lands lying within the existing
public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances. '

TRACT 3

West 39 feet 8 inches of Lots 26 and 27 in Block 103, Range A as shown on the Official Map of
Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6, 1865, in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County,
State of Nevada.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the lands contained in the Decree Quieting Title recorded
September 22, 1975 in Book 2 of Official Records at Page 567, Storey County Nevada.

EXHIBIT C




ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion of the herein described lands lying within the
existing public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances.

ASSESSORS PARCEL NO. 001-081-01

PARCEL 2
THE SURFACE RIGHT ONLY IN AND TO

All that certain parcel or lot of land located, situate and being in Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, also known as 75 South A Street, more particularly described as follows, to wit:

Block 103, Range A, Lots 12, 14, 16, 18, and the Northwest 1/4 of Lot 20, in Block 103,
Range A, as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City, filed June 6, 1865, in the Office of the -
County Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada. ' '

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion of the herein described lands lying within the
existing public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances thereto.

ASSESSORS PARCEL # 001-081-02

PARCEL 3

All that certain parcel of land located, situate and being in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
also known as 50 South B Strect, more particularly described as follows, to wit:

THE SURFACE RIGHTS ONLY IN AND TO THE FOLLOWING PARCEL OF LAND:

Lots 11, 13, and 15 in Block 103, Range A, as shown on the Official Map of Virginia
City, filed June 6, 1865, in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevada.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion of the herein described lands lying within the ex1st1ng
public right-of-way for roads and appurtenances thereto.

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL # 001-081-05




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/16/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval short-term extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between Storey County, Nevada and Comstock Chapter
AFSCME Local 4041 July I, 2013-June 30, 2016 CBA, to September 30, 2016, or until a
succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County Commissioners, whichever
comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the parties to continue beyond
the current CBA period.

2. Recommended motion,
Based on the recommendation by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve a short-term
extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between Storey County, Nevada and
Comstock Chapter AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016, CBA, to September
30, 2016, or until a succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, whichever comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the
parties to continue beyond the current CBA period.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: This short-term extension will allow the union and the employer to continue
negotiating the coilective bargaining agreement terms pursuant to NRS 288. This action
will result in the continuation of the terms and conditions of the existing agreement until
September 30, 2016, or until a succeeding agreement is approved by the Board of Storey
County Commissioners, whichever comes first. This extension follows a prior extension
granted by the Board of Storey County Commissioners on 06/21/16.

5. Supporting materials: Nong

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
@’ __ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@‘f’ﬂ' ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L]
[]

Agenda Item No. I 6_




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: 8/16/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [[] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2016-018, by Laurie Weatherston. The
Applicant requests merging three approximately 50° X 100’ Virginia City lots into two
approximately 75" X 100 lots located at 180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-
10, 190 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-11 and 200 S O St, Virginia City,
Storey County, APN: 001-251-12,

2. Recommended motion: (Recommended motion for approval) In accordance with the
recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings under section 5.1 of the
Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, [ [County Commissioner] hereby
recommend approval with conditions for the parcel map application number 2016-018 that merges
three Virginia City lots into two lots located at 180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County (APN:
001-251-10), 190 § O St, Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-11) and 200 S O St,
Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-12).

3. Prepared by: Jason Vanlavel
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
4, Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-018.
5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2016-018.
6. Fiscal impaet: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller

7. Legal review. reqitived:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
' % i - Department Head - Department Name:

Q%y Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P sy
] bl

Agenda Item No. i




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 82440 Phone (775)

STOREY COUNTY &
PLANNING DEPARTMENT<

Storey County Courthouse

847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:

From:

Meeting Date:
Meeting Location:
Case Number:
Applicant:

Property Owners:

Staff Contact:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Request:

Staff Report - 2016-018

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

August 16, 2016

Virginia City Courthouse, 26 South B Street, Virginia City, NV 89440
2016-018

Laurie Weatherston

Richard and Doreen Bacus and Kerschner Living Trust (Willeta H.
Kerschner, Trustee)

Jason VanHavel, Storey County Planner

Figure 1: Arca Map; Figure 2: Existing and Proposed New Parcel
Map; Figures 3: Land Use Compatibility

Appendix 1: Nevada Revised Statues 278.475 - 278.477; Appendix 2:
Statement in Application on Purpose for Parcel Map

Storey County Code Section 17.40 Estate Zone; Storey County Master
Plan and Nevada Revised Statues 278.475 through 278.477

180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-10
190 § O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-11
200 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-12

The Applicant requests merging three approximately 50° X 100°
Virginia City lots into two approximately 75” X 100’ lots located at
180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-10, 190 S O
§t, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-11 and 200 S O §t,
Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-12,




TABLE OF CONTENTS

LT g e T T ) O SO SOOVOOOR 1
Table Of CONLENTS....oviviririerreer e sr s e an e s sa s bbb aes 2
EER¥:5 5 1 NS o3 o PO OO 3-
1. Background & AnalysiS.....ccoooiv et eerians 3
2. General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents............... 5
3. Compliance with the Storey County Code.....oumminriiarinieneeeemrereresenes 5
4. PUDC COMIMENT.. vt viiiecreieireesemre ettt raemsse e ras s saens 5
5. FINAINES.cirivereririie st eiistase st st a e sre e e ne e nes e e nesrer s arassrasresaseae 6
6. Recommended Conditions 0f Approval.......coiccvvsiininiesisnssminessnon, 6
7. Power of the Board of County CommiSSIoners .......c.ccoveieveveveeeesnievevnnonins 7
8. Proposed MOtIONS. o ieie ettt et e e es st srerssnrsasnssnsanenessane 7
Appendix 1: NRS 278.475 through 278477 ... eveee e 9-11
Appendix 2: Statement in application on purpose for parcel map......occovvvvvreeienne 12-13

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 12 AT€8 MEap....cccco ettt ee st s ebe s s e se st ssbs s 3

Figure 2: Existing and Proposed New Parcel Map.....ccoccocccvcinvecvveensesiicsnssenenns 4

Figure 3: Land Use CompatiDility...uuierininrensisarisssinessrenmsssesssssrsses s 5
Staff Report - 2016-018




1. Background & Analysis

1.1 Site location and Characteristics

The subject properties are located at 180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-10,
190 § O St, Virginia City, Storey County, APN: 001-251-11 and 200 S O St, Virginia City, Storey
County, APN: 001-251-12 and are all about 50 feet by 100 feet. This location in Virginia City is on
the west side of O Street and south of Washington Street. The subject and adjacent properties in the
area are also zoned R1. (Figure 1 - Area Map). With the R1 zoning, the subject properties are
buildable with single family housing.

The properties abut each other and have access from O Street. All of the subject properties can be
serviced with public water and sewer,

Figure 1: Area Map with parels. The dark blue rcctle contains three existing parcels.

1.2 Proposed Parcel Map

The existing parcels (shown below on left) are adjacent on the West side of O Street. The proposed
parcel map (shown below right). The new map will result in twe 75° by 100” lots. These two new
lots are larger than the currently existing three lots. The new lots are well within the zoning
requirements for the R1 zone,

Steff Report - 2014018




Yirginla  Cily
TTAREY e

e

=
.

Pt

YRt e '
R TS ey

Figure 2: Existing parcels on left, proposed new parcel map on right.

1.3  Application for a Parcel Map

Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 278.475 through 278.477 defines requirements for a parcel map
boundary lines adjustment. Storey County Code (SCC) does not specifically require an application
for a Parcel Map. A proposed Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.475 through 278.477. The
referenced NRS details required map elements, some details on procedural requirements, and
recording.

Most of the NRS that refers to parcel maps in the context of NRS 278.320 “Subdivision” of land. In
the referenced NRS, subdivision of land means dividing into five or more parcels. Because this
application will not divide land into five or more parcels, most of NRS 278 that refers to “parcel
maps” will not apply to the application. In this report, the term “parcel map” does not mean
subdividing land into five or more parcels.

The three existing lots have two owners. One owner, Kerschner Living Trust (Willeta H. Kerschner,
Trustee), currently owns two lots, APN 001-251-11 and 001-251-12. The other owner, Richard and
Doreen Bacus own just APN 001-251-10. Richard and Doreen Bacus have agreed to purchase half
of lot 001-251-11 from the trust and this map is part of that transaction. Richard and Doreen Bacus
plan to build a house on their new lot with enough parking to accommodate an RV Both owners
have signed consenting to this parcel map.

14 Adjacent Properties Existing Land Uses

The abutting properties are a mix of single-family residential and vacant. (Figure 3: Land Uses
Compatibility).

Staff Report - 2016018




1.5  Abutting Properties Zoning
The abutting properties are zoned R1. (Figure 3: Land Uses Compatibility).
2. General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents

2.4 Table 1: Land Use Compatibility

While there are no zoning changes, the following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan
(Master Plan) designations and zoning for the land surrounding the proposed parcel map. There
appears to be no evident conflicts between the proposed map and SCC Title 17 Zoning or the Master
Plan. The proposed map is also consistent with the surrounding existing uses.

Land Land Use ster Plan Zoning
A pplicant's Land Vacant Single-family residential R1
|Land to the east Existing single-family residence Single-family residential Rl
ILand to the southeast Existing single-family residence Single-family residential Rl
ILand to the south Vacant : Single-family residential R1
ILand to the southwest Existing single-family residence Single-family residential R1
ILand to the West Existing single-family residence Single-family residential R1
ILand to the Northwest Existing single-family residence Single-family residential R1
ILand to the North Existing single-family residence Single-family residential R1
ILand to the Northeast Existing single-family residence Single-family residential Rl

3. Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.16 R1 Zone

3.1 Storey County Code 17.16 RI Residential Zone
The proposed parcel map is compliant with zoning is SCC 17.16 R1 Residential Zone.

3.2 Minimum Lot Size

The minimum lot area in the R1 zone is 5,000 square feet. The Applicant’s properties do conform
andexceed the minimum lot size requirements with lot sizes going from about 5,000 to 7,500 square
feet.

33 Lot Dimension Reguirements

The minimum width of a 7,500 square foot lot in the R1 zone is 60 feet (SCC 17.16.50). The new
lots have a width of 75 feet. The new lots conform.

4., Public Comment

4.1 Public Comment
As of August 8, 2016 (date of posting) Staff has not received any comments from the public.

Staff Report - 20146-018




5. Findings

The Storey County Board of Commissioners shall cite Findings in a motion for approval with
conditions, or denial. The approval with conditions or denial of the requested parcel map must be
based on Findings. The Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited.
The Board of Commissioners may include additional Findings in their decision.

5.1 Motion for Approval

The Findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval with conditions.
The following findings are evident with regard to the requested parcel map when the recommended
conditions in Section 6 are applied. At a minimum, a conditional approval must be based on the
following Findings:

5.1.1 The parcel map complies with NRS 278.475 through 278.477 relating to the change in location
of boundary lines; and

5.1.2 The parcel map complies with all Federal, State, and County regulations pertaining to parcel
maps and allowed land uses; and

5.1.3 The parcel map will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties or the surrounding vicinity; and

5.1.4 The conditions of approval for the requested parcel map do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.16 R1 Residential Zone or any other Federal,
State, or County regulations.

5.2 Motion for Denial
Should a motion be made to deny the parcel map request, the following Findings with explanation of
why should be included in that motion.

5.2.1 Substantial evidence shows that the parcel map conflicts with the purpose, intent, and other
specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter 17.16 R1 Residential Zone or any other
Federal, State, or County regulations, including NRS 278.475 through 278.477; or

5.2.2 The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the parcel map do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for
surrounding uses.

6. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

1. General requirements. The Parcel Map must comply with Nevada Revised Statues (NRS)
278.475 through 278.477 relating to the change in location of boundary line(s). The parcel map must
comply with Federal, State, and County regulations pertaining to parcel map and allowed land uses.

Siaff Report - 20146-018




2. Final Map. The Applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department (Planning
Department) the Final Map. The Final Map must show all parcel boundaries, easements, right-of-
ways and be approved by staff.

3. Access and Easements. All existing streets, casements, and utility easements, whether public or
private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map. No existing easements will
be affected by the approval of this parcel map.

4. Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed parcel map, the Applicant shall submit to the
Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the land have been paid up to date.

5. Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed parcel map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.475 through 278.477.

6. Final Map. The final parcel map must meet the form and contents pursuant to NRS 278.477.

7. Null and Veid. The final parcel map must be recorded with the Storey County Recorder within 12
months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded by that time, this approval will
become null and void.

8. Indemnification. The Applicant warrants that the future use of land will conform torequirements
of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal requirements; further,
the Applicant warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so conform. The Applicantand
property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the
costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now
existing or which may occur as a result of this Approval.

7. Power of the Board of County Commissioners

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision. The decision of the Board of County Commissioners in the matter of
granting an approval must consider the staff report and recommendation from the Planning
Commission and must make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

8. Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 5.1 of this
report. Those findings shouldbe made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 5.2, Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.

Staff Report - 2016-018




8.1  Recommended Motion (Motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings under
section 5.1 of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [County
Commissioner] hereby recommend approval with conditions for the parcel map application number
2016-018 that merges three Virginia City lots into two lots located at 180 S O St, Virginia City,
Storey County (APN: 001-251-10), 190 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-11)
and 200 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-12).

Summary. Approval of pavcel map with conditions

8.2  Alternative Motion {(motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 5.2 of this report and other Findings, and against the
recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, I {County
Commissioner] hereby recommend denial for the parcel map application number 2016-018 that
merges three Virginia City lots into two lots located at 180 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County
(APN: 001-251~10), 190 S O St, Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-11) and 200 S O St,
Virginia City, Storey County (APN: 001-251-12).

Summary: Denial of parcel map

Prepared by: Jason VanHavel

Staff Report - 2016-018




APPENDIX 1

NRS 278.475 through 278.477

Staff Report - 2016-018




NRS 278.475 Amended plat, survey or map to correct or amend recorded plat, survey or map if correction
or amendment changes location of survey monument, property line or boundary line: Request; preparation and
recordation.

1. To correct an error or omission in or to amend any recorded subdivision plat, record of survey, parcel map, map
of division into large parcels or reversionary map, if the correction or amendment changes or purports to change the
physical location of any survey monument, property line or boundary line, an amended plat, survey or map must be
requested and recorded pursuant fo this section.

2. An amended plat, survey or map may be requested by:

{(a) The county surveyor to make a correction or amendment which affects land located within the boundaries of an
unincorporated area or Carson City;

(b} The city surveyor or a professional land surveyor appointed by the governing body of the city to make a
correction or amendment which affects land located within an incorporated city;

(¢) The planning commission if authorized by local ordinance; or

{d) A professional land surveyor registered pursuant to chapter 625 of NRS,

3. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a surveyor who:

{a) Performed the survey; or

{(b) Is responsible for an error or omission which is to be corrected,
=+ shall prepare and record the amended plat, survey or map within 90 days after the surveyor receives notification of the
request made pursuant to subsection 2. The time within which the surveyer must prepare and record the amended plat,
survey or map may be extended by the county surveyor, the city surveyor or a professional land surveyor appointed by
the governing body of the city or the planning commission. If the surveyor who performed the survey or is responsible
for the error or omission is no longer professionally active, the county surveyor, city surveyor or a professional land
surveyor appointed by the governing body shall prepare and file the amended plat, survey or map.

{Added to NRS by 1977, 1505; A 1979, 1501; 1991, 1152; 1993. 2578; 1997, 2434)

NRS 278.477 Amendment of recorded plat, map or survey which changes location of survey monument,
property line or boundary line: Procedures and requirements.

1. In addition to the requirements of subsection 2, an amendment of a recorded subdivision plat, parcel map, map of
division into large parcels or record of survey which changes or purports to change the physical location of any survey
monument, property line or boundary line is subject to the following requirements:

{a} If the proposed amendment is to a parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey, the same
: procedures and requirements as in the original filing.

(b) If the proposed amendment is to a subdivision plat, only those procedures for the approval and filing of a final
map.

2. Any amended subdivision plat, parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey required
pursuant to subsection T must:

{a) Be identical in size and scale to the document being amended, drawn in the manner and on the material provided
by law;

(b} Have the words “Amended Plat of’ prominently displayed on each sheet above the title of the document
amended;

(c) Have a legal description that describes only the property which is to be included in the amendment;

(d) Have a blank margin for the county recorder’s index information;

{e) Have a 3-inch square adjacent to and on the left side of the existing square for the county recorder’s information
and stamp; and

(f) Contain a certificate of the professional land surveyor licensed pursuant to chapter 625 of NRS who prepared the
amendment stating that it complies with all pertinent sections of NRS 278.010t0278.630, inclusive,
and 625.340 to 625.380, inclusive, and with any applicable local ordinance.

3. Any amended subdivision plat, parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey that is recorded
in support of an adjusted boundary must:

(a) Contain or be accompanied by the report of a title company and the certificate required by NRS 278.374 or an
order of the district court of the county in which the land is located that the amendment may be approved without all the
necessary signatures if the order is based upen a finding that:

(1) A bona fide effort was made to notify the necessary persons;
(2) All persons who responded to the notice have consented to the amendment; and
(3) The amendment does not adversely affect the persons who did not respond; and

Staff Report - 20146018
10




(b) Contain a certificate executed by the appropriate county surveyor, county engineer, city surveyor or city
engineer, if he or she is registered as a professional land surveyor or civil engineer pursuant tochapter 625 of NRS,
stating that he or she has examined the document and that it is technically correct,

4. Upon recording the amended document, the county recorder shall cause a proper notation to be entered upon all
recorded sheets of the document being amended, if the county recorder does not maintain a cumulative index for such
maps and amendments. If such an index is maintained, the county recorder shall direct an appropriate eniry for the
amendment.

5. A county recorder who records a plat, map ot record of survey pursuant to this section shall, within 7 working
days after he or she records the plat, map or record of survey, provide to the county assessor at no charge:

{a) A duplicate copy of the plat, map or record of survey and any supporting documents; or

() Access to the digital plat, map or record of survey and any digital supporting documents. The plat, map or record
of survey and the supporting documents must be in a form that is acceptable to the county recorder and the county
ASSESSOr.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 15035; A 1979. 1501;1987. 380;1989. 796; 1991, 1890;1993. 2579; 1997,
1065, 2434; 2001, 1563; 2003, 2789)

Staff Report - 2016-018
11




APPENDIX 2

Statement in application on purpose for parcel map

Staff Report - 2016-018
12




July 5, 2016

Detail Description/Justification of Project {Bacus/Kerschner Parcel Map)

This project proposes to merge three approximately 50’100’ Virginia City lots zoned R1 and resubdivide
the total merged area into two approximately 75'x100" parcels. The subject fots are Lot 2, owned by
Richard and Doreen Bacus, and Lots 3 and 4, owned by Kerschner Living Trust dated October 1, 2009
(Willeta Huffstetler Kerschner, Trustee) in Block 155, Range “N”.

The primary purpose of this project is to accommodate the Bacus’ plan to construct a residence and
have enough area to also have a parking area on one side of the residence for a large vehicle, as an R.V.
This could be accomplished by splitting Lot 3 and merging the north half with Lot 2 and the south half
with Lot 4. Willeta Kerschner has agreed to sell the north half of Lot 3 to Richard and Doreen Bacus in

order to do this.

By merging the total area and resubdividing it into two parcels, no non-compliant parcels will be
created. Sewer, water and power utilities are available to the subject parcels.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8/16/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

t. Tide: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2016-013, by Nature Conservancy,
Mickey Hazelwood. The Applicant requests to obtain a special use permit to alter portions of the
existing Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain environment to facilitate flood
management, water quality improvement, biodiversity and habitat enhancement, noxious weed
eradication, and recreation opportunity,

2. Recommended motion: (Recommended motion for approval) In accordance with the
recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings under Section 5.1 of the
Staff Report and in compliance with the conditions of approval in Section 6 of this report, [
[County Commissioner] hereby recommend conditional approval of Special Use Permit
Application Number 2016-013 to amend portions of the Truckee River channel and abuiting
floodplain areas for the purpose stated forth in the SUP Application, located at 191 Wunotoo Rd,
McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-72) & 0 PLC#4: PTN NW4 834 T20N R22E,
McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-30).

3. Prepared by: Jason VanHavel
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4, Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-013.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2016-013.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: Compfroller
7. Legal review required:
. District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
o Department Head Department Narme:

C%lty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[y

Agenda Item No. (7




STOREY COUNTY _
PLANNING DEPARTMENT <&

Storey County Courthouse &

26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775) 847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949  °
planning@storeycounty.org

To: Storey County Board of County Commission

From: Storey County Planning Department

Meeting Date: August 16, 2016

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Case Number: 2016-013

Applicant: Nature Conservancy, Mickey Hazelwood

Property Owners: Sierra Pacific Power Company

Staff Contact: Jason VanHavel, Storey County Planner

Figures: Figure 1: Area Map; Figure 2: South Street from C Street; Figure 3:
Buildings from A Street; Figure 4: Land Use Compatibility Table

Appendix: Appendix 1: Applicant Statement

Guiding Documents; Storey County Code, Section 17.03.150 Special Use Permit (conditional

use), 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.76 NR Natural Resources Zone;
Storey County Master Plan

Property Location: 191 Wunotoo Rd, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-72)
0 PLC#4: PTN NW4 834 T20N R22E, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada
(APN: 004-091-30)

Request: Request to obtain a special use permit to alter portions of the existing
Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain environment to facilitate
flood management, water quality improvement, biodiversity and habitat
enhancement, noxious weed eradication, and recreation opportunity.

Staff Report - 2016-013




TABLE OF CONTENTS

IMITOTUCHION.....ceerirsci sttt reme e n e e e e o e e e st semn e 1
Table OF COMIEIIS....c.vecrrreereieriireereree e srsme e e serass st sss b s nsssseesseeassrenerameavsseestsmerens 2
BT ) o) o A OO ST 3-11
1. Background & Analysis...c.ccve i s sse s st 3
2. General Compliance with Sterey County’s Guiding Documents............... 6
3. Compliance with the Storey County Code......ovevvvrvmrrreererererrerarerernenes 7
4. Public COMMENL........covriririvririrmrniteestismereressssesessssesesersssessssessssesessssesseses 7
5. FINAINEZS. oottt st e e s sesnens s sneseons e sen s sesesansesseseos 7
6. Recommended Conditions of Approval........cioeiievecininiineensnevssssenens 9
7. Power of the Board & Planning Commission.....c.iennervecvisesecesseenens 11
8. Proposed MOTIOMS. ..uvveccecee e vereeerrseses st st e e e eme s mrsessenteneeres I
Appendix 1: Applicant Cover Leter. ... v inreerrrrerereeessssessesssesesssassssssssesesens 13
Appendix 2: Applicant AUtHOtY Letler .. ..o sisessiesmsssssssessssessssesens 15
Appendix 3: Applicant Project Details.... s ees e see s seeeesrenns 17

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Area Map with Parcels.......ccoeivceimiineeeniicerinccire e eeens 3
Figure 2: Area Map with APN of ¢ach Parcel......ccovevvinccvve v vecenreses v 3
Figure 3: Proposed Project AT€a......cuvuceiireeieemerissecsirerersres s nissssissssssssssssssssssens 4
Figure 4: Land Use Compatibility Table .......ccccoivmerimainieverivensieereieeneece s seeeeserereeneans 6

Staff Report - 2014-013




1. Background & Analysis

1.1 Site location and characteristics

The properties are located at 191 Wunotoo Rd, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-72)
and 0 PLLC#4: PTN NW4 S34 T20N R22E, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-30).
The parcels are approximately 54.6 and 9.0 acres respectively, APN 004-091-72 is zoned I-2 and
contains some electric transmission improvements on the west end of the property. APN 004-091-30 is
zoned Natural Resources, contains no improvements and generally has the Truckee River running
through it, as the river has been moving a bit in this area (Figure 1 & 2, Maps).

Access to 004-091-72 is from Wunotoo Road from Washoe County to the north via the [-80 frontage
road. There does not appear to be any direct access to 004-091-30. While Sierra Pacific Power
Company owns the identified property, Nature Conservancy have provided easements on the subject
land. The easements from Sierra Pacific Power to Nature Conservancy allow Nature Conservancy to
build and maintain this project.

0312612015 - 03/27/2015
Figure 1: Area Map with parcels

A015 Sy

Figure 2: Area Map 004-091-72 on the left, 004-091-30 or the right .

Staff Report - 2016013




- et
- .I”
i - AT

{
A Bf:’;;ﬁanch afi

324 ] %/\ [

ez _ T A
it W 7 Rl =N

Figure 3: Proposed project area

M,:;—ﬂ'_' —

——,
———

1.2 Proposed Use
The following is the short description from the Applicant regarding the project.

Nature of Activity
The project proposes to lower the existing {abandoned) floodplain in order to recannect it with
the Truckee River. Swales and scour channels will be excavated into the designed floodplain
surface to provide topographic and hydrologic complexity and to increase flood water storage
potential. A grade control structure will be constructed of 1 ton boulders on the downstream
end of the project to prevent the river from outflanking the existing riffle located there. A series
of rock groins, keyed into the banks of the river, will be constructed in two strategic locations,
one on the northern (river left} bank and one on the southern (river right) bank of the river to
reduce shear stress and prevent river migration into undesirable areas during high flows. The
areas between the groins will be armored with cobble rock material and staked with willows to
further reinforce the banks. Along the inside of the two slight bends in this reach, cobble/gravel
material will be placed instream to establish pointbars. The elevation of the earthen berm
separating the floodplain and the gravel pit will be lowered slightly, and the face of the berm
will be protected as necessary with rip rap/rock slope protection. All excavated earth material
will be place in the southwestern portion of the gravel pit pond to create additional floodplain- 5
elevation acreage, rather than open water. A temporary river crossing will have to be built in :
order to move excavated material from the south side of the river to the gravel pit pond on the
north side of the river, All disturbed surfaces will be revegetated with native plant species.

Staff Report - 2014-013




Primary elements of this project include:
* Lowering the floodplain

* Construction of point bars, rock groin migration barriers, and a grade control structure in and
adjacent to the active channel

* Lowering the elevation of an earthen berm structure

* Sequestering spoils in an old gravel pit pond to create additional floodplain-elevation acreage

1.3 Special Use Permit Required

This special use permit was submitted as required by SCC Sections 17.12.100(G) which reads, “A
special use permit is required for all natural resources river and waterway restoration, wetland creation,
and water restoration and recycling.”

SCC 17.35.30 (Uses Subject to Special Use Permit) in the “I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone” paragraph T
reads, “Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.” SCC 17.76.30 (Uses
Subject to Special Use Permit) in the “NR Natural Resources Zone” paragraph I reads, “Natural
resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.”

1.4 Swurrounding Uses

The property to the north in Washoe County is vacant and Master Planned as Resources. Land to the
west is used for power generation and owned by Sierra Pacific Power. The land to the south is the
Union Pacific Rail line and further south is the Barrick solar power generation facility. To the east there
is vacant Washoe County resource land and vacant Sierra Pacific Power land.

1.5  Existing Conditions

Under the authority of the Flood Control Act of 1954, the U.S. Army Corps of Engincers altered the
natural flow of the Truckee River between the Truckee Meadows and Pyramid Lake to reduce flooding
in the Cities of Reno and Sparks. The river channel was straightened and widened in many sections. The
straightening led to channel down-cutting and deepened the groundwater table. These man-made
changes to the river environment disconnected the river from the riparian habitat and surrounding
floodplains. Without access to groundwater, regeneration of native riparian vegetation had been
impaired for decades.

1.6 Area Impacts

The SUP Application includes a detailed description (Appendix 3) (pp. 2-6) of Best Management
Practices (BMPs) that will “minimize surface water contact with exposed cuts and fills, and reduce or
prevent associated impacts.” BMPs include measures that are taken to protect air, water, and land quality
at and surrounding the project site. A summary of the BMPs to be implemented in the project are as
follows:

A. Pre-Construction.

* Staging will be in the northwest part of the project in an old Sierra Pacific employee parking lot and
southern access staging will be off Waltham Way on Sierra Pacific land high ground well away from
the river.

¢ Equipment and materials will be washed before use and runoff will be controlled on site.

e Protection of the river turbidity curtains will be used.
* No off project site disturbances are planned.

B. Construction.

Staff Report - 2016613




¢ Air and water quality monitoring.

e Protection of the river while conducting floodplain grading, including activities inside the river
floodway and reusing identified materials.

¢ Installation of appropriate swales and scour channels to stow and manage weather and flood events.

o Installation of point bars, groins, and grade control structures to prevent channel movement.

+ Erosion control during construction, including straw wattles, silt fencing, etc.

C. Post-Construction.
¢ Primary haul roads along both north and south sides of the river will be graveled with three-quarter
inch road base rock
* Re-vegetation/Air Quality/Erosion Treatments
s  Temporary construction roads of native surface will be ripped or disked to reduce compaction in
preparation for re-vegetation efforts

Past well intended efforts to straighten and control the river have adversely impacted the water table,
riparian arcas and floodplains. This project helps to restore those elements. “The primary purpose of
the project is to contribute to the ecological restoration of the lower Truckee River. Overall, the project
is intended to help restore basic physical and biological functions to a more natural condition so that the
ecological systems and native organisms can depend on those functions” (P §).

The schedule for the project is to start construction in September 2016. It is hoped that the project will
be completed in early 2017,

Other agencies that are required to provide permits or approvals for this project include: NDEP,
NDWR, Washoe County Health district, Air quality Management, Nevada State Lands, Washoe and
Storey Counties, and other federal agencies through state agencies.

It appears that the proposed Nature Conservancy SUP will impose no adverse impacts on the
surrounding lands when the above items are addressed.

2. General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents

2.1  Summary Table

The table below shows land uses, master plan designations and zoning for the land surrounding the
proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and the County Master Plan.
The proposed use is consistent with the surrounding land that allows for commercial/residential uses.

Land Land Use Master Plan Zoning
IApplicant's Land parcel 1 Vacant Resources NR
Applicant's Land parcel 2 Power transmission [ndustrial I-2
IL-and te the south Railroad and Solar Power [ndustrial I-2
IL-ancl to the west Power Generation [rdustrial 1-2
|Land to the north {Washoe) Vacant Resources GR*
.and to the East (Washoe) Vacant Resources GR*

* GR=General Rural
2.2 Compliance with Storey County Master Plan

The proposed special use permit conforms to the goals and objectives of the Storey County Master Plan
including: protecting the quality of present and future water resources (Chapter 5, Goal 2); regulating

Staff Report - 2016-013




use of watershed areas to minimize fire danger and prevent degradation (Chapter 5, Goal 4); assisting
property owners and interested groups in controiling public use of critical watershed and riparian areas
(Chapter 5, Objective 4.1); cooperating with property owners and interested groups in the county in
maintaining wild horses and other grazing animals (Chapter 5, Objective 4.2); providing adequate park
and recreation facilities for all residents of the county (Chapter 6, Goal 2); maintaining a healthy
environment for all residents of the county (Chapter 9, Goal 1); and ensuring land use plans are
compatible with the zoning map, master pian, and previous planning decisions (Chapter 9, Objective
1.1).

3. Compliance with the Storey County Code

3.1 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

§CC 17.35.30, 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone paragraph T reads, “Natural resources river restoration
regulated under section 17.12.100.”

SCC 17.76.30, NR Natural Resources Zone paragraph I reads, “Natural resources river restoration
regulated under section 17.12.100.”

3.2 Stated when to allow a special use permit
SCC 17.12.018

“Uses listed as requiring a special use permit are considered as special exceptions within each zone.
Any special permitted use must meet with the regulations for special use permits and any conditions
imposed by the board. In addition to the special use permit, all necessary federal, state, and county
permits and licenses are required.”

The applicant is in compliance with this section of the code. This passage of the SCC illustrates when
to allow a special use permit and this sitvation is in compliance.

3.3  No Other Nen-compliance Problems

All other aspects of the project are expected to be within the county code,

4. Public Comment

4.1 Public Comment
As of August 8, 2016 (date of posting) Staff has not received any comments from the public.

5. Findings

The Storey County Board of Commissioners shall cite Findings in a motion for approval with
conditions, or denial. The approval with conditions or denial of the requested parcel map must be based
on Findings. The Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board of
Commissioners may include additional Findings in their decision.

5.1 Motion for Approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested Special Use Permit when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section 6 Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied:

Siaff Report - 2016-013




5.1.1 8CC Sections 17.35.040(T) and 17.76.020(I) (Uses Subject to a Special Use Permit) require a
special use permit for nature resource projects including river and waterway restoration, wetland
creation, and recycling in the [-2 Heavy Indusirial and NR Natural Resources Zones.

5.1.2 The subject land is located in McCarran, Nevada, but is not located within the boundaries of the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center; therefore, the proposed use is not subject to the restrictions or
entitlements of the Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center. '

3.1.3 The conditions of SUP No. 2016-013 will not conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific
requirements of the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone and the NR Natural Resources Zone, in which the project
is located.

5.1.4 The Special Use Permit complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

5.1.5 The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
adjacent properties or the surrounding area. The proposed project and the final product will not conflict
with or adversely impact surrounding existing land uses, future land uses, or land use entitlements

3.1.6 The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2016-013 impose sufficient regulations on the
proposed project fo reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment and closest
land uses.

5.1.7 The conditions under this The Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in SCC Chapter 17.12 General Provisions, Chapter 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.76 NR Natural
Resources Zone and Chapter 17.03.150 Special Use Permits, or any other federal, state, or county
regulations, including public safety and health codes.

5.2 Motion for Denial
Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request, the following findings with
explanation of why should be included in that motion.

5.2.1 The proposed river restoration project or the final product thereof conflicts with one or more of the
stated goals and objectives of the county master plan.

3.2.2 The proposed river restoration project or the final product thereof, even with reasonable conditions
and mitigation, will conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the -2
Heavy Industrial Zone or the NR Natural Resources Zone in which it will be located.

5.2.3 The proposed river restoration project or the final product thereof, even with reasonable conditions
and mitigation, will cause adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses, future land uses, or land
use entitlements therein under the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone and/or the Development Agreement
between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

3.2.4 The proposed river restoration project or the final product thereof, even with reasonable conditions
and mitigation, will cause adverse impacts public health and safety.

Staff Report - 2016-013




6. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless otherwise
stated.

l. Special uses. Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2016-013 is for the purpose of restoring and enhancing the
water quality and riverine habitats of the Truckee River to a more natural condition by moving and widening
the exiting river channel; creating meanders, oxbows, and other water bodies associated with the river
environment; and removing existing vegetation and replacing it with native plant species. The SUP will be
used pursuant to the advisory motion made by the planning commission and approved by the Board of
Storey County Commissioners on property located approximately at 191 Wunotoo Rd, McCarren, Storey
County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-72) 0 PLC#4; PTN NW4 834 T20N R22E, McCarren, Storey County,
Nevada (APN: 004-091-30). The operation will comply with all of the requirements under this SUP and
federal, state, and county regulations. Issuance of this SUP does not convey property rights of any sort or any
exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private
rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

2. Permits and expiration. The Permit Holder must apply for all applicable building and grading permits
within 24 months from the date of Board approval. This SUP will remain valid as long as the Permit Holder
and facility complies with the terms of this SUP and federal, state, and county regulations. No construction
or permitting for construction may commence prior to issuance of this SUP and granting of required grading
permits.

3. Transfer of rights. This SUP will inure to the record owner of the Subject Property (NV Energy) and to the
Permit Holder (The Nature Conservancy) and will run with the land. Any and all transfers of this SUP to
other persons, agencies, or entities must be advised in writing by Certified Mail to the Planning Department
at least 90 days prior to assignee taking over the project. The new owners/managers must sign and accept all
conditions and requirements of this SUP,

4. Indemnification and insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to
federal, state, and county requirements; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued and future use of
the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder and property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers,
and representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and
any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a resuft of this SUP. The Permit Holder must
maintain satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects of this operation under this SUP for a minimum
amount of $1,000,000.00 {one million dollars) and provide proof thereof to Storey County prior securing
rights to this SUP.

5. Site supervision. A staff manager must be present on the premises at all times during operations, That
person must have knowledge of and immediate access to restrooms, fire suppression devices, First-Aid kits,
and all locked gates. While on the premises, the on-site manager must possess a cellular telephone with
adequate signal to send and receive signals to and from Emergency 9-1-1 and Storey County Emergency
Services direct-connect 775-847-0950. All staff using cellular phones must be directed by the Permit Holder
or his designed to dial Storey County Emergency Services Direct-Connect (775) 847-0950 (in lieu of 9-1-
1) in case of emergency. Emergency 9-1-1 still is appropriate from land-line telephones.

6. Fire suppression. The Permit Holder must maintain fire extinguishers throughout the premises to the
satisfaction of the Storey County Fire Protection District (*SCFPD”). Each device must be identified by
large and brightly colored (ie., red and white) identification which includes the words “FIRE
EXTINGUISHER™. Additionally, the Permit Holder will be held responsible for assuring that all vehicles

Staff Report - 2016-013




and heavy equipment (e.g., fractors and other mobile equipment) are equipped with a 5 pound minimum
ABC rated fire extinguisher.

7. Egress and circulation. The Permit Holder must coordinate an emergency access plan with the SCFPD
prior to project commencement. All access and circulation routes must meet the requirements for hard-
surfacing sufficient to support the weight of a fire engine as approved by the SCFPD.

8. Roadway approaches. Egress points abuiting Waltham Way or other paved county right-of-ways must
include an approach sufficient in design to prevent mud and debris tracking from the site onto the public
roadway. Any mud or debris tracked onto the roadway must be removed by the contractor immediately as
allowable by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (“NDEP”) and the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) regulations. Mud, sand, and debris must not be allowed to adversely impact existing
drainage systems.

9. Signage. A legible sign must be placed at eniry of the premises during project phases stating the name of
company/organization responsible for construction, street address and number of the project site, and contact
phone number(s). This sign must be at least 2 feet by 3 feet in size. Appropriate signage must be installed on
and around the premises stating rules for entry and circulation (e.g., no trespassing, travel permitted only on
designated pathways, ete.). The Storey County Public Works Director may require that temporary signs (e.g.,
sandwich-boards) indicating crossing truck traffic (i.e., “Truck Crossing”) be installed along the east and
west bound lanes of Waitham Way near egress.

10.  Restrooms. The Permit Holder must provide properly maintained restroom facilities (porta-potties) and
wash stations adequate to meet the sanitation needs of persons on the premises during project construction
phases. The number of restroom facilities provided during this period is pursuant the projected number
persons on the premises at any given time, as recommended by the Portable Sanitation Association
International (PSAI). Each restroom must include a properly maintained alcohol-based gel hand sanitizer
dispenser,

11, Cultural resources plan. A comprehensive archeological, historic, and cultural resources study must be
performed on the premises as required and directed by the Nevada State Department of Cultural Affairs at
the expense of the Permit Holder in order to determine the presence of any paleontological resources
(historic or prehistoric site or artifacts) that may be located on the premises. Should any prehistoric or
historic remains/artifacts be discovered during development or excavation, work must temporarily be halted
at the specific site and the Storey County Community Development Department must be notified in order to
evaluate the site and, if deemed necessary, to record and photograph the site in question. The period of
temporary delay will be limited to a minimum of two working days from the date of notification, unless it is
a significant find and it is deemed necessary to provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains
or artifacts.

12.  No-rise. The project and the conditions it creates must comply with the Federal Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM) Base Flood Elevation (BFE) requirements (e.g., “No Rise Certification™) of the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA).

13.  Release of species. No species listed as “threatened” or “endangered” pursuant to the U.S. Endangered
Species Act may be brought to or released on or near the subject property. Species include, but are not
limited to, Sage Grouse. '

14, Environmental controls. The Permit Holder must obtain an NDEP Dust Control Permit and furnish
Storey County copies of the permit. All non-vegetated surfaces must be appropriately and consistently
treated to mitigate fugitive dust and sand, Best Management Practices (BMPs) must be employed throughout
the entire project premises and egress points. At no time may secondary effluent be applied to surfaces
within the premises, including for dust control, vehicle and equipment washing, and other activities, BMPs
and other environmental controls in and around the Truckee River and the project site must comply with the

Staff Repaort - 2014-013
10




detailed plans contained in SUP Application No. 2016-013, unless required otherwise by a federal or state
agency. Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces must be preserved to the extent feasible,

15, Vehicle and equipment storage. Inactive vehicles and equipment must be stored within a protected
staging areas located a minimum of 100 feet from natural water bodies. To minimize the potential for
discharge of fuel spills and other pollutants into the river, the staging area must be located and graded such
as to contain and prevent potential contaminates from entering natural water bodies,

16. Sales tax reporting. All material and equipment purchased for the project must as possible be received in
Storey County and the value reported as “County-of-Delivery” on the Nevada Department of Taxation Form
TP1-02.01 “Combined Sales and Use Tax Return”. The Permit Holder must also report the value for all
materials and equipment (personal and rented) “used” on this project as “Use Tax” on TPI-02.01 or TPI-
02.02.

I7. Spillage. Any hydrocarbon or environmental spill incidents involving 25 gallons or more of any
petroleum product (e.g., gasoline, diesel, and hydraulic fluid) or 3 or more cyds of contaminated material, or
any presence of such material on or in ground/surface water must be reported immediately to Storey County
Emergency Services {775) 847-0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1). Additionally, under Nevada State Law, the incident
must be immediately reported to the Local Emergency Planning Committee (Emergency Management
Director), Storey County Community Development Department, and the NDEP, The applicant must comply
with the NDEP’s clean-up requirements and provide said County departments a copy of NDEP’s completion
of remediation. All hazardous materials incident clean-up and response costs are borne by the Permit Holder
as part of this SUP,

7. Power of the Board of County Commissioners

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon as
it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution,
and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon which it bases
its decision. The decision of the Board of County Commissioners in the matter of granting an approval
must consider the staff report and recommendation from the Planning Commission and must make such
a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

8. Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended by
Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 5.1 of this report.
Those findings should be made part of that motion. The motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 5.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

8.1 Recommended Motion (Motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings under
Section 5.1 of the Staff Report and in compliance with the conditions of approval in Section 6 of this
report, I [County Commissioner] hereby recommend conditional approval of Special Use Permit
Application Number 2016-013 to amend portions of the Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain
areas for the purpose stated forth in the SUP Application, located at 191 Wunotoo Rd, McCarren,
Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-72) & 0 PLC#4: PTN NW4 §34 T20N R22E, McCarren, Storey
County, Nevada (APN: 004-091-30).

Summary.: Approval of special use permit with conditions

Staff Report - 2016-013
11




8.2 Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 5.2 of this report and other Findings, and against the
recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, I [County
Commissioner] hereby recommend denial of Special Use Permit Application Number 2016-013 to
amend portions of the Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain areas for the purpose stated forth
in the SUP Application, located at 191 Wunotoo Rd, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-
091-72) & 0 PLC#4: PTN NW4 834 T20N R22E, McCarren, Storey County, Nevada (APN; 004-091-
30).

Summary: Denial of special use permit

Prepared by: Jason VanHavel

Staff Report - 2016013
12




Staff Report - 2014-013

APPENDIX 1

Applicant Cover Letter

13




THE NATURE CONSERVANCY IN NEVADA

Northern Nevada Office Southern Nevada Office
One East First Strect, #1007 1771 Bast Flamingo Road, Ste. 104A

Reno, NV 89501 Las Vegas, NV 89119
. N i Tel 775-322-4990 Tel 702-737-8744
Protecting nature. Preserving life. Fax 775-322-5132 Fax T02-737-5787

June 15, 2016

Jason VanHavel, Planner

Storey County Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

P.OBox 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Subject. Tracy Phase Il Restoration Project Special Use Permit Application

Dear Mr. VanIavel,

Enclosed is The Nature Conservancy’s application for a Special Use Permit for the Tracy
Phase II Restoration Project. The portion of this project that lies in Storey County is to
be constructed on land owned by Sierra Pacific Power Company (SPPC), adjacent to the
Tracy Power Plant. The Truckee River Flood Management Authority (TRFMA) holds a
Restoration Fasement (Easement) over a portion of the SPPC Parcel (APN 004-091-72).
Included with this application is a copy of the Easement granted by SPPC to TRFMA to
cover the projects TNC and TRFMA have partnered to implement within the Easement
area. The Easement is the enabling document for the proposed project, granting TRFMA
and its Contractors, including TNC, the right to engage in restoration activities on the
covered lands. By way of this Easement, TRFMA has signed the Owner’s Affidavit,

‘We appreciate your time and consideration in reviewing these application materials.
Please let us know if there is any other information required.

Sincerely,

A

Mickey I—Ia%élwood
Truckee River Project Director
The Nature Conservancy in Nevada




Staff Report - 2014-013

APPENDIX 2

Applicant Authority Letter

15




Directors
Ron Smith, Chair

Vaughn Hartung, Vice Chair

David Bobrien
Bob Lucey

Geno Hartini
Paul Hckenzie

Exequtive Director
Jay Aldean, P.E.

General Counsel
Hichae! Wolz

"TRUCKEE RIVER FLOOD MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

June 6, 2016

Storey County Planning Department
26 South “B” Street,

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV §9440

Re:  Special Use Permit Application for Grading

This letter is written in support of the Property Owner Affidavit that is a part of the
Development Application for the Tracy Ecosystem Restoration Phase II submitted by
the Nature Conservancy.

I am the General Counsel of the Truckee River Flood Management Authority
(TRFMA), which is a joint powers authority created by an Interlocal Cooperative
Agreement between the County of Washoe, the City of Reno and the City of Sparks.
The Executive Director of TRFMA, Jay Aldean, has authority over the management of
real property or interests in real property owned by the Authority. TRFMA Resolution
No. 2011-3, Section 3.8. He therefore may sign the Property Owner Affidavit as the
owner of the relevant easements.

The Restoration Easement at issue was granted to TRFMA by Sierra Pacific Power
Company, d.b.a. NV Energy by a Grant of Easement for Restoration on November 3,
2012 (Storey County Recorder Document #0117738) and was amended on May 13,
2016 (Storey County Recorder Document #0124055). The Grant of Easement for
Restoration conveyed to TRFMA a perpetual and nonexclusive easement for the
establishment, use, operation and maintenance of an ecosystem restoration project. The
Grant of Easement allows for the work that is the subject of the Development
Application, including but not limited to the excavating and depositing of earth for
restoration, rerouting the Truckee River channel, the construction of berms, etc.

If you need additional documentation or information please do not hesitate to contact

TRUCKEE RIVER FLOOD MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY o 9835 GATEWAY DR, SUITE A ¢ RENG. NV BS521 & 775-850-7460 « Fax 775851-8568

WWW TRUCKEEFLOOD.US




APPENDIX 3

Applicant Project Details

Staff Report - 2016-013
17




Storey County Special Use Permit Application
Truckee River Restoration Program
Tracy Phase Il Project

e, Ty
o Powora Y

3
‘\ﬁ' .

Figure 1. Project Location Map

Nature of Activity

The project proposes to lower the existing (abandoned} floodplain in order to reconnect it with the Truckee
River. Swales and scour channels will be excavated into the designed floodplain surface to provide
topographic and hydrologic complexity and to increase flood water storage potential. A grade control
structure will be constructed of 1 ton boulders on the downstream end of the project to prevent the river
from outflanking the existing riffle located there. A series of rock groins, keyed into the banks of the river,
will be constructed in two strategic locations, one on the northern (river left) bank and one on the southern
(river right) bank of the river to reduce shear stress and prevent river migration into undesirable areas
during high flows. The areas between the groins will be armored with cobble rock material and staked with
willows to further reinforce the banks. Along the inside of the two slight bends in this reach, cobble/gravel
material will be placed instream to establish pointbars. The elevation of the earthen berm separating the
floodplain and the gravel pit will be lowered slightly, and the face of the berm will be protected as
necessary with rip rap/rock slope protection. All excavated earth material will be place in the southwestern
portion of the gravel pit pond to create additional floodplain-elevation acreage, rather than open water. A

1




temporary river crossing will have to be built in order to move excavated material from the south side of
the river to the gravel pit pond on the north side of the river. All disturbed surfaces will be revegetated
with native plant species.

Primary elements of thisproiect include:

» Lowering the floodplain

+  Construction of point bars, rock groin migration barriers, and a grade control structure in and adjacent
to the active channel

« Lowering the elevation of an earthen berm structure

= Sequestering spoils in an old gravel pit pond to create additional floodplain-elevation acreage

A. Pre-construction Activities and Best Management Practices (BMPs)

Phased construction will combine various activities and BMPs to minimize surface water contact with
exposed cuts and fills, and reduce or prevent associated impacts, The following Pre-construction,
construction and Post-construction BMPs will be implemented.

1. Construction Access

Primary access to the site is along the Clark station frontage road, then through the old NV Energy parking
lot on the left before the power company's bridge across the Truckee. The staging area will be located in
the northwestern corner of the project site, well away from the river. The south side of the river may be
accessed through NV Energy’s Tracy Power Plant driveway off Waltham Way. The south side staging area
will be located on high ground away from the river, owned by NV Energy who is a project partner.
Additional secondary access roads will be graded as needed on flaodplains and will have a native surface
which can be watered and re-graded as necessary during canstruction.

2. Location of Rock and Gravel Stockpiles

Gravel and cobble can be end-dumped and loaded in areas with good turnaround access along the north
and south sides of the river. Riprap materials will be stored near the placement sites. All materials to be
placed in the river will be cleaned prior to placement.

3. All Construction Volumes and Areas

vy | PRONJECT ¢ STOREYV WASHOE
CUTFILL | yoTALICY) | COUNTYICY) | COUNTY (CY)
cur | 2240, DK ' . 107,500 133 4KI0
FiLl, 24DB4KI0 i 3.0 237.000
NET Q . «10d. DG 14 000

Table 1. Estimated Cut/Fill Volumes




N PROJECT | PROJECT | WASHOE | WASHOE | STOREY | STOREY
* (. M, LAl . R S
:.l’:_‘:;:;: “,I.T:.;{é“ TOTAL TOTAL COUNTY | COUNTY | COUNTY | COUNTY
e b 4 XYL ATON) | (CY) L TON) | (CY) | (TON)
PTON ROUK D 6,100 [ 3.600 0K 10, K3 [ 5ty 3400
o CHCLASS VROCK] 2400 £ 73 | NG 33005 Tid 1,405
l.‘l ’II’N Rh‘p ‘Rsp ; HRK F RNCY TRV i T B T Y T R
; (S0 VDS) HF0D G : %10
i1 .
BOULDER
GRADE | TON ROCK BI0G | 1Ra00 24480 £.300 5200 1 127K
T CONTROL. 5 :
FXTONROCK| 3w | moo 25 40 2175 550
WILLOW P
UROINS GRAVELS TNy ISRy 75 bk 25 | 40D
COBBLE
CHANNEL | 05
(__ﬁ,ay.m: GRAVEL & 500 | 2.300 L] 2300 3.0 R
CUBBLE 1 covnpig
PLACEMENT ST

+ RSP FABRIC WUNMTS ARE SQUARE YAROS
NOTE: VOLUMES/WEGHTS ASSUME 30% VOID RATK) FOR ROCK AND Z0% VCID
RATID FOR GRAVEL/COBBLE. WRIGHTS ASSUME 165 LES/CY.

Table 2. Estimated Construction Materials Volumes for Tracy Phase [l Restoration Project

4. Staging Areas and Equipment Wash Sites

The staging areas will double as equipment wash sites. Parking surfaces will be graded to contain runoff
and will be covered with gravel. Straw wattles (fiber rolls) will be staked along perimeters to further
facilitate containment.

5. Establishment of Turbidity Curtains

To minimize turbidity impacts during flocdplain grading, Type Il heavy duty turbidity curtains (Figure2} will
be installed parailel to the Truckee River stream bank. If both floodplains are graded simultaneously, the
Type 1t turbidity curtains will be staked along both banks. These turbidity curtains will alse be used to
isolate the areas where point bar cobble/gravel is being placed and rock groins are being constructed from
active flows. A floating Type Ill heavy duty turbidity curtain will be installed across the channel downstream
of the project site.

6. Sensitive Areas

No disturbance will take place outside the project boundaries. Riparian save areas within the project
foolprint will be fenced, flagged and avoided as delineated in finai plans.




T¥pe 2 Heavy Duty
Detall Drgovling $5, TOGGLE PIN

p W/LANYARD
o ALUH, UNIVERSEAL
. /7 CONNECTORS

= 5.8, CONNECTING
s 8 HARDWARE

SECTION A

www. Type2SiltBarrier.com

BOLT ROPE .~ 423 HG.
EYENUT

¢ ANCHOR POINT »

it 1
DETAIL & v o

SEAMED JH-ERD-
HRALY HDRMETS

: A A ; N

55 s . B CHATN COMNELTION: TE1

PASSES. THROUGH __ §E§$§s Py #23 HG, \’*.ﬁmﬁgs;':[’é.‘ﬁgzs;‘ VIa'
GROMMETS AND HE. RING SAFTEY HDOK G SHALKLE

CHAIN

Figure 2. Detail of Type [l heavy duty turbidity curtain, courtesy Granite Environmental

B. Construction and BMPs

1. Water and Air Quality Monitoring

Background turbidity samples will be collected twice per day upstream of all planned activities, above
the upstream grade control structure. Downstream samples wili be collected at a location determined
by NDEP below the downstream grading boundary of the project. Samples will be collected at the
downstream site before, during and after construction activities each day at a sampling frequency of
approximately once per hour.

Air quality wiil be qualitatively monitored by the contractor during all ground disturbance activities.
Water trucks wilt be deployed as necessary to keep the production of air borne particulates to a
minimum.

2. Floodplain Grading

The starting location and progressian of floodplain grading will be chosen by the contractor. Excavators
or scrapers will likely be used to lower the floodplains to the design grade. When gravel or cobble lenses
are encountered, these materials should be screened and separated for potential use in cobble blankets.




3. Excavation of Swales and Scour Channels

After the floodplain is lowered to the designed grade, new features will be cut into the landscape as
detailed in the {final} plan and under supervision from TNC staff. The primary elements cf such features
are to provide seasonal hydrologic connectivity to water in the main river channel: swales will be wet
during spring runoff and scour channels will flow during flood events, serving to slowly return water
from floodplains back to the main channel,

4. Placement of Spoils

Excavated materials will be spoiled in the old gravel pit pond and along the toe and face of the gravel
pit pond berm. '

5. Construction of Point Bars, Groins, and Grade Control Structure

All materials will be cleaned prior to placement in the channel. Peint bar will be constructed by gently
placing 2'-12” gravel/cobble along the bank of the river and extending out Into the active channel. The
work will be conducted behind a k-rail/turbidity curtain BMP that will isolate the area from active flows,
and no channel excavation will be required. Cobbles and gravel can be delivered to the riffle locations
by driving trucks along the newly excavated floodplain {soil conditions permitting). Spreading and
grading can be accomplished from either bank with an excavator.

The groins will be constructed of %2 ton rock that will be keyed into the river banks and edge of the river
bed, and work will he separated from active flows by k-rails, turbidity curtains, or other diversion
structures. This work will also be accomplished from either bank with an excavator.

The grade control structure Is intended to prevent the river from outflanking the existing riffle at the
downstream end of the project site which could cause unnecessary erosion in the vicinity or the river
to abandon its channel and reestablish in another low-lying area. Grade control materials (1 ton
boulders} will be stockpiled near the existing channel location. The ends of the grade control structure
wili also be keyed into the river banks and edge of the river bed, and work will be separated from
active flows by k-rails, turbidity curtains, or other diversion structures. Voids must be backfilled with
grave! and cobhble prior to placement of the next layer of 1-2 ton bouiders if more than one course is
required. Again, the work wili be accomplished from either bank with an excavator.

6. Post Grading Treatment

TNC assumes responsibility for post grading soil treatments to reduce short term erosion. Such
treatments may inciude; pole plantings, containerized seedlings, water jetted cuttings, and seeding.
Mulch can be added to facilitate water retention, reduce erosion and inhibit colonization by undesired
species, Given the extremely windy conditions which often occur in the region, a tackifier may be added

as needed.

7. Erosion Prevention Treatments during Construction

All farge disturbance areas will be fenced with wire backed silt fencing which provides extra strength in
windy areas. Spacing of steel posts will not exceed 8 feet. Wire fencing will be installed on the downhilt
side of the filter fabric, between the fabric and the posts and the fabric will be anchored in a 12-inch
deep ditch (Nevada BMP Guide, June 2008). Some areas {e.g. long slopes along floodplain boundaries
and spoils sequestration areas) may be protected with rows of straw wattles (fiber rolls), staked in place




along level contours. Rolls should be keyed in to the ground surface 2-4 inches and staked at least every
4 feet with the space between rows not to exceed 20 feet (Nevada BMP Guide, June 2008).

C. Post-construction

1. Road Surfaces Treatments

Primary haul roads along both north and south sides of the river will be graded and watered regularly,
and track-out areas will be graveled with 3% inch road base rack as needed. Temporary construction
roads of native surface will be ripped or disked to reduce compaction in preparation for TNC
revegetation efforts.

2. Revegetation/Air Quality/Erosion Treatments

Silt fencing and fiber rolls located in non-flood prone areas will remain on site until vegetation becomes
established. BMP's located along the river's edge and on the lowest floodplain surfaces will be removed
following construction. Under TNC direction a spray mulch/tackifier mixture may be applied to exposed
sofls to reduce wind-blown soils. Weed free straw muich may also be applied.

3. Riparian, Wetland, Upland Vegetation Restoration

In riparian and wetland areas revegetation will occur as a combination of natural recruitment and TNC
planting efforts, Floodplain and upland plantings will need to be watered for the first few years following
construction as in other TNC restoration projects along the Truckee River. Removal of invasive species
will be a component of TNC’s Vegetation Restoration Plan.

D. Type of equipment to be used and how it will be operated

The excavation of the floodplain, rock placement, and other activities at the site will require contracting
an excavation crew. The equipment listed below, or its equivalent, is expected to be used throughout
the site,

Cat 330 Excavator
Cat 973 Loader

Cat D400

Cat D7 Dozer

Cat 14G Grader
4000 gal water truck




E. Site Plan

REHOVE EXISTING ROCK WALL,

1= by + d o " :
T i e e M e RO RN S 0B
. o A i
N\ GRAVEL//COBBLE ALACEUENT A
o

—m RECH SO [TYF)

|

bl
=
35
[
B
d

AN

3
e
T —

TAE OF THEET

TRUCKEE RIVER

TRACY |l SITE RESTORATION Feves
PROJECT PLAN OVERVIEW .

GRAVEL/COBBLE PLA:BAENT-(IT'P)-—/

LEGEND.

1 BN RSP

[

e em PROMECT BOUNDARY
—-— PROVECT ALIGNMENT

B5%E EBOULDER GRADE CONTROL

U EMISTHG RODK WALL

=
@
Q
P
&
b
g.
ﬂz
E
§
;

———— EXTTINE, CONTOURS - {IFT):




Proposed Project Purpose

Background

Over the past century, the lower Truckee River downstream from Vista has suffered from many human-
caused changes, which have greatly altered the ecological integrity and functioning of the river. Truckee
River flows are regulated by a number of agreements, decrees, and river operating requirements.

Well intended but failed efforts at flood control in the early 19605 led to exacerbated channel down
cutting along the lower Truckee River and as a result, depression of the groundwater table. The lowered
groundwater depth and deeply incised channel has disconnected the river from the riparian habitat and
surrounding floodplains. Without access to groundwater, regeneration of native riparian vegetation has
been impaired for decades, and invasive species have begun to dominate the riparian communities
along the river's edge.

Land use practices along the Truckee River have altered the flow regimes, also causing the condition of
riparian vegetation to decline and resuiting in a significant reduction of important habitat for birds,
mammals, reptiles, and amphibians. Urban growth and development in the cities of Reno and Sparks
have increased the amount of impervious surfaces, affecting water quality and the extent and timing of
flooding.

Since 2003, TNC and its partner agencies have demonstrated river restoration techniques on the lower
Truckee River through two projects at TNC's 305-acre McCarran Ranch, the Lockwood site, the lower
Mustang Ranch site, the 102 Ranch sfte, and the Tracy site. The site proposed for restoration is within
the same reach of the lower Truckee River as the completed restoration sites. The restoration activities
at McCarran Ranch included the creation of a new river meander; approximately one mile of new
channel and riffle construction; revegetation of approximately 120 acres; creation of wetlands and
ponds, including oxbow wetlands; and a variety of wildlife nesting, cover, and shelter improvements.
The constructed riffles raised the water surface level and promoted more frequent overbank flooding
within the project areas. The localized overbank flooding of these uninhabited floodplain areas
improved soil fertility and ecological productivity, while attenuating downstream fiooding.

These river and riparian restoration measures are correcting the undesirable effects of channelization
and river entrenchment, while retaining the benefits of flood flow attenuation. Restoration at the
McCarran Ranch sites is resulting in the recovery of the groundwater table in the project area, increased
populations and survivorship of native plants, and increased fish and native bird populations. The
decreased channel width promotes improved hydraulic connection between the river channel and its
floodplain to better support wetland habitat.

Purpose of and Need for the Proposed Action

The primary purpose of the project is to contribute to the ecological restoration of the lower Truckee
River. Overall, the project is intended to help restore basic physical and biological functions to a more
natural condition so that the ecological systems and native organisms can depend on those functions.
Generally, the restoration project will involve the creation of new areas of aguatic and terrestrial
habitat, including river channel modifications, scour channels and swales, and areas of native
vegetation, for the purposes of restoring the degraded ecosystem to a more natural condition.

8




Monitoring results support the effectiveness of TNC's restoration projects since 2003 and the need for
continued, well-designed restoration projects at high priority sites on the lower Truckee River.

The Tracy site was selected by TNC and cooperating agencies in order to restore the river channel,
floodplain, and riparian forest and to undo the damage of the human-caused changes. The proposed
channel-and-floodplain restoration work to be implemented at the site would create a variety of
kenefits in terms of long-term floodwater flow attenuation, water quality improvement, improved
habitats for native plants and animals including special-status species, biclogical productivity and
diversity, noxious weed reduction and control, and restoration of native species. The proposed project
would continue TNC's program of restoration on key reaches of the lower Truckee River and provide
linkage and continuity with the previously restored sites.

The decision to propose this site, as well as previous projects for restoration, was based in part on its
relatively high scores in a report prepared by Otis Bay Ecological Consultants (Otis Bay Ecological
Consultants 2007) for the U.S, Army Corps of Engineers. The report includes a ranking of the ecological
restoration potential of 20 sites along the lower Truckee River based on field and aerial observations.
The criteria included flow regime, average floodplain width and potential for floodplain expansion,
riparian forest and potential for recovery, existing aquatic habitat diversity and potential to increase
hydraulic habitat diversity, encroachments into the channel and floodplain, existing entrenchment,
floodplain reconnection potential, and connection to natural features.

Tracy Phase Il

The Tracy Phase |l restoration site includes three different properties; a conservation easement donated
by NV Energy and being held by the Flood Management Authority, a 12 acre parcel (the former Hoss
Equipment property) acquired by TNCin 2014, and the upstream portion of the 102 Ranch property
owned by BLM who TNC has a cooperative management agreement with. The Truckee River at Tracy has
a deeply incised and relatively straight channel, a disconnected floodplain, and a large earthen berm and
gravel pit pond that are relics of a former gravel mining operation. The site also contains existing
elements such as functional historic swales/abandoned river channel and remnant late seral
cottonwoods, which would accelerate the restoration process.

The Tracy Phase Il site is just downstream of the Tracy Phase | project and abuts the 102 Ranch
restoration project at its upstream end. Extensive restoration work was done at Tracy Phase | in 2013
and at 102 Ranch in 2008 to lower the floodplain, realign the channel, and restore native riparian
vegetation. The purpose and need for restoration proposed at Tracy Phase |l is to provide river and
ecological restoration, and to provide physical and biological continuity with previously restored sites
upstream and downstream of the Tracy Phase H reach.

Timeframe of the proposed project

January-August 2016 Finalize design and secure permits.

August-December 7016 Site preparation; rock stockpiling; plant salvage; floodplain excavation and
gravel pit fili; grade control, groin, and point bar construction.




Other Permits and Approvals Required

The construction worlk associated with restoring this site requires a series of federal, state, and local
permits, as well as letters of permission and easements. As of April 2016, the permit application process
is in the initial stages, and all permits are expected to be in-hand by iate August/September 2016. The
permits and easements needed are as follows:

1.

2
3.
4

wn

Temporary Working in Waterways {Rolling Stock} Permit —issued by NDEP,
401 Water Quality Certification —issued by NDEP.
Stormwater General Permit — issued by NDEP,

Letters of Authorization from State of Nevada — both the State Engineer (Division of Water
Resources) and Department of Wildlife must approve the project.

Grading Permits — issued by Washoe and Storey Counties.
Special Use Permits —issued by Storey and Washoe Counties.

Dust Control and Vector Control Permits — Washoe County District Health Department, Air
Quality Management Division.

Right of Entry and Construction Authorization — Division of State Lands.

TNC will he responsible for preparing and submitting all necessary materials to secure these permits
and easements. TNC will be named on each permit for the project {as will contractors as
appropriate), '

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/16/16 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Resolution No. 2016-444, A Resolution Adopting the
Amended 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The resolution includes comprehensive text
amendments to the existing Storey County Master Plan, including the following
elements: Land Use; Population; Housing; Economic Development; Transportation;
Public Services and Facilities; Water and Natural Resources; Cultural and Historical
Resources; and other provisions thereof. The resolution also includes comprehensive map
amendments to the existing Storey County Master Plan area and land use designation
maps. Public participation is encouraged, Copies of the master plan draft may be obtained
{from the Planning Department website at hitp://www.storeycounty.org/52 1/Updates, at
775.847.1144, or from planning@storeycounty.org. A copy will also be made available at
the meeting.

2. Recommended motion: See recommended motion in Fxhibit B.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Department Telephone: 775.847.1144

5. Staff summary: See summary of planning commission action in Exhibit A Summary Report of
Planning Commission Action and findings of fact in Exhibit C Resolution No.
2016-444,

6. Supporting materials: Copies of the master plan draft are enclosed herewith and may be
obtained from the Planning Department website at http://www.storeycounty.org/521/Updates, at
775.847.1144, or from planning@storeycounty.org. The master plan as adopted by the planning
commission and proposed as such to the Storey County Board of County Commissioners has
been posted on the county website for review by the public and other interested persons since
the required NRS posting period.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
_@’___ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ Famans |
—

Agenda Item No, \' 9

Page 1 of 4




Exhibit A — Summary Report of Planning Commission Action

On August 4, 2016, the Storey County Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding
Resolution No. 2016-444, adopting the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The planning
commission adopted the master plan as recommended by county planning staff, including Chapter
1 Introduction and Framework; Chapter 2 Themes and Principles; Chapter 3 Land Use; Chapter 4
Public Lands; Chapter 5 Population; Chapter 6 Housing; Chapter 7 Economic Development;
Chapter 8 Transportation; Chapter 9 Public Services and Facilities; Chapter 10 Water and Natural
Resources; Chapter 11 Cultural and Historic Resources; Bibliography; Appendices; and Land Use
Maps. The six planning commissioners who were present voted unanimously to adopt the plan. A
written statement by Planning Commissioner Larry Prater, who was absent at the meeting,
supporting the adoption of the master plan was read into the record at the meeting per his request.

Exhibit B — Recommended Motion

Based on findings of fact shown in Resolution No. 2016-444, and conformance with federal, state,
and county regulations, and the existing 1994 Storey County Master Plan, the recommendation for
approval by staff, and the adoption of the plan by the planning commission, I (Commissioner)
motion to approve Resolution No. 2016-444, a resolution adopting the amended 2016 Storey
County Master Plan, including comprehensive text amendments to the existing Storey County
Master Plan, including the following elements: Land Use; Population; Housing; Economic
Development; Transportation; Public Services and Facilities; Water and Natural Resources;
Cultural and Historical Resources; and other provisions thereon. As part of Resolution No. 2016-
444, I also motion to approve comprehensive map amendments to the existing Storey County
Master Plan area and land use designation maps as recommended for approval by staff and the
planning commission.

Exhibit C — Resolution No. 2016-444

Resolution Number 2016-444
A Resolution adopting the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

- Whereas, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), sections 278.150 to 278.220, and Storey
County Code, 17.03.210, provides the procedure for the adoption and amendment of the Master
Plan by Planning Commissions and the Boards of County Commissioners; and

Whereas, the Storey County Planning Commission (Planning Commission) has conducted
numerous hearings throughout Storey County to obtain public input for comprehensive
amendments to the text and maps of the existing Storey County Master Plan over a number of
years; and

Whereas, notice of a meeting to be held on the August 16, 2016 by the Storey County

Board of County Commissioners to consider the adoption of comprehensive changes to the Master
Plan and Maps was duly published in the Comstock Chronicle on the 22nd day of July, 2016, and
an agenda for the meeting of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners for August 16,
2016 identified as a topic of discussion, the adoption of comprehensive amendments to the Master
Plan and maps, was duly posted on or before August 11, 2016 and published as required by law;
and

Page 2 of 4




Whereas, the Planning Commission has certified the amendments which it adopted to the
Master Plan and maps to the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, see attached Exhibit
A to Resolution 2016-444; and,

Whereas, the attached Master Plan contains eleven chapters including Chapter 1
Introduction and Framework; Chapter 2 Themes and Principles; Chapter 3 Land Use; Chapter 4
Public Lands; Chapter 5 Population; Chapter 6 Housing; Chapter 7 Economic Development;
Chapter 8 Transportation; Chapter 9 Public Services and Facilities; Chapter 10 Water and Natural
Resources; Chapter 11 Cultural and Historic Resources; Bibliography; Appendices; and Land Use
Maps.

Now Therefore, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners hereby resolves to
amend the Master Plan as those amendments were adopted by the Planning Commission by
adopting the attached 2016 amendment of the Storey County Master Plan, with accompanying
charts, drawings, diagrams, maps, reports and other descriptive materials covering the following
subject matters or portions thereof as are appropriate to Storey County: Introduction and
Framework; Themes and Principles; Land Use; Housing; Population; Transportation; Water and
Natural Resources; Economic Development; Public Services and Facilities; Public Lands; Cultural
and Historic Resources; along with supporting References, Maps, Appendixes E through P,
Biblicgraphy, and Ten Land Use Maps, as the Storey County Master Plan.

The Storey County Master Plan is adopted to conserve and promote the public health,
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Storey County.

Adopted this day of August 2016, by the following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Marshall Mc¢Bride, Chairman
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk

Page 3 of 4




Exhibit A to Resolution 2016-444

REPORT TO STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

On August 4, 2016, the Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding Board Resolution
2016-444, adopting amendments to the Master Plan. The Planning Commission reviewed the
proposed amendments to the Master Plan and adopted them unanimously in Resolution 2016-444.
The Planning Commission therefore certifies this action to the Board of County Commissioners

Date STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING COMMISSION

By: Jim Hindle Acting Chairperson

ATTEST:

Lyndi Renaud, Secretary
Storey County Planning Commission

Page 4 of 4




Resolution Number 2016-444

A Resolution adopting the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

Whereas, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), sections 278.150 to 278.220, and
Storey County Code, 17.03.210, provides the procedure for the adoption and
amendment of the Master Plan by Planning Commissions and the Boards of
County Commissioners; and

Whereas, the Storey County Planning Commission (Commission) has
conducted numerous hearings throughout Storey County to obtain public input for
comprehensive amendments to the text and maps of the existing Storey County
Master Plan over a number of years; and

Whereas, notice of a meeting to be held on the August 4, 2016 by the
Commission to consider the adoption of comprehensive changes to the Master Plan
and Maps was duly published in the Comstock Chronicle on the 22nd day of July,
2016, and an agenda identifying as a topic of discussion the adoption of
comprehensive amendments to the Master Plan and maps was duly posted on or
before July 26, 2016, and published as required by law; and

Whereas, the attached Master Plan contains eleven chapters including
Chapter 1 Introduction and Framework; Chapter 2 Themes and Principles; Chapter
3 Land Use; Chapter 4 Public Lands; Chapter 5 Population; Chapter 6 Housing;
Chapter 7 Economic Development; Chapter 8 Transportation; Chapter 9 Public
Services and Facilities; Chapter 10 Water and Natural Resources; Chapter 11
Cultural and Historic Resources; Bibliography; Appendices; and Land Use Maps.

Now Therefore, the Storey County Planning Commission hereby resolves
to amend the Master Plan by adopting the attached 2016 amendment of the Storey
County Master Plan, with accompanying charts, drawings, diagrams, maps, reports
and other descriptive materials covering the following subject matters or portions
thereof as are appropriate to Storey County: Introduction and Framework; Themes
and Principles; Land Use; Housing; Population; Transportation; Water and Natural
Resources; Economic Development; Public Services and Facilities; Public Lands;
Cultural and Historic Resources; along with supporting References, Maps,




Appendixes A through J, Bibliography, and Ten Land Use Maps, as the Storey
County Master Plan.

The Storey County Master Plan is adopted to conserve and promote the
public health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Storey County.

Adopted this L[ day of August 2016, by the following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners: Vir gil ‘!%uccf’lfaner[
Pamela Swmith
John Hecrington
Jim Hindle
Kyis Thompson
Ron thel brec(/i+

Nayes: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners: __h_a.r ¢ Prater

o)

James Hindle, Acting Chairman
Storey County Planning Commission

Attest:

Spete Nl

Lyndi Renaud, Secretary
Storey County Planning Commission




07129/2016  13:44 MR2D, LLC {F&%) P.0014003

Storey County, Nevada
Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of
items on its meeting agendas. This Ppolicy states that all tequests must be made in writing,
and must include all supporting documentation at the time the tequest is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on
the Monday of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting, (frems received after the
deadline will be placed on the sagenda of a subsequent meeting. )

Date of Meeting: A'MWJ“' | AT Date Request Submitted: | MIV.L -1 70l b
L= - -
Agenda Item Requested; _ LASASSin e’}fd’&Lt oy S‘hﬂf*ﬂ Cw‘l‘ﬂ liu»xs‘ﬂ/y

- ' o g L dn gpeinit - _ e

This item is intended for: ¥ Discussion Only [ Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

E Supporting documentation is attached [] No supporting documentation is NEEessary

Requested by: BV, Seaée,l/’a lpre, & —é[-l-}'mﬂ‘\ﬂla T M M ey Dj Ll
‘ (please print name clearly)

Address: 104 % Db e 1 &l\/d lemo NV g-qul

Phone: +35 -2,77 ~5¢4 { Email (optional: QSeﬂIQI’bfﬂ VVL@ msc Iqh/VeF‘S‘- (o |
— 7

Please submit this completed form to;

Storey County Clerk’s Office or FAX to:
PO Drawer D
e e s Storey County Clerk’s Office
Virginia City NV 89440 . Y (775) t3237--1}921
For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: Received: [InPerson []ViaFAX | By:
LI Supporting docurnentation attached - & of pages ' Meeting date of this item:
(L] ttem Approved for Agenda by: , Date:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) B47-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org

Storey Cawnty Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 31 of'34




0712912016  13:45MMRD, LIC FAY) P.002/003

STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL RICHARD WHITLEY, M5
Goverrtor Administrator

TRACEY [}, GREEN, MD

ROMAINE GILLILAND
Chief Medieal Offfcer

Director

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

November 3, 2014

Stephen Earl McNeal
- MMR&D,LLC - -
8830 KulkaRd. Box 2721 ~ :
Las Vegas, NV 89161 J

Application Identifier; D095
Ref. #: 53527639048691065500

Dear MM R&D, LL.C,

The State of Nevada, Division of Public and Behavioral Health has completed the application
evaluation process for medical marijuana establishment registration certificates, This letter is to
inform you of the intent to approve your application for MM R&D, LLC, a Dispensary establishment
at 266 N. C Street in the STOREY local jurisdiction. Please note this letier only applies to this
establishinent. If you submitted multiple applications, you will receive a separate notification letter for
each one. Final approval will occur when the applicant has:

| 1. Provided documentation to the Division issued by the local jurisdiction to the establishment

authorizing occupancy of the building as a medical marijuana establishment such as a

| certificate of occupancy, a special use permit or a conditional use permit.

| 2. Provided documentation to the Division regarding successful inspections issued from fire,

| ~  building, health and atr quality.

| 3. Provided documentation to the Division of successful pre-opening inspection findings done by
the Division.

| 4. Provided complete and verified agent card information to the Division for all owners, officers,

| board members and employees of the medical marijuana establishment.

Paid the applicable fees for the issuance of a medical marijuana registration certificate

Provided confirmation that a state business license has been acquired.

Provided confirmation that local business licensing and zoning permits have been acquired.

Pl

Per NRS 453A.326, certificates are considered provisional until the establishment is in compliance
with all applicable local governmental requirements, and has received a state bugsiness license to
operate the establishment. NAC 453A.324 allows the Division to revoke the provisional certificate if a
medical marijuana establishment is not fully operational within 18 months of receiving it.




07129/2016  13:45MHRLD, LUK FAO P.003/003

Stephen Earl McNeal will be contacted soon to discuss the details of the provisional certification.
Whea the approvals to operate listed above are fulfilled, MM R&D, LLC will receive a certificate to
operate as 4 medical marijuana establishment.

Note: Provisional certification resulting from this notification shall not become effective nntil
approved by the Division of Public & Behavioral Health.

Please do not hesitate to e-mail the Division with any questions or concemns you may have at
medicalmarijnana@health nv.gov. Thank you.

Sincerely,

R W,

Richard Whitley MS, Administrator
Division of Public & Behavioral Health
Medical Matijuana Establishment Program




Vanessa Stephens

From: Keith Loomis

Sent: Monday, August 01, 2016 2:07 PM
To: Vanessa Stephens

Cc: Anne Langer; Pat Whitten
Subject: FW: MM R & D LLC

Vanessa

I understand that typically when Pat responds to an agenda request from a member of the public, that his response
would be included in the correspondence portion of an agenda. | have responded to the request of MM R&D LLC to be
included on an agenda as set forth below. | do not have a problem with the below being included as part of the
correspondence portion of an agenda.

Keith Loomis

Deputy District Attorney

Storey County District Attorney’s
Office

P.O. Box 496, 201 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

(775} 847-0964

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider

** Notice** This message and accompanying documents are covered by the electrenic
Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521. This email and any files transmitted
with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate,
distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you
have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are
not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or
taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.

From: Keith Loomis

Sent: Monday, August 01, 2016 1:49 PM
To: Eva Segerblom

Cc: Anne Langer

Subject: MM R & D LLC

Ms. Segerblom:




Your request to have an item included on an agenda of the Board of County Commissioners has been routed to
this office for a response. Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Number 008 in subsection 1(a) provides
that the County Manager has the discretion to approve an agenda request form submitted to the County which does not
have the concurrence or endorsement of a county commissioner. You were previously advised that the subject of your
request would need the concurrence or endorsement of a county commissioner in order to be placed on an agenda of a
meeting of the Board of County Commissioners. It is my understanding that you have not obtained the concurrence or
endorsement of a county commissioner for your request. Accordingly, your request will not be included on an agenda.

Keith Loomis

Deputy District Attorney

Storey County District Attorney’s
Office

P.O. Box 496, 201 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 85440

(775) 847-0964

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider

** Notice** This message and accompanying documents are covered by the electronic
Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S5.C. §§ 2510-2521. This email and any files transmitted
with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate,
distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you
have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are
not the intended recipient ycu are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or
taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




